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BOARD’S REPORT

T,

The Members

IRM ENERGY LIMITED

(Formerly known as IRM Energy Private Limited)

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their Seventh Annual Report together with
Audited Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss for the Financial Year ended on
March 31, 2022 and the report of the Auditors thereon.

FINANCIAL & OPERATING RESULTS

(a) FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Company’s financial performance for the year ended on March 31, 2022 is

summarized below:

Financial Year

Financial Year

Particiilars 2021-22 2020-21

(Amount in Rs. (Amount in Rs.
million) million)

Revenue from Operations 5,461.43 2,118.08

Other Income 30.50 7.34

Total Income 5,491.93 2,125.42

Total E)_(p(.andlture other than Finance Cost, 3597.13 1386.01

Depreciation and Tax

Operating Pl‘-Ofl‘t/ (Loss) before Finance 1,894.80 73941

Cost, Depreciation and Tax

Less: Interest and Finance Charges 220.77 158.55

Less: Depreciation and amortization 150.37 120.00

expenses

Profit / (Loss) before Tax 1,523.66 460.86

Less: Provision for Taxation 388.04 109.61

Profit for the period 1,135.62 351.25

Other comprehensive

income/(Expenses) [net of tax]

Items that will not be reclassified to Profit

or (Loss), net of tax (L) Sl

Total com[:!rehenswe income/(Expenses) 1,135.77 351.07

for the period

Earning per equity share (Rs. Per share) 38.92 12.47

(b) OPERATING RESULTS

During the year, your Company has continued to create CGD infrastructure in the
Geographical Areas (GAs) of Banaskantha District in state of Gujarat, Fatehgarh
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Sahib District in the State of Punjab and Diu & Gir Somnath in the UT/State of Daman
& Diu and Gujarat respectively.

Backed by the robust infrastructure and increased CNG Stations rollout during the
year under review, the Company generated a Profit after Tax of Rs. 1,135.62 million
(PY: Rs. 351.25 million) with gross turnover of Rs. 5,461.43 million (PY: Rs. 2,118.08
million).

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Consolidated Financial Statements of your Company for the Financial Year
2021-22 are prepared in compliance with applicable provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with the Rules made thereunder. The Consolidated Financial
Statements have been prepared on the basis of audited financial statements of your
Company and joint control entities, as approved by their respective Board of
Directors. The Consolidated Financial Statements together with the Auditors’ Report
form part of this Annual Report.

(d) DIVIDEND

(e)

During the year under review, the Board of Directors declared and distributed an
Interim Dividend on the 3,49,99,432 10% Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference
Shares of Rs. 10/- each.

Further, the Board of Directors are pleased to recommend the final dividend of Rs.
0.50/- (5% on face value of Rs. 10 per share) on 2,93,69,677 Equity Shares of Rs.
10/- each for the financial year ended on March 31, 2022. The dividend is subject to
approval of member at the ensuing 7th Annual General Meeting.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

The Company has not transferred any amount to General Reserve during the year
under review.

CGD PROJECTS OVERVIEW

Your Company has set up critical infrastructure in the geographical areas of Banaskantha
District, Fatehgarh Sahib District and Diu & Gir Somnath District which comprises:

City Gate Station

Mother CNG Station

CNG Stations (Online and Daughter Booster)

Last mile connectivity for Domestic, Commercial and Industrial Segments

Steel and MDPE Pipeline infrastructure at various Demand Centers within the
Geographical area

The projects are being funded through mix of Debt and Equity. As on 31.03.2022, the
total debt outstanding from Banks is Rs. 1782.07 million (PY: Rs. 1466.44 million). The
debt repayment has started.
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During the year under review, the Company has been awarded authorisation for
Namakkal and Tiruchirappalli Districts in the state of Tamil Nadu from the Petroleum
and Natural Gas Regulatory Board under the 11t bidding round of City Gas Distribution.
Tiruchirappalli is the 3rd largest corporation in the State of Tamil Nadu and 4th largest
populated city of the State. There is a fair amount of presence of energy
equipment/engineering goods related industries in the region. It is geographically
centrally located in the state and connected to major ports (Ennore and Kochi- both have
roughly 350 kms distance).

SHARE CAPITAL

The paid-up share capital of the Company as on March 31, 2022 is Rs. 643.69 million
comprising of 2,93,69,677 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each and 3,49,99,432 10% Non-
Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each. During the year under
review, the Company has issued 3,70,206 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each on Right basis
at a premium of Rs. 32.5/- per share. The Company has only one class of equity shares
having par value to Rs. 10/- each. During the year under review, the Company has neither
issued shares with differential voting rights nor granted stock options or sweat equity.

CONVERSION OF COMPANY TO PUBLIC LIMITED COMPANY AND NAME CHANGE

The Company is converted from private limited to public limited company vide special
resolution passed at extra ordinary general meeting of the members of the company on
March 08, 2022 and consequent upon conversion, the name of the Company has been
changed from IRM Energy Private Limited to IRM Energy Limited with effect from March
23, 2022.

ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, the
Annual Return is available on the Company’s website at www.irmenergy.com.

LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS

The provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to loan, guarantee
or security are not applicable to the Company as the Company is engaged in
infrastructural facilities. The details of investment made during the year under review
are disclosed in financial statements.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Certain Related Party transactions that were entered during the year under review were
on arm’s length basis. Accordingly, the disclosure of related party transactions as
required under Section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013 in Form AOC 2 is not
applicable. Your directors draw attention of the Members to Note no. 33 of the
Standalone Financial Statements which sets out related party transaction disclosures.
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DEPOSITS

Pursuant to Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has not accepted the
deposits during the year under review.

HOLDING COMPANY

IRM Energy Limited is a subsidiary of Cadila Pharmaceuticals Limited.

ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

During the financial year 2021-22, the Company has subscribed in the equity shares of Ni
Hon Cylinders Private Limited, resulting in 50% stake in Ni Hon Cylinders Private
Limited.

The Company has three Joint Control Entities as on March 31, 2022. There has been no
material change in the nature of the business of the entities. Following are the three joint
control entities:

(a) Farm Gas Private Limited (FGPL)

FGPL incorporated on December 09, 2019 is engaged in the business of storage,
supply, distribution, sale and to otherwise deal in Compressed Natural Gas (CNG),
Liquefied Natural Gas (LNG), Bio Fuels or any other gaseous fuels and ancillary
services on commercial basis.

(b) Venuka Polymers Private Limited (VPPL)

VPPL incorporated on December 19, 2019 is engaged in the business of
manufacturing, supply, storage, trading, distribution, sale and to otherwise deal in
plastic pipes, HDPE and LDPE pipes, conduit for fibre optic cables, etc.

(c) NiHon Cylinders Private Limited (NHCPL)

NHCPL incorporated on November 26, 2018 is engaged in the business of
manufacture, assemble, convert, commercialize, design, develop, display, establish,
handle, let on hire, install, maintain, operate, produce, service, supervise, supply,
import, export, buy, sell of gas cylinders. The Company has acquired equity in
NHCPL on March 30, 2022.

Pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Ind - AS 110 issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, Consolidated Financial Statements presented
by the Company include the financial statements of its associates.

A separate statement containing the salient features of the financial performance of
associates in the prescribed form AOC - 1 is annexed to the Directors’ Report as Annexure
-A and forms part of this report. The Audited Consolidated financial statements together
with Auditors’ Report forms an integral part of the Annual Report.
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DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

(a)

(b)

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of the Company is led by the Chairman and comprises of eight
Directors as on March 31, 2022.

During the year under review, Mrs. Geeta Goradia (DIN: 00074343) was appointed
as Independent Director for a period of five years effective from March 08, 2022, by
the members in the Extra-ordinary General Meeting held on March 08, 2022.

After the year under review, Mr. Vinod Jain (DIN: 08204721), Director, ceased to be
the Director of the Company from his position w.e.f. July 13, 2022.

Mr. C K Gopal (DIN 08434324) was appointed as an Independent Director of the
company w.e.f. September 25, 2019 for a period of 3 years which will expire on
September 24, 2022. He is eligible for re-appointment for a second term under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

After taking into account the performance evaluation and considering the knowledge,
expertise and experience, the Board on the recommendation of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee has recommended the appointment of Mr. C K Gopal to the
members of the Company for a second term of five years as an Independent Director
of the Company with effect from September 25, 2022 to September 24, 2027.

The Board is of the opinion that Mr. C K Gopal possesses requisite qualification,
experience, expertise and holds high standards of integrity.

Based on the confirmations received from Directors, none of the Directors are
disqualified from appointment under Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Pursuant to the requirement of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Director) Rules, 2014, the
Independent Directors have submitted their declaration of independence stating that
they meet the criteria of independence as set out in the Companies Act, 2013.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and Articles of Association
of the Company, Mr. Amitabha Banerjee (DIN: 05152456) is liable to retire by
rotation and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment. The Board
recommends the re-appointment of the above director for your approval.

Kev Managerial Personnel

Mr. Karan Kaushal, Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Harshal Anjaria, Chief Finance Officer,
and Ms. Shikha Jain, Company Secretary are the Key Managerial Personnel of your
Company in accordance with the provisions of Sections 2(51), 203 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s)
for the time being in force).
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MEETINGS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Regular meetings of the Board are held to discuss and decide on various business
strategies, policies and other issues. A calendar of Board / Committee meetings for the
year is prepared and circulated to the Directors well in advance to enable them to plan
their schedule for effective participation in the meetings. During the year, eight meetings
of the Board of Directors were convened. The intervening gap between two consecutive

meetings was not more than one hundred and twenty days.

Name of Director Date of Board Meeting Total
No. of
Meeti

21.05.21| 22.06.21| 26.08.21| 24.09.21| 15.12.21 | 28.01.22 | 25.02.22 | 29.03.22 “fts

atten
tat

Mr. Maheswar Sahu N v v N v N v v 8/8

Dr. Rajiv L. Modi % v v N Vv N v % 6/8

Mr. Amitabha N N v N v N v v 8/8

Banerjee

Mr. Vinod Jain N N v v N v v v 8/8

Mr. Badri X NI v N % v v V 6/8

Mahapatra

Mr. C K Gopal % v v N N N v v 7/8

Mr. Anand Mohan N v v N N N v v 8/8

Tiwari

Mrs. Geeta Goradia v 1/1

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS’ MEETING

The Independent Directors met on March 28, 2022 without the attendance of Non-
independent Directors and the members of the Management. The independent directors
reviewed the performance of non-independent directors and the Board as whole, the
performance of the Chairperson of the Company and assessed the quality, quantity and
timeliness of flow of information between the Company management and the Board that
is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD
- Audit Committee:
The Board has constituted the Audit Committee to review of internal controls and
audit findings, review of financial statements, appointment of auditors amongst other

responsibilities as contained in the Terms of Reference.

The Composition of Audit Committee is detailed below:

Sr Name of Members Category Nature of
No. Membership
1. Mr. C K Gopal Independent Director Chairman

2. Mr. Anand Mohan Tiwari | Independent Director Member

3. Mr. Maheswar Sahu Non-Executive Director | Member




Nomination & Remuneration Committee

The Board has constituted the Nomination & Remuneration Committee to
recommend the recruitments of MDs, WTDs, Independent Directors, KMPs, as &
when applicable to the Company and to do all the acts pursuant to provisions of
Section 178 as per Companies Act, 2013.

The Composition of Nomination & Remuneration Committee is detailed below:

Sr Name of Members Category Nature of
No. Membership

1. Mr. Anand Mohan Tiwari | Independent Director Chairman

2. Mr. C K Gopal Independent Director Member

3. Mr. Maheswar Sahu Non-Executive Director | Member

Nomination and Remuneration Policy:

The Company has formulated and adopted the Nomination and Remuneration Policy
in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules issued
thereunder. This Policy is available on the website of the Company i.e.
www.irmenergy.com.

Management Committee:

The Board has constituted the Management Committee to oversee the day-to-day
management affairs of the Company.

The composition of the Management Committee is detailed below:

Sr Name of Members Category Nature of
No. Membership
1 Mr. Maheswar Sahu Non-executive Director | Chairman

2 Mr. Amitabha Banerjee Non-executive Director | Member

2 Mr. Badri Mahapatra Non-executive Director | Member

4 Mr. Vinod Jain* Non-executive Director | Member

* The Management Committee of the Board of Directors is reconstituted, whereunder
Mr. Vinod Jain, Non-executive Director, ceased to be a member of the Committee
w.e.f. July 13, 2022.

- Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board has constituted the
CSR Committee to formulate CSR policy, review and recommend to the Board amount

of expenditure to be incurred on the CSR activities.

The composition of the CSR Committee is detailed below:
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Sr Name of Members Category Nature of
No. Membership
1. Mr. Maheswar Sahu Non-executive Director | Chairman

2. Mr. C K Gopal Independent Director Member

3. Mr. Vinod Jain* Non-executive Director | Member

4. Mrs. Geeta Goradia* Independent Director Member

* Mr. Vinod Jain is ceased to be a member w.e.f. July 13, 2022.

#Mrs. Geeta Goradia is appointed as a member of the committee w.e.f. July 22, 2022
succeeding Mr. Vinod Jain.

The Annual Report on CSR activities is annexed to this report as Annexure -B.

The CSR policy is available on your Company’s website www.irmenergy.com.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

In terms of Section 134 (3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, in relation to financial
statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2022, the Board of Directors
state that:

ii.

1il.

the applicable Accounting Standards have been followed in preparation of the
financial statements and there are no material departures from the said standards;

reasonable and prudent accounting policies have been used in preparation of the
financial statements and that they have been consistently applied and that
reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates have been made in respect of items
not concluded by the year end, so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Company as at March 31, 2022 and of the profit for the year ended on that date;

proper and sufficient care has been taken for maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and
other irregularities.

iv. the financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis;

v. proper internal financial controls were in place and were adequate and operating
effectively; and

vi. proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of applicable laws were in
place and were adequate and operating effectively.

BOARD EVALUATION

Pursuant to applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board, in consultation
with its Nomination & Remuneration Committee, has formulated a framework



¢)IRM

/ Energy

containing, inter-alia, the criteria for performance evaluation of the entire Board of the
Company, its committees and individual Directors, including Independent Directors.

The annual performance evaluation of the Board, its Committees and each Director has
been carried out for the financial year 2021-22 in accordance with the framework.

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

The Company has in place a Risk Management framework for a systematic approach to
control risks. The Risk Management process is appropriately handled by functional heads
/ business process owners. As on date, the Company do not envisage risks which could
threaten the existence of the Company.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS AND ITS ADEQUACY

The Company maintains appropriate systems of internal controls, including monitoring
procedures, to ensure that all assets and investments are safeguarded against loss from
unauthorized use or disposition. Company policies, guidelines and procedures provide
for adequate checks and balances and are meant to ensure that all transactions are
authorized, recorded and reported correctly.

The Internal Auditors review the efficiency and effectiveness of these systems and
procedures. The Internal Auditors submit their Report periodically which is placed
before and reviewed by the Audit Committee.

VIGIL MECHANISM

The Company has established a robust Vigil Mechanism and adopted a Whistle Blower
Policy in accordance with provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, to provide a formal
mechanism to the Directors and employees to report their concerns about unethical
behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct or
ethics policy. The Policy provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of
employees who avail of the mechanism and also provides for direct access to the
Chairman of the Audit Committee. The policy of vigil mechanism is available on the
Company’s website www.irmenergy.com

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS

There are no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators / Courts which
would impact the going concern status of the Company and its future operations.

DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT THE

WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

Your Company has a Policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment at Workplace which is in
line with requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 (“POSH Act”). The objective of this policy is to
provide an effective complaint redressal mechanism if there is an occurrence of sexual
harassment.
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Your Company has also set up an Internal Complaints Committee which is duly
constituted in compliance with the provisions of the POSH Act. Further, the Company also
conducts interactive sessions for employees, to build awareness about the policy and the
provisions of POSH Act.

HEALTH, SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENT POLICY

The Company has formulated Health, Safety and Environment Policy to conduct the
business with a strong environment conscience, ensuring sustainable development, safe
workplaces and enrichment of the quality of life of its employees, customers and the
community.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s. Mukesh M. Shah & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No.106625W]),
were appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office for a second term
of five years from the conclusion of the 6t Annual General meeting till the conclusion 11t
Annual General Meeting.

Statutory Auditors’ Report

The Auditor’s Report for the financial year 2021-22 does not contain any qualification,
reservation or adverse remark. The Auditor’s Report is enclosed with the financial
statement in this Annual Report.

COST AUDIT REPORT

Your Company has re-appointed M/s Dalwadi & Associates, Cost Accountants (Firm
Registration No. 000338) to conduct the audit of cost records maintained for Petroleum
Products of the Company for the financial year 2022-23 at a remuneration of Rs.
1,25,000/- plus applicable taxes and out of pocket expense. The remuneration is subject
to the approval of shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The Cost Audit
Report for Financial year 2021-22 will be submitted to the Central Government in the
prescribed format within stipulated time period.

The company has maintained the cost accounts and records in accordance with Section
148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made
thereunder, the Board has appointed M/s. M. C. Gupta & Co., Company Secretaries, as
Secretarial Auditor of the Company to carry out the secretarial audit of the Company for
FY 2022-23. The Company has received the Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year
2021-22 which forms part of this report as Annexure - C. There were no qualification,
reservation or adverse remarks or disclaimers given by the Secretarial Auditor of the
Company.
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DETAILS OF FRAUD REPORTED BY AUDITORS

During the year under review, the auditors have not reported any instances of fraud
committed against the Company by its officers or employees to the Audit Committee or
Board under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The statement containing particulars of employees as required under Section 197 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 will be provided upon request. In
terms of Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Report and Accounts are being sent
to the Members and others entitled thereto, excluding the information on employees’
particulars which is available for inspection by the members at the Registered Office of
the Company during business hours on working days of the Company. If any member is
interested in obtaining a copy thereof, such Member may write to the Company Secretary
in this regard.

COMPLIANCES

The Company has complied with all the statutory requirements and framed requisite
policies and procedures, in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and the rules formed thereunder.

MATERIAL CHANGES, TRANSACTIONS AND COMMITMENTS

There has not been any material change or commitment affecting the financial position
of the company which have been occurred between the end of the financial year of the
company to which this financial statement relates and the date of this report.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS & OUTGO

Details of conservation of Energy, Technology and Absorption, Foreign Exchange
Earnings and Outgo are provided in Annexure - D.

HUMAN RESOURCES

Relations with employees across all the offices and units continued to be cordial
throughout the year. The HR team made good strides during the year and at the closure
of financial year, IRMEL’s head count was 115. IRMEL maintains a congenial working
environment by providing stable employment, safe working conditions and job
satisfaction, which encourages the employees to contribute their best. Our responsible
approach to structured working conditions includes fair treatment at work, equitable
compensation system and flexible working arrangements. HR Policies are revisited in a
time bound manner to keep abreast with the industry practices. Your Directors place on
record, their sincere appreciation of the significant contribution made by the employees
at all levels through their dedication, hard work and commitment.
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Annexure - 4

FORM NO.AOC-1
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of
Subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Part "A": Subsidiaries

1. S No.

2. Name of the subsidiary - Not Applicable

3. Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from the holding company's
reporting period

4. Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the relevant financial year in
the case of foreign subsidiaries.

5. Share capital

6. Reserves & surplus

7. Total assets

8. Total Liabilities

9. Investments

10. Turnover

11. Profit before taxation

12. Provision for taxation

13. Profit after taxation

14. Proposed Dividend

15. % of shareholding

Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement:
1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year.



Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures

Annexure - A

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies

and Joint Ventures

Sr | Name of Associates Farm Gas | Venuka Polymers | Ni Hon
No. Private Limited | Private Limited Cylinders
Private
Limited
1. | Latest Balance sheet date 31.03.2022 31.03.2022 31.03.22
2. | Date on which Associate or 09.12.2019 19.12.2019 30.03.2022
Joint Ventures was associated
or acquired
B Shares of Associate or Joint
Ventures held by the Company
on the year end
No. 10,49,600 10,50,800 50,000
Amount of Investment in 1,04,96,000 1,05,08,000 5,00,000
Associates/Joint Venture
Extent of holding (%) 50% 50% 50%
4. | Description of how there is % of holding % of holding % of holding
significant influence
5. | Reason why the associate/joint N.A. N.A. N.A.
venture is not consolidated
6. | Net worth attributable to 48,87,99,003 5,28,59,640
Shareholding as per latest
audited Balance Sheet
7. | Profit / Loss for the year 41,32,83,153 (80,41,657)
Considered in Consolidation 41,32,83,153 (80,41,657)
Not Considered in - -
Consolidation

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

=

Chairman
DIN: 00034051

A v, )ﬂr‘/v\\%

Harshal Anlaria
Chief Financial Officer

Place:Ahmedabad
Date: July 22, 2022

t
L’ iy

Vinod Jain
Director
DIN: 08204721

Qo
Shikha Jain
Company Secretary

et

Karan Kaushal

Chief Executive Officer




Annexure - B

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY ACTIVITIES

1. A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or programs

proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the web link to the CSR policy and

projects or programs:

The Company’s CSR policy intends to operate its activities in providing clean energy solutions
to its customers in a manner that is efficient, safe & ethical, which minimizes negative impact
on environment and enhances quality of life of the community, towards sustaining a holistic
business. The Company undertakes a number of CSR activities in larger interest of the
community, especially in the area of clean energy promotion, health, education, women

empowerment, and childcare and environment protection

The CSR policy of the Company covers the proposed CSR activities in line with Section 135 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and Schedule VII thereto. The CSR Policy of the Company may be

accessed on the Company’s website www.irmenergy.com.

. The composition of CSR Committee:

The composition of the CSR Committee is detailed below:

Sr Name of Director Designation | Number of meetings of | Number of meetings

No. CSR Committee held | of CSR Committee
during the year attended during the

year

1 Mr. Maheswar Sahu Chairman 2 2

2 Mr. Vinod Jain* Member 2 2

3 Mr. C K Gopal Member 2 2

4 Mrs. Geeta Goradia” Member - -

* Mr. Vinod Jain is ceased to be a member w.e.f. July 13, 2022.

# Mrs. Geeta Goradia is appointed a member of the committee w.e.f. July 22, 2022

succeeding Mr. Vinod Jain.

Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR
committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by
the board are disclosed on the website of the Company

Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR
projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule
8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility
Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report).:

Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance
of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate
Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount
required for set off for the financial year, if any

Average net profit of the Company as per Section
135(5):

(a) Two percent of average net profit of the Company
as per section 135(5):

https://www.irmenergy.com
/corporate-governance

Not Applicable

NIL

Rs. 29,98,10,411/-

Rs. 59,96,208//-
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(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or Nil
programmes or activities of the previous financial
years

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial Nil
year, if any

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b- Rs. 59,96,208/-
7c)

8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Total Amount Unspent (in Rs)

Amount Total Amount transferred | Amount transferred to any fund specified

spent  for | to unspent CSR account as | under Schedule VII as per second proviso

the financial | per Section 135(6) to Section 135 (5)

year (in Rs.) | Amount Date of | Name of the | Amount Date of
transfer fund transfer

60,30,000 NA NA NA NA NA

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: NA

(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial

year:
1 |2 (3) 4 | (5 © (@) (8
Sr Name of the project | Item | Loc | Location of the | Am | Mo | Mode of implementation -
No from | al Project oun | de through implementation
the Are t of agency
list of | a spe | imp
activi | (Ye nt lem
ties s/N for | ent
in 0) the | atio
Sched proj | n -
ule State District | ect | Dir | Name CSR
VII to (In | ect Registration
the lak | Yes No.
Act hs) /No
1. Green initiative into | (iv) No Gujarat | Mehsana | 20 No Indrashil CSR00003497
Energy Sector and to Kaka Ba &
promote usage of Kaka Budh
clean & green fuel in Public
transport sector for Charitable
students. Trust
2. Green initiative into | (iv) Yes | Gujarat | Ahmedab | 20 No Aspire CSR00007314
Energy Sector and to ad Disruptive
promote usage of Skill
clean & green fuel in Foundation
transport sector for
students.
i Capacity Building of | (ii) No Gujarat | Mehsana | 13 No Indrashil CSR00003497
students Kaka Ba &
Kaka Budh
Public
Charitable
Trust
4, Empowerment of | (%) No Gujarat | Dahod 5 No N M | CSR00000285
tribal and  rural Sadguru
communities  with Water and
natural resources Developme
restored, developed nt
and expanded in the Foundation
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selected project
areas.
5. Skill  training to | (ii) No Gujarat | Gandhina | 2 No Aspire CSR00007314
youth belonging to gar Disruptive
needy and deprived Skill
background. Foundation

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil
(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: NA
(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e) : Rs. 60,30,000/-

(g) Excess amount for set off, if any

Sr | Particulars Amount

No (In Rs.)

i. | Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per Section 59,96,208
135(5)

ii. | Total amount spent for the Financial Year 60,30,000
iii. | Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] 33,792
iv. | Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities Nil

of the previous financial years, if any

v. | Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] 33,792

9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: Not Applicable

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the
preceding financial year(s): Not Applicable

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the
asset so created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year (asset-wise
details)

(a) | Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset (s) NA
(b) | Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset NA
(c) | Details ofthe entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose | NA
name such capital asset is registered, their address etc.
(d) | Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired | NA
(including complete address and location of the capital asset)
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11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average
net profit as per Section 135(5): Not applicable

Mr. Karan Kaushal ME. Maheswar Sahu
Chief Executive Officer Chairman CSR Committee
DIN: 00034051
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FORM NO. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 March, 2022

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule no.9 of the Companies
p p
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

IRM Energy Limited,

4™ Floor, Block 8, Magnet Corporate Park,
Near Sola Bridge,

S G Highway,

Ahmedabad 380 054.

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by IRM Energy Limited (CIN: U40100GJ2015PLC085213).
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of IRM Energy Limited’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit,
we hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial
year ended on 31% March, 2022 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that
the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by IRM Energy Limited, having its Registered Office at 4™ Floor, Block 8, Magnet
Corporate Park, Near Sola Bridge, S G Highway, Ahmedabad 380 054 for the financial year ended
on 31% March, 2022, according to the provisions of:

i The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA”) and the rules made there under;
(Not Applicable)

1ii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;
iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to
the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External

Commercial Borrowings; (Not Applicable during the year under report);

V. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’): (Not Applicable being an Unlisted Company)

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

(T

/703 Mauryansh Elanza,\
Nr Farekh’s Hospital,
Shyama Cad

,Jigpryansh Elanza, Nr. Parekh’s Hospital, Shyamal Cross Roads, Satellite, Ahmedabad - 380 015
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(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015;

(¢) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits)
Regulations, 2014;

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2009 and;

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018;

vi.  The Company has complied with the following specifically other applicable laws to the
Company:

(a) The Petroleum and Natural Gas Regulatory Board Act, 2006;
(b) The Environment (Protection) Act 1986;

(c) The Explosives Act, 1884;

(d) The Gujarat State Disaster Management Act, 2003;

(¢) The Hazardous Waste (Management & Handling) Rules, 2016.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
i.  Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

ii. ~ The Company is not a listed entity and the compliance of the provisions of SEBI (Listing
Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015 is not applicable.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the

Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with
the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on
agenda were generally sent at least seven days in advance and a system exists for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting.

There were no dissenting views on any matter.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with
the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.

2
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We further report that during the audit period the company has no specific events / actions having a

major bearing on the company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations,
guidelines, standards, etc. except the following:

1. The members of the Company at the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 23™ February,
2022 had resolved to issue up to 6,15,000 equity shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each at a
premium of Rs. 415/- per Equity Share to Shizouka Gas Co Limited, Japan, on private
placement basis. The said Private Placement is not yet effected.

2. The members of the Company at the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 8 March, 2022
had resolved for conversion of the company as a Public Limited Company and also authorised
the Board of Directors to borrow money upto Rs. 900 crores outstanding at any point of time.
The fresh certificate of incorporation consequent upon conversion has been issued by
Ministry of Corporate Affairs on 23" March, 2022 and accordingly, the name of the company
stands changed to IRM Energy Limited.

3. The Company has acquired 50% equity in Ni Hon Cylinders Private Limited on 30" March,
2022 and the said company has become an associate company.

For M. C. Gupta & Co.
Company Secretaries
UCN: S1986GJ003400

(et Vlalaeals Gupnld
i w Mahesh C Gupta
fhadinad 1 Proprietor
FCS: 2047 (CP: 1028)
Peer Review No0.579/2019
UDIN: F002047D000346215

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 19" May, 2022

Note: This Report is to be read with Our Letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure “A” and
forms an integral part of this report.
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Annexure: “A”

To,

The Members,

IRM Energy Limited,

4™ Floor, Block 8, Magnet Corporate Park,
Near Sola Bridge,

S G Highway,

Ahmedabad 380 054.

Our Report of even date is to be read along with this Letter;

1. Maintenance of Secretarial Record is the responsibility of the management of the company.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on Secretarial Records based on our Audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial Records. The verification was
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. We believe
that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of
accounts of the company.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management Representation about the compliance of
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5.  The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited to the
verification of the procedures on test basis.

6.  The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor
of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the
company.

For M. C. Gupta & Co.
= Company Secretaries
UCN: 51986GJ003400

Mahesh C Gupta

Proprietor

FCS: 2047 (CP: 1028)

Peer Review No0.579/2019
UDIN: F002047D000346215

7 703, Maryansh Elan \\0

I|I * { N: #arexh’s Hospital, | #
var 21oss Roads,

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 19% May, 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of IRM Energy Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of IRM Energy Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the
balance sheet as at 315t March 2022, the statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indiarn Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, {‘Ind AS’) and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31%* March, 2022, and profit and other comprehensive
income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board’s Report and Other Relevant Information contained
therein, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. ’

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conciude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

+91-79-2647 2000 | contact@mmsco.in | www.mmsco.in
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Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation and presentation of these standalone financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsiblie for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. ‘

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintaih
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: \'

a) ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

b) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companie
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Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

¢) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

d) Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a |
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern,

e) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

f) Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the Company
to express an opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors
in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiengies in internal
control that we identify during our audit. ' :

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevént
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards. \

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Ord:er"), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A" a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

+91-79-2647 2000 | contact@mmsco.in | www.mmsco.in
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As required by Section 143(3) ofthe Act, we report that:

a)

b)

d)

f)

g)

+91-79-2647 2000 | contact@mmsco.in | www.mmsco.in

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement and statement of
Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with Indian Accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31t March, 2022
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March,
2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company
to its Directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has no pending litigations on its financial position in its financial statements.

ii.  The Company has made provision as required under the applicable law or accounting
standards, on material foreseeable losses, if any on long term derivative contract;

iii.  There are no amounts which are required to be transferred Investor:Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and
belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed
funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or
in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
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(b) The management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and
belief, no funds have been received by the company from any persons or entities,
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on such audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and
- appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us
to believe that the representations given under (a) and (b) above, contain any
material mis-statement.

v.  The final dividend paid by the company during the year in respect of the same
declared for the previous year is in accordance with section 123 of the act to the
extent it applies to payment of dividend.

For Mukesh M. Shah & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 106625W

J\'\AAAM/",
i

Harsh P. Kejriwal

Partner

Membership No.:128670
Place: Ahmedabad

Date: 19/05/2022 _
UDIN: 22128670AMNZV06532
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“Annexure — A” referred to in the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of
IRM Energy Limited on the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the
Standalone financial statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and
explanations given to us and the books of account and other records examined by us in the normal
course of audit, we report that:

1. (a) i) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
gquantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

ii) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particular of intangible
assets.

(b) Some of the fixed assets were physically verified during the year by the management in
accordance with programme of verification, which in our opinion provides for physical
verification of all the fixed assets at reasonable intervals. According to the information
and explanations given to us no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.
In our opinion, the frequency of verification of the fixed assets is reasonable having regard
to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. .

(c) According to the to the information and explanations given to us and the records
examined by us and based on the examination of the registered sale deed / transfer deed
/ conveyance deed provided to us, we report that, the title deeds, comprising all the
immovable properties of land and buildings which are freehold, are held in the name of
the ‘Company as at the balance sheet date. In respect of immovable properties of land
that have been taken on lease and disclosed under property, plant and equipment in the
financial statements, the lease agreements are duly executed in the name of the
Company, where the Company is lessee in the agreement.

(d)  According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by
us and based on the examination, the company has not revalued any of its property, plant
and equipment (including Right of Use assets) and intangible assets during the year.

(e)  According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by
us and based on the examination, no proceedings have been initiated durmg the year or
are pending against the Company as at 31t March, 2022 for holding any benami property
under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules
made thereunder.

2. (a). Theinventories have been physically verified by the management during the year. In our
opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable and coverage and procedure for
such verification is appropriate, having regard to the size of the Company and nature of
its business. No discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of
inventories were noticed on such physical verification of inventories when compared
with books of account.
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(b)  As Disclosed in note 14 to the standalone financial statements the company has been
sanctioned with working capital limit in excess of five crorein aggregate from bank during
the year on the basis of security of current assets of the company. The quarterly
statements filed by the company are materially in agreement with the books of account
of the Company, except detailed as hereunder: '

(Amt in Million)
Quarter Particular Value - as | Value as | Amount Reason for
Ended per Books | per of Discrepancy
of quarterly Difference
Account statement
September | [nventory 15.07 15.07 - | - Difference is on
2021 account of
Receivable 7 passed
subsequently  to
Trade Payable 90.73 76.19 14.55 | oy
filling of stock
Net Difference ' 9.98 statement
December | Inventory 15.08 14.92 0.16 | - Subsequent to
2021 . year end, Company
Trade 219.65 220.03 (0.38) | has submitted the
Receivable revised statement
with the banks and
Trade Payable 141.98 126.71 15.28 | revised balances
are in agreement
Net Difference 15.06 | with the books of
accounts.
3. (a) During the year the company has made investments and also provided loans or advances

in the nature of loans and also provided guarantee to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships and other parties details are as follows:

(Amount in Million)
Particular Loans | Guarantees

A. Aggregate amount granted/provided during the year ;
-+ Joint Venture : 74.90 { =

- Other ‘

B. Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date
- Joint Venture - 7490 | 507

- Other ‘

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the terms and conditions of
the grant of the above-mentioned loan are, in our opinion, prima facie, not prejudiciél to

the Company’s interest. ,
(c) According to the information and explanations given to us,: .schedule of repayment of
principal has been stipulated and repayment of principal is not yet due.
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(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of books of accounts, there is no overdue loans for more than 90 days at the
balance sheet date.

(e) According to the information and explanation given to us, none of the loans or advances
in the nature of loans granted by the Company have fallen due during the year.

(f)  According to the information and explanation given to us, company has not granted any
loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying
any terms or period of repayment to Promoters and related parties as defined in clause
(76) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013.

4. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the
provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Act, in respect of grant of loans, making investments
and providing guarantees and securities.

5. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the Public within the meaning of the
provisions of section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed
thereunder, to the extent applicable, accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(v) of
the order is not applicable to the company.

6. We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company, pursuant to the
Rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under sub-section
(1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company’s products and are of the opinion that,
prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. However,
we have not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether
they are accurate or complete.

7. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the books of account, the company has been generally regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State
Insurance, Income-tax, Sales-tax, Service tax, Custom duty, Excise duty, Value added Tax, Cess
and any other material statutory dues during the 'year with the appropriate authorities.
Moreover, as at March 31, 2022, there are no such undisputed dues payable for a period of
more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations. given to us, there are no such dues as at -
March 31, 2022 which have not been deposited/paid on account of any dispute.

8.  The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the
books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act; 1961 as income during the
year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to

the Company.

9. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the books of account, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of

debenture holders during the year.
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(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

10. (a)

(b)

11. {(a)

(b)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the books of account, the company is not declared as willful defaulter by
any bank of financial institution or other landers.

According to the information and explanation given to us, term loans are applied for the
purpose for which the loans are obtained. |

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the books of account, we report that the funds raised on short term basis
have not been utilized for the long-term purpose

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the books of account, the company has not taken any funds from any
entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its associates or joint ventures.
According to the information and explanations giveh to us and on the basis of our
examination of the books of account, company has not raised any toans during the year
on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.

The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer /
further public offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on
clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
/fully or partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and
hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or
on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the
year.

No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by
the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

(c) Asrepresented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received

by the Company during the year.

12. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is

not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.
13. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of

the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
sectiori 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and details of such
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as:required by the applicable

accounting standard.
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14,

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

(a) According to information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, we are of the opinion that the Company has an adequate internal
audit system commensurate with the size and the nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the company issued till date, for the
period under audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with
directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act 1934. Hence, reporting under clause (xvi)(a), (b}, {c) and (d) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year
and in the immediately preceding financial year;

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year,
Accordingly, reporting under clause (xviii) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements
and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further
state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither
give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.
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20. The Company has fully spent the required amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility {CSR) and
there are no unspent CSR amount for the year requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule
VIl to the Companies Act or special account in compliance with the provision of sub-section (6) of
section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause (xx) of the Order is not applicable
for the year.

For MUKESH M. SHAH & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 106625W

o

Harsh P. Kejriwal

Partner

Membership No.: 128670
Place: Ahmedabad

Date: 19/05/2022

UDIN: 22128670AMNZV06532

+91-79-2647 2000 | contact@mmsco.in | www.mmsco.in

7t Floor, Heritage Chambers, Behind Bikanerwala Sweets, Near Azad Society, Nehru Nagar, Ahmedabad-380015




MUKESH M. SHAH & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

“Annexure B” to the Auditors’ Report — March 31, 2022

Report on the Internal Financial Control clause (i) of sub-section 3 of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of IRM Energy Limited (“the
company”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial control
based on the internal contro! over financial reporting criteria established by the company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India [ICAI].
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

As per Section 143(3)(i) our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company’s internal financial
controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”)
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of
the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit
of Internal Controls and, both issued by the ICA! Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial control system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understandfng of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weaknéss exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s Judgement, including the assessment
of the material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error..

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
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A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures

that:

1. . Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

2. Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

3. Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized

acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material on the
financial statements.

Inherent limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected, also, projections any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. "

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For MUKESH M. SHAH & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 106625W

Harsh P. Kejriwal

Partner

Membership No.: 128670
Place: Ahmedabad

Date : 19/05/2022

UDIN: UDIN: 22128670AMNZV06532
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IRM ENERGY LIMITED
SEPARATE BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2022

{Unless ofherwise stated. all amounts are in Million indian Rupees)

Parficulars Note No. Asal March 31,1 ) ¢ ot March 31, 2021
2022
ASSETS
Non-current assels
a) Property, plant and equipment 3.1 2,848.19 2.307.99
b) Capital work-in-progress 3.2 522.84 197.02
c) Intangibles assets 3.3 26.54 26.48
d) Right to Use Assets 3.4 129.43 71.47
e) Intangibles under Development 35 1.93 1.93
f) Financial assets
{i) Investments 4A 114.82 64.01
{ii) Loans T O5A 77.42 -
{iiy Other financiat assets 58 181.75 42.23
g) Other non-current assets 6 88.31 95.19
h) Cument Tax Asset (Net)
3,991.23 2,806.32
Current assets
a) Inventories 7 17.16 8.05
b} Financial assets -
{i} Investments 4B 102.78 13.76
(i} Trade receivables 8 227.12 111.84
(i} Cash and cash equivalents 9A 591.49 257.52
{iv) Bank balances other than (iii} above 98 405.56 156.74
{v] Loans - -
{vi) Other financial assets 10 26.50 6.09
c} Other current assets 11 4417 23.40
1,414.78 577.42
Tolal Assets 5,406.01 3,383.74
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES :
Equlty
a) Equity share capital 12 293.70 289.99
b) Other equity 13 2,001.47 888.49
Total equity 2,295.17 1,178.68
Liabilities
Non-current llabilltles
a} Financial Liabilities
{i} Borrowings 14A 1,867.60 1,581.82
{ii) Trade payables ’ - -
{iiy Other financial liabilities : 16 303.45 . 193.09
b) Provisions 17A 9.35 7.00
c) Deferred tax liabilites (Net) ’ 19 147.12 C 93.58
' 2,327.52 187549
Current liabilities
a) Financial Liabilities
i) Borrowings ©14B 158.32 51.69
{ii) Trade payables - - 15
- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 2.43 11.21
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 248.50 89.39
and small enterprises :
{iii} Other financial liabilities 16 228.00 147.45
b} Provisions 178 0.41 0.11
¢} Other current liabilities 18 61.41 29.72
d) Current tax liabilities {Net) 84.25 -
783.32 329.57
Total Equity and Liabilitles 5,404.01 3,383.74

See accompanying notes 1o the financial statements

As per our report of even date
For Mukesh M Shah & Co.
Charlered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 106625W

For and on behalf of the Board

®eo

|_:(
Harsh Kejriwal @ ' Vinod Jaln
Partner hairm&n Director
Membership Number : 128670 L L“L N
Ahmedabad, Dated : 19th May, 2022 B - /Q.W -

arah Kaushal Harshal Anjaria
CEO CFO

-

7

Company Secretary

Ahmedabad, Dated : 19th May, 2022




IRM ENERGY LIMITED

SEPARATE PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

{Unless otherwise stated, all amounis are in Million Indian Rupees)

\ For the year ending | For the year ending
Particulars Note No. March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
REVENUE :

Revenue from Operations 20 5,461.42 2,118.09
Other Non-operating Income 21 30.50 7.33
5,491.92 2,125.42
EXPENSES :
Purchases of stock-in-trade of natyral gas 22 2,492.27 770.86
Changes in Inventories of Finished goods, Work-in-progress and 23 (9.96) {0.20)
Stock-in-Trade
Excise Duty on Sale of Compressed Natural Gas 389.98 222.44
Employee Benefits Expense 24 71.58 41.11
Finance Costs 25 220.77 158.55
Depreciation and Amortisation expense 26 150.37 120.00
Other Expenses 27 653.27 351.79
3,968.28 1,664.55
Profit before Tax 1,523.64 460.87
Tax Expense
- Corporate Tax 28 334.50 89.89
- Deferred Tax 28 53.54 19.72
Profit tor the year 1,135.60 351.26
Other Cqmprehensive income
i. items that will not be reclassified to profit or foss
a. Remeasurements of the defined benefit asset [0.15) 0.18
b. Income tax related to this items -
(0.15) 0.18
Total comprehensive income 1,135.75 351.08
Earnings Per Share (Face Value of Rs. 10 each) 34
Basic 38,92 12.47
Diluted 38.92 12.47

See accompanying notes o the financial statements

As per our report of even date

For Mukesh M Shah & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 106625W

Harsh Kejriwal

Partner

Membership Number : 128670
Ahmedabaod, Dated : 19th May, 2022

For and on behdlf of the Board

Four
EMLL

fee
Karan Kaushal
CEO

Company Secretary

Ahmedabad, Dated : 19th May, 2022

St

-r—‘-—’
Vinod lain
Director

Harshal Anjaria
CFO

S

Shikha Jain




IRM ENERGY LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT AS AT MARCH 31, 2022

{Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in Million Indian Rupees)

Pariculars For the period ending
Mar- 2022 Mar- 2021
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Net profit before tax and extraordinary items 1,523.64 460.70
Adjustment for:
Interest Income (29.29) {7.03)
Interest and Finance Charges 220.77 158.55
Provision for iIncome (11.83) (1.83)
Depreciation and Amortisation expense 150.37 120.00
Operating profit before working capital changes 1,853.66 730.39
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Assets (413.78) (292.01)
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories (9.11) (1.10)
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivable (115.2¢) (63.06)
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables 150.33 28.50
Increase/{Decrease) in Financial Liabilities 130.08 63.28
Increase/{Decrease) in Other Liabiiities 2.61 124,25
Cash generated from operation 1,598.53 590.26
Direct taxes paid (inct TDS) (218.37) (91.47)
Cash flow before extraordinary items 1,380.16 498.79
Net cash from operating activities {a} 1,380.16 ) 498.79
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Interest Income 28.75 6.46
Investment (139.84) (76.27)
Inter Company Loan (77.42} -
Purchase of Fixed Assets (incl. capital work in progress) {1,008.68) (464.39)
Net cash used in investing activities {b) (1,197.18) (6534.19)
C. Cash fiow from financing actlivities
Proceeds from equity shares issued 15.73 43.55
Proceeds from Banks Borrowings 375.6% 172.10
Interest and Finance Cost (193.54) (136.67)
Lease cost (11.90) (9.33)
Stamp duty on issue of shares - (1.13)
Dividend {35.00) -
Proceeds from preference shares issued - 34.14
Net cash from financing activities (c) 150.99 102.67
Net increase / (decrease) in cash ond cash equivalents (a+b+c) 333.97 67.27
Cash and cash equivalents — opening balance 257.52 190.25
Cash and cash equivalents — closing balance 591.49 257.52
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents with the Balance sheet:
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year comprises
{a} Balance with banks
Balance in Current Accounts 591.17 : 257.27
{b) Cash on hand 0.32 0.25
591.49 257.52

Notes:

Changes

(i) The cash Flow statement reflects the cash flows pertaining to continuing operations.
(i) The cash Flow statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method"” as set outin IND AS - 7 Cash Flow Statement”

(i) Disclosure of changes in licbilities arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash




As at March 31, 2022

Change in fair

Partner
Membership Number : 128670
Ahmedabad, Dated : 19th May, 2022

W

Karan Kaushal
CEO

Ahmedabad, Dated : 19th May, 2022

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 Cash Flows value/accruals As at March 31, 2022
Non Cumrent Bomowings 1,581.82 285.78 - 1,867.60
Current maturity of Non-Current borrowings 51.69 56.64 - 108.34
Current Borrowings - 49.98 - 49.98
Total 1,633.51 392.40 - 2,025.91
As at March 31, 2021

. Change in fair

Particulars As at March 31, 2020 Cash Flows value/accruals As at March 31, 2021
Non Curent Borrowings 1,449.25 132.57 - 1,581.82
Current maturity of Non-Current borrowings - 51.69 - 51.69
Current Borrowings - - - v
Total 1,449.25 184.26 - 1,633.51
See accompanying notes fo the financial statements
As per our report of even date
For Mukesh M Shah & Co. For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 106625W

AA Chambers, %ﬂ (v_l

NeMuNaqdlir. A(_\ . [uu.wu/
Harsh Kejriwal A. Sahu Vinod Jain
Chairman Director

P

Harshal Anjaria
CFO

hikha lain
Company Secretary
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IRM ENERGY LIMITED

Notes to the Separate Financial Statements

1. Company Information

IRM Energy Limited {formerly known as IRM Energy Private Limited) was incorporated on Olst
December, 2015 with the object, inter alia of undertaking or carry out the business of
storage, supply, distribution & sale of natural gas & business relating to or incidental to the
laying, operating, maintaining & expanding of the City Gas Distribution Networks. The
Company was converted into Public Company effective 23 March, 2022. The Company is
currently supplying natural gas in Banaskantha District in the State of Guijarat, Fatehgarh
Sahib District in the State of Punjab and at Diu and Gir Somnath Districts in the State of
Gujarat as per the authorisation granted by Petroleum & Natural Gas Regulatory Board
(PNGRB).

The Company was awarded the authorisation for City Gas Distribution in the geographical
areas of Namakkal and Tiruchirappadlli Districts in the State of Tamil Nadu in March, 2022.

The separate financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (INR) which is also
Functional Currency of the Company. The financial statements were authorised forissue by
the Board of Directors on 19th May, 2022.

2. Basis of Preparation & Measurement

The separate financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance
with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as amended from
time to time. The significant accounting policies that are used in the preparation of these
financial statements are summarised below:

2.1 Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention & on an
accrual basis, except for certain items that are measured at fair value as required by .
relevant Ind AS:

e Financial assets & financial liabilities measured initially at fair value (refer
accouniing policy on financial Instruments);
o Defined benefit & other long-term employee benefits.

2.2 Current vs Non-Current Classification

The Company presents assets & liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-
current classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:

e Expectedtoberedlised orintended to be sold or consumed in normal operating
cycle

o Held primarily for the purpose of trading

o Expected fo be redlised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

« Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to
setfle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current

A liability is treated as current when:
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It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets & liabilities are classified as non-cumrent assets & liabilities.

The operating cycle is the fime between the acquisition of assets for processing & their
redlisation in cash & cash equivalents.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Company's accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or area where assumptions &
estimates are significant to these financial statements are disclosed below.

The preparation of Financial Statements in conformity with the Accounting Standards
generdlly accepted in India requires, the management to make estimates &
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets & liabilities & disclosure of
contingent liabilities as the date of the financial statements & reported amounts of
revenues & expenses for the year. Actual results could differ from these estimates. Any
revision to accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in current & future periods.

When preparing the financial statements, management undertakes a number of
judgments’, estimates & assumptions about the recognition & measurement of assets,
liabilities, income & expenses. In the process of applying the Company’s accounting
policies, the following judgments have been made apart from those involving
estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial information. Judgements are based on the information available af the date
of balance sheet. C

(i) Income Taxes: Significant judgments are involved in determining the
provision for income taxes, including amount expected to be
paid/recovered for uncertain tax positions.

(ii) Property, plant & equipment: Property, plant & equipment represent a
significant proportion of the asset base of the Company. The charge in
respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate
of an asset's expected useful life & the expected residual value at the end
of its life. Management reviews the residual values, useful lives & methods
of depreciation of property, plant & equipment at each reporting period
end & any revision to these is recognised prospectively in cument & future
periods. The lives are based on historical experience with similar assets as
well as anticipation of future events, which may impact their life, such as
changes in technology.

(i) Employee Benefits: Significant judgments are involved in making judgments
about the life expectancy, discounting rate, salary increase, etc. Which
significantly affect the working of the present value of future liabilities on
account of employee benefits by way of defined benefit plans.

{iv) Impairment _of assets & investments: Significant judgment is involved in
determining the estimated future cash flows from the investments, Property,
Plant & Equipment & Goodwill to determine its value in use to assess

W.§
@5\\ H4

7, Heritage
Chambers,
Nehru Nagat,
Ambawadi
Ahmedabad-15




{v)

(vi)

{vii)

(viii)

whether there is any impairment in its carrying amount as reflected in the
financials.

Deferred Tax: Deferred tax asset is recognised for all the deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be avadilable against which the deductible tfemporary difference can
be utilised. The management assumes that taxable profits will be available
while recognising deferred tax assets.

Recodnition & measurement of unbilled gas sales revenues: In case of
customers where meter reading dates for biling is not matching with
reporting date, the gas sales between last meter reading date & reporting
date has been accrued by the company based on past average sales. The
actual sales revenue may vary compared to accrued unbilled revenue so
included in Sale of natural gas & classified under cument financial assets.

Recodgnition & measurement of other provisions: The recognition &
measurement of other provisions are based on the assessment of the
probability of an outflow of resources & on past experience &
circumstances known at the balance sheet date. The actual outflow of
resources at a future date may therefore vary from the figure so provided
& included as liability.

Leases: The Company evatuates if an arrangement qudlifies to be a lease
as per the requirements of Ind AS 116. Identification of a lease requires
significant judgment. The Company uses significant judgement in assessing
the lease term (including anficipated renewals) and the applicable
discount rate.

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of
a lease, together with both periods covered by an option to extend the
lease if the Company is reasonably certain fo exercise that option; and
periods covered by an option fo terminate the lease if the Company is
reasonably certain not to exercise that option. '

In assessing whether the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an
option to extend alease, or not to exercise an option to terminate a lease,
it considers all relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic

" incentive for the Company to exercise the option to extend the lease, or
not to exercise the option to terminate the lease.

The Company revises the lease term if there is o change in the non-
cancellable period of a lease. The discount rate is generally based on the
incremental borrowing rate.

2.4 Propery, Plant & Equipment

(i)

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost of acquisition / construction
less accumulated depreciation. :

The Company capitalises to project assets all the cost directly attributable &
ascertainable, to completing the project (including pre-operative expenses).
These costs include expenditure of pipelines, plant & machinery, cost of laying
of pipeline, cost of survey, commissioning & testing charge, detailed
engineering & interest on borrowings attributable to acquisition of such assets.
The gas distribution networks are freated as commissioned when supply of gas
commences to the customer(s).

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and Equipment
is added foits book value only if it increases the future economic benefits from
the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance. All




(if)

(i)

other expenses incured towards normal repairs and maintenance of the
existing property, plant and Equipment (including cost of replacing parts) are
charged to profit and loss for the period during which such expenses are
incurred.

Interest on borrowings atfributable to the acquisition / construction of Property,
Plant and Equipment for the period of construction is added to the cost of
Property, Plant and Equipment.

Assets installed at customer premises, including meters & regulators where
applicable, are recognised as property plant & equipment if they meet the
definition provided under Ind AS 16 subject to materiality as determined by
the management & followed consistently.

Capital Work in Progress includes expenditure incured on assets, which are
yet to be commissioned & capital inventory, which cormprises stock of capital
items/construction materials at respective city gas network.

All the directly identifiable & ascertainable expenditure, incidental & related
to construction incurred during the period of construction on a project, fill it is
commissioned, is kept as Capital work in progress (CWIP) & after
commissioning the same is fransferred / allocated to the respective "Property,
Plant and Eguipment®.

Further, advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant &
equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date are classified as capital
advances under other non- current assets.

Depreciation is provided as follow:

o Property, Plant and Equipment is depreciated over the permissible
useful life specified in Schedule Il pursuant to section 123(2) of the
Companies Act, 2013 as per 'Straight line method™.

The estimated Useful life of Asset is below

Name of Asset Useful life
Building 25 Years
Computer and Laptops 3 Years
Plgnt and Ma_chlnery— Pipelines and Last 25 Years
Mile Connectivity
Plant and Machinery- CNG Stations

. . 15 Years
Equipments and Installations
Fumiture and Fixtures 10 Years
Office Equipment 5Years
Vehicles 5Years
Software 5 Years

Useful life of the Right of Way (ROW) charges is considered as the
period for which such charges are paid. In cases where the fenor
of payment is not specified by the authorities, the useful life of such
ROW charges is considered as 10 years.

o The management believes that these useful lives are realistic &
reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets
are likely to be used. The useful lives are reviewed by the
management at each financial year end & revised, if
appropriate. In case of arevision, the unamortised depreciable
amount {remaining net value of assets) is charged over the
revised remaining useful life.




2.5

2.6

(iv)

o Forthe purpose of calculating the depreciation, residual value
for Tangible assets has been considered as 5% of the value of
asset concerned.

s Depreciation on items of property, plant & equipment acquired /
disposed-off during the year is provided on pro-rata basis with
reference to the date of addition / disposal.

+ Depreciation on additions fo Property, Plant and Equipment made
during the period having cost of Rs. 5000 or less is provided @ 100% on
pro rata basis with reference to the date of addition.

e Gains & losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds
with camying amount. These are included in the statement of profit &
loss under Other Expenses/Income.

Intangible Assets:

Intangible Assets includes amount paid towards obtaining Right of Way (ROW)
permissions for laying the gas pipeline network & cost of developing software
for internal use. The Company capitalises software as Intangible Asset where it
is expected to provide future enduring economic benefits. Cost associated
with maintaining soffware programmes are recognised as expenses as & when
incurred.

Any item of intangible assets is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
arising on de-recognition of the intangible asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds & the carrying amount of the infangible
asset) is charged to revenue in the income statement when the intangible
asset is derecognised.

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing at the
date of such transactions. Monetary assets & liabilities as at the Balance Sheet date are
translated at the rates of exchange prevailing at the date of the Balance Sheet.
Gain/loss arising on account of differences in foreign exchange rates on
settlement/translation of monetary assets & liabilities are recognised in the Statement
of Profit & Loss, unless they are considered as an adjustment to borrowing costs, in which
case they are capitalised along with the borrowing cost.

Revenue recognition

{i)

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable.
The Company recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured, it is probable that future economic benefits will flow fo the
Company & no significant uncertainty exists regarding the amount of
consideration that will be derived from the sale of goods /services & regarding
its collection. The Company bases its estimates on historical results, taking into
consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction & the specifics of
each arrangement.

Sale of Natural Gas is recognized on supply of gas fo customers by
metered/assessed measurements as no significant uncertainty  exists
regarding the measurability or collectability of the sale consideration. Sales
are billed bi-monthly for domestic customers, monthly/fortnightly for
commercial & hon-commercial customers & fortnightly forindustrial customers
as the timing of the transfer of risks & rewards varies depending on the
individual terms of the sates agreement. Revenue on sale of Compressed




2.7

2.8

2.9

2.10

Natural Gas (CNG) is recognized on sale of gas to consumers from retail
ouflets.

The amount recognised as revenue is stated inclusive of excise duty &
exclusive of Sales Tax /Value Added Tax (VAT) & Goods & Service Tax & is net
of trade discounts or quantity discounts.

Unbilled revenue is recognised from the end of the last biling cycle to the
Balance Sheet date since the related supply of natural gas are performed

The amounts collected towards connection charges from certain domestic
customers are “Non-Refundable Charges”. Accordingly, the same are
recognized as revenue as an when the Company receives the amount from
such customers.

The amounts collected from certain domestic customers which includes
amount “refundable” in nature. Accordingly, the same are recognized as a
liability under the head "Deposit from Customers” in the balance sheet.

(ii) Interest income is recognised on time proportionate method (on accrual
basis).

(ifi) Revenue in respect of other income is recognised when no significant
uncertainty as fo its determination or realisation exists.

Borrowing Costs

(i) The Company is capitalising borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or construction of qualifying asset up to the date of
commissioning. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of fime to get ready for theirintended use or sale.

(i) Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the year in which they
are incurred, if any. '

Impairment of Property, Plant & Equipment & Intangible Assets

The Company, at each balance sheet date, assesses whether there is any indication of
impairment of any asset &/ or cash generating unit. |f such indication exists, assets are
impaired by comparing carrying amount of each asset &/ or cash generating unit fo
the recoverable amount being higher of the net selling price or value in use. Value in
use is determined from the present value of the estimated future cash flows from the
continuing use of the assets.

Inventories

Inventory of Gas (including gas inventory in pipeline & CNG cascades) is valued at
lower of cost & net realizable value. Cost is determined on weighted average cost
method.

Stores, spares & consumables and other inventory items (viz. CNG Kits, etc) are valued
at lower of cost & net redlizable value. Cost is determined on moving weighted average

basis.

Accounting for Income Taxes

"Income tax expenses comprises current tax (ie. amount of tax for the period

determined in accordance with the Income Tax Law) & deferred tax charge or credit
(reflecting the tax effects of timing differences between accounting income & taxable
income for the period). Income tax expenses are recognised in statement of profit or
loss except tax expenses related to items recognised directly in reserves (including
statement of other comprehensive income) which are recognised with the underlying




items.

(it

The Income Tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current
period's faxable income based on the applicable income tax rate for each
jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred fax assets & liabilities attributable to
temporary differences & to unused tax losses.

The Current Income Tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period i.e. as per
the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961, as amended from time to time.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. If
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to
be paid to the tax authorities.

Advance Taxes & provisions for current income taxes are presented in the
balance sheet after off-setting advance tax paid & income tax provision arising
in the same tax jurisdiction for relevant tax paying units & where the Company
is able to & intends to settle the asset & liability on a net basis.

Deferred Tax is provided in fuli on temporary difference arising between the tax
bases of the assefs & liabilities & their camying amounts in financial statements
at the reporting date. Deferred tax are recognised in respect of deductible
temporary differences being the difference between taxable income &
accounting income that originate in one period & are capable of reversal in
one or more subsequent periods., the carry forward of unused fax losses & the
cany forward of unused tax credits. ‘

Deferred Income Tax is determined using tax rates (& laws) that have been
enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period & are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset isredlised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred Tax Assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences &
unused tax losses only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences & losses.

Deferred Tax Assets & Liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset cument tax assets & liabilities & when the deferred tox balances
relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets & tax liabilities are offset
where the Company has a legally enforceable right to offset & intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to redlise the asset & setile the liability simultaneously.

Current & Deferred Tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directiy in equity.
In this case, the taxis also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, respectively.

Any tax credit available including Minimum Alfernative Tax (MAT) under the
provision of the Income Tax Act, 1961 isrecognised as deferred tax to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
unused tax credits can be utilised. The said asset is created by way of credit fo
the statement of profit & loss & shown under the head deferred tax asset.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date
& reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset fo be ufilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date & are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits
will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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Leases

The Company as d lessee

The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and
buildings. The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at
inception of a initial application date i.e. 1 April 2019. A contract is, or contains,
a lease it the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset
for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract
conveys the right to control the use of anidentified asset, the Company assesses
whether: (i) the coniract involves the use of an identified asset (i) the Company
has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the
period of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the
asset.

At the date of initial application of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-
of-use (ROU) asset and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements
in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of 12 months or less (short-
term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low-value leases,
the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on
actual payment basis as and when incurred.

Certain lease arangements includes the options fo extend or terminate the
lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes
these options when _iT is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The ROU assets are initially recognized that is equal to lease liabilities on the initial
application date, that is arived based on incrementall borrowing rate on the
initial  application date. They are subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

ROU assets are depreciated from the initial application date on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset.

ROU assefs are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable.

For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher
of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an
individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are
largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable
amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset
belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of
the future lease payments on the date of initial application. The lease paymens
are discounted using the incremental borrowing rate. Lease liabilities are
remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related ROU asset if the
Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise an extension or a
termination option. Lease liability and ROU assets have been separately
presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as
financing cash flows.

The Company as a lessor

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating
lease. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease.
All other leases are classified as operating leases. When the Company is an
intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the
sublease separately. The sublease is classified as a finance or operating lease
by reference to the ROU asset arising from the head lease. For operating leases,
rental income is recognized on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.




2.12 Employee Benefits

Liabilities for wages & salaries, including leave encashment that are expected to be
settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees
render the related service are recognised in respect of employees' services up to the
end of the reporting & are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the
liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit
obligations in the balance sheet.

(i)

(i)

(i)

Defined Contribution Plan:

Confribution towards provident fund for eligible employees are accrued in
accordance with applicable statutes & deposited with the regulatory provident
fund authorities (Government administered provident fund scheme). The Group
does not camy any other obligation apart from the monthly contribution.

The Company’s contribution is recognised as an expense in the Statement of
Profit & Loss during the period in which the employee renders the related
service.

Defined Benefit Plan:

Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and is computed at the end of
each financial year on the basis of an actuarial valuation by an actuary
appointed for the purpose as per projected unit credit method. The present
value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the
estimated future cash outfliows by reference to market yields at the end of the
reporting period on the government bonds.

The Liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined
benefit gratuity plan is the present value of the defined benefit plan obligation
at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of the plan assets. The
Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity Plan are determined by actuarial valuation,
performed by an independent Actuary, at each balance sheet date using the
projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit
obligation denominated in INR is determined by discounting the estimated
future cash outflows by reference to the market yvields at the reporting period
on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the
related obligation.

The net interest cost in calculated by applying the discounting rate to the net
balance of the defined benefit obligation & the fair value of plan assets. Such
costs are included in employee benefit expenses in the statement of Profif &
Loss. Re-measurements gains or losses arising from experience adjustments &
changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised immediately in the period in
which they occur directly in "other comprehensive income” & are included in
retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity & in the balance sheef.
Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit
obligatfion as an expense in the statement of profit & loss:

« Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains
& losses on curtailments & non-routine seftlements;
e Net interest expense orincome.

Long Term Employee Benefits:

The liability in respect of accrued leave benefits which are expected fo be
availed or encashed beyond 12 months from the end of the year, is freated as
long ferm employee benefits.
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2.14
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2,16

2.17

2.18

2.19

The Company's liability is actuarially determined by qualified actuary at
balance sheet date by using the Projected Unit Credit method.

Actuarial losses/ gains are recoghized in the Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income in the yearin which they arise.

Segment Reporling:

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the intemal reporting
provided to the chief operating decision maker. The Company operates in a single
segment of natural gas business and relevant disclosure requirements as per Ind AS 108
“Operating Segments” have been disclosed by the Company under note no 38.

Provisions, Contingent liabilities & Contingent Assets

Provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past
events & it is probable that the outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation & in respect of which reliable estimates can be made. A disclosure for
contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation that may, but probably
will not require an outfiow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a present
obligation in respect of which the likelhood of outflow of resources is remote, no
provision/ disclosure is made. Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial
statement.

Provisions & contingencies are reviewed at each balance sheet date & adjusted to
reflect the correct management estimates.

Statement of Cash Flows

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before taxis adjusted
for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or
accrudls of past or future operating cash receipis or payments & item of income or
expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from
operating, investing & financing activities of the Company are segregated.

Events occurring after the Reporting Date

Adjusting events (that provides evidence of condition that existed at the balance sheet
date) occuring after the balance sheet date are recognized in the financial
statements. Material non adjusting events (that are inductive of conditions that arose
subsequent to the balance sheet date] occurming after the balance sheet date that
represents material change & commitment affecting the financial position are
disclosed in the Directors’ Report.

Exceptional ltems

Certain occasions, the size, type or incidence of an item of income or expense,
pertaining to the ordinary activities of the Company is such that its disclosure improves
the understanding of the performance of the Company, such income or expense is
classified as an exceptional item & accordingly, disclosed in the notes accompanying
to the financial statements.

Dividends

Final Dividend on shares is recorded as liability on the date of approval of the same by
Shareholders & interim dividend are recorded as liability on the date on declaration by
Company's board of Directors.

Earnings per Share

Basic eamings per share are cdlculated by dividing the net profit or loss {excluding other
comprehensive income] for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for events
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such as bonus issue, bonus element in a right issue, shares split & reserve share splits
[consolidation of shares] that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding,
without a comesponding change in resources. For the purpose of cadlculating diluted
earnings per share, the net profit or loss [excluding other comprehensive income] for
the year attributable to equity shareholders & the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of dll dilutive potential equity
shares.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity
and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. Financial instruments also
include derivative coniracts such as foreign exchange forward contracts, cross
currency interest rate swaps, interest rate swaps, currency opfions and embedded
derivatives in the host contfract.

a. Financial Assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value (plus transaction costs
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets, in the case of financial
assets are not recorded at fair value through profit or loss).

i. Classifications

The company classifies its financial assets as subsequently measured at either
amortized cost or fair value depending on the company’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of
the financial assets.

ji. Business model assessment

The company assesses the objective of a business model in which an asset is
held at o portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is
managed, and information is provided to management.

Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal
and interest :

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the
financial asset on initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the
time value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount
outstanding during a period, for other basic lending risks, costs (e.g. liquidity risk
and adminisirative costs), and profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal
and interest, the company considers the contractual terms of the instrument.
This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term
that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it
would not meet this condition. ’

Financial Assets at amorised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost only if both of the following
conditions are met:
- It is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets fo
collect contractual cash flows.
- the contractual terms of the financial asset represents contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest.




After.initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the EIR method. Amortised cost is calculated by
considering any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance income in
the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit
or loss.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost only if both of the following
conditions are met:
- it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows.
- the contractual terms of the financial asset represent contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest.

On initial recognition, the Company makes an imevocable election on an
instrument-by-instrument basis to present the subsequent changes in fair vatlue
in other comprehensive income pertaining to investments in equity instruments,
other than equity investment which are held for trading. Subsequently, they are
measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the 'Reserve
for equity instruments through other comprehensive income'. The cumulative
gain or loss is not reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the investments.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL)

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Company
imevocably elects on initial recognition to present subsequent changes in fair
value in other comprehensive income for investments in equity instruments
which are not held for frading.

Other financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is

measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive

income on initial recognition. The transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
immediately recognised in statement of the profit and loss.

Investment in Subsidiaries, Jointly Controlled Entities and Associates

Investment in subsidiaries, joinily controlled entities and associates are measured
at cost less impairment as per the Ind AS 27 -Separate Financial Statements.

Impairment of investments

The Company reviews its carrying value of investments carried at cost or
amortised cost annually, or more frequently when there is indication for
impairment. If the recoverable amount is less than its carmying amount, the
impairment loss is accounted for.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a
group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e.removed from the
company's balance sheet) when:

- - The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
- The company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the
asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in
full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’
arrangement; and either (a) the company has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b} the company




has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has tfransfered control of the asset.

When the company has fransferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset
or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what
extent it has refained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantiaily all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor
transferred control of the asset, the company contfinues to recognize the
transferred asset fo the extent of the company's continuing involvement. in that
case, the company also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset
and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the company has retained.

Confinuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred
asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the company could be required to

repay.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the camying
amount of the asset (orthe carmying amount allocated to the portion of the asset
derecognised) and the sum of (i) the consideration received (including any new
asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and (i) any cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in the OClis recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses the expected credit losses associated with its assets
caried at amortised cost and FYOCI debt instruments on a forward-looking
basis. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk.

With regard to trade receivable, the Company applies the simplified approach
as permitted by the Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised from the initial recognition of the trade
receivables.

For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount
equal to the 12 month expected credit losses or at an amount egudt to the life
time expected credit losses if the credit risk on the financial assets has increased
significantly since initial recognition.

b. Financial Liabilities

i. Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified at initial recognition as financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss or amortised cost, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and in the case of
amortised cost, net of directly attributable fransaction costs.

ii. Subsequent medasurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as
described below:

Financial Liabilities measured at amortised cost

After the initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses




are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by considering any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held
for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if
they are incured for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit
or loss are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the
criteria in the Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVIPL, fair value
gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI.
These gains/ losses are not subsequently iransferred to the P&L. However, the
Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All the other
changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

iii. Derecognition of financial liabilities

The company derecognises a financial liability when its confractual obligations
are discharged or cancelled or expire.

c. Modifications of financial assels and financial liabilities
Financial assets

If the terms of a financial asset are modified, the company evaluates whether the
cash flows of the modified asset are substantially different. If the cash flows are
substantially different, then the contractual rights to cash flows from the original
financial asset are deemed to have expired. In this case, the original financial
asset is derecognised and a new financial asset is recognised at fair value,

If the cash flows of the modified asset camied at amortised cost are nof
substantially different, then the modification does not result in derecognition of
the financial asset. In this case, the company recalculates the gross camying
amount of the financial asset and recognises the amount arising from adjusting
the gross carrying amount as a modification gain or loss in profit or loss. if such a
modification is camied out because of financial difficulties of the borrower, then
the gain or loss is presented together with impairment losses. In other cases, it is
presented as interest income. The gain /loss is recognised in other equity in case
of fransaction with shareholders.

Financial liabilities

Borrowings and other financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value (net
of transaction costs incumed). Difference between the fair value and the
transaction proceeds on initial is recognised as an asset / liability based on the
underlying reason for the difference.

Subsequently all financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method. The company derecognises a financial liability
when its terms are modified, and the cash flows of the modified liability are
substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified
terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of
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the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified
terms is recognised in profit or loss. The gain / loss is recognised in other equity in
case of transaction with shareholders.

The Company has computed the Equity component of the Preference Shares
considering the terms of the RPS to be non-cumulative and further modified the
estimates of future cash flows.

Fair Value Measurements

These financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention, except
certain financial assets & liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy on
financial instruments) as per relevant applicable Ind AS.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly fransaction between market participants at the measurement date. The
fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the
asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the'most advantageous market for
the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible
to the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest, A fair value measurement of a non-
financial asset takes intfo account a market participant's ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in ifs highest & best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in ifs highest & best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances &
for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs & minimising the use of unobservable inputs. All assets &
liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

e Llevel | —Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities . '

e Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement s directly or indirectly observable

e Level 3— Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets & liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis,
the Company determines whether transfers have occurred betlween Levels in the
hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.

{All amounts are in Million Indian Rupees)

As at 31 March 2022 Financial insirume:::obg;galegory (carrying Fair value hierarchy (fair value)
FVPL | Fvocl | Amorised Total tevel | level Level 3 Total
cost 1 2
Financial assets . ‘
Investment 102.78 - 114.82 217.60 - - 217.60 217.60
Loans - - 77.42 77.42 - - 77.42 77.42
Trade receivables - - 227.12 227.12 - - 227.12 227.12
Cash & cash equivalents - - 591.49 591.49 - - 591.49 591.49
Other Bank Balances - - 405.56 405.56 - - 405.56 405.56
Other financiat assets - - 208.25 208.25 - - 208.25 208.25
Total financial assets 102.78 1624.66 1,727.44 1,727.44 1,727.44




As at 31 March 2022

Financial instruments by category (carrying

Fair value hierarchy (fair value)

amount)
FVPL | Fvocy | Amorised Total level | Level Level 3 Total
cost 1 2

Financial liabilities

Borrowings - - 2,025.91 2,025.91 - - 2,025.91 2,025.91
Trade payables - - 250.93 250.93 - - 250.93 250.93
Other financial liabilities - - 531.46 531.46 - - 531.46 531.46
Total financial liabilities - - 2,808.30 2,808.30 - - 2,808.30 2,808.30

{Allamounts are in Million Indian Rupees)

As at 31 March 2021

Financial instruments by category (carrying

Fair value hierarchy (fair value)

amount)
FvpL | Fvoc) | Amortised Total tevel | Level Level 3 Total
cost 1 2

Einancial assets

Investment 13.76 - 64.01 77.77 - - 77.77 77.77
Loans - - - - - - - -
Trade receivables - - 111.86 11186 - - 111.86 111.86
Cash & cash equivalents - - 257.52 257.52 - - 257.52 257.52
Other Bank Balances - - 156.74 156.74 - - 156.74 156.74
Other financial assets - - 48.33 48.33 - - 48.33 48.33
Total financial assets 13.76 - 638.48 652.22 - . 652.22 652.22
Financial liabilities

Bomrowings - - 1,633.51 1,633.51 - - 1,633.51 1,633.51
Trade payables - - 100.60 100.60 - - 100.60 100.60
Other financial liabilities - - 340.54 340.54 - - 340.54 340.54
Total financial liabilities - - 2,074.45 2,074.65 - - 2,074.65 2,074.65

2.22 The previous year numbers hdvé beenreclassified wherever necessary. Unless otherwise
stated, all amounts are in Million Indian Rupees. ltems reflecting as 0.00 denotes value
less than Rs. 50,000.
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IRM ENERGY LIMITED
A ylng notes to the Separate Fi lal Stat it
{Unless olhenvise slated, all amounis are in 14Tlion Indfan Rupees)
As at March 31, As at March 31,
Note No. Particulars 2022 2021
4 Investments
4A|Non Current
{i)} Unguoted Invesiment in Equity instruments of Joint Control Entity (measured at amoriised cost]
- 17.21,344 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid of Farm Gas Private limited (31st March, 2021: 10,49,400) 17.2) 10.50
- 10,50,800 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid of Venuka Polymers Private limited {315t March, 2021: 10,50,800) 10.51 10.51
- 50,000 Equily Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid of Ni- Hon Cylinders Private limiled (31st March, 2021: Nil} 0.50 -
{i}| Unquoted investment in Preference Shares of Joint Control Entity [measured at amortised cost)
- 44,50,000, 10.50% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid of Farm Gas Private limiled 44.50 15.90
{315t March, 2021: 15,20.000) ) .
~42.10,200 10.50% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid of Venuka Polymers Private Limited 42,10 27,10
{31st March, 2021: 27,10,200) ) )
114.82 64.01
4B|Cuirent
lnvestment in Units of Mutual Fund {measured at Markel Value)
Baroda Business Cycle Fund 69.46 -
69.94,635 units (March 31, 2021: Nil)
Union Flexi Cap Fund 4.79 -
1,46,033 units (March 31, 2021: Nil)
Union Focused Fund 4.14 -
2.37,661 unils {March 31, 2021 : Nil)
Union Hybrid Equity Fund 15.49 9.18
12,49.937 unils (March 31, 2021: B,65.647)
Union Large & Midcap Fund 4.12 -
2,57.001 units (March 31, 2021+ Nil)
Union Medium Duration Fund 478 4.58
4,48.477 units [March 31, 2021: 4,48.477)
102.78 13.76
5 Financial asset- Non-cunent
5A| Lloans
Loons to Reloted Porties 74.90 -
Employee Loan 2.52 -
77.42 -
58|Other tinanclal assets
Security Deposit
To Relaled Parties [Unsecured, considered good] Q.44 0.44
To Others [Unsecured, considered good] 15.05 12.69
Less: Allowance for bad and doubiful - -
Bank Bolances
Balance in FDR Accounts® 166.26 29.11
“The Company has issued Bank Guarantees in favour of PNGRB during normclv course of business. Such Bank Guarantees are issued
by the Banks against Morgin Money kept with bank in the form of Fixed Deposits carrying maturity of more than 12 months.
181.75 42.23
] Other non- current assets
Capital advances [Unsecured, considered good) 3207 3.58
Unomortised expenses - Borowing Cost under EIR 17.01 18.71
Advance payment of income tax (net fo provision) - 31.84
Prepaid Expenses 39.23 41.06
88.31 95.19
7 Inventorles {measured at lower of cost or net reclisable value}
Nalural Gas 12.02 2.06
Spares and Consumables 5.14 591
CNG Kits - 0.08
1296 8.05
8 Current flnanclal assels : Trade recelvables
Secured, considered good (secured against securilty deposils)) 147.05 7493
Unsecured, considered good [Others) 80.07 3693
227.12 111.86
Trade Receivables Ageing Schedule as on 31.03.2022
Outsianding lor following petlods from due date of Paymen!
Particulars Unbilled Not Due N Tolal
Less than | § months 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 years
& months 1year -
(i) Undispuled Trade receivables - 11.83 17895 [ 3628 0.00 0.04 . 227.12
considered good
{ii) 'Undisputed Trade Receivables— which _ _ ~
have significant increase in credit risk : - -
{ii) 'Undispuled Trade Receivables - credit
impaired " : : - - ° ° i
(iv) 'Disputed Trade Receivables- considered _ _ ~
good - )
{v} 'Disputed Trade Receivables — which have _ _ ~ _
significant increase in credit risk : °
{vi) 'Disputed Trade Receivables— credit _ _
‘impaired - - 3

"hAmDers,
Rehvu Nagat,
Ambawadi
Anmodabad-18
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IRM ENERGY LIMITED

te FI 1al Stat 4

Ing notes o the Sep:

{Urtess othenvise slated, all omotnts ore in Mifion Indian Rupees)

Note No. Particulars As o';s;;ch 3 As u':g;;‘:h 31
Trade Rec bles Ageing Schedule as on 31.03.2021
Oulstanding for followlng periods from due date of Payment
Pariculars Unbilled Not Due :e:::'c;‘,: 5 T;:T: T 2vears 2.3 Years More than 3 years Total
g)c,:;g:s;':i;;cderece'vob'es_ 6.65 8324 | 2161 023 0.13 - . 1186
{ii) 'Undispuled Trade Receivables - which R . . B . R _ .
have significan) increase in credit risk
{iil} 'Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit _ _ . - _ . _ B
impaired
{iv) 'Disputed Trade Receivables- considered . _ _ _ B _ - R
good
{v} 'Disputed Trode Receivables — which have _ _ _ N _ _ .
significant increase in credit risk
{vi) 'Disputed Trade Receivables— credit _ _ _ . _ _ . B
‘impaired
? Current financial assels -
9A| Cash ond cash equivalents
{a} Balonce with banks
Balance in Current Accounls 591.17 257.27
{b) Cash on hand 0.32 0.25
98| Bank balances otherthan above
{a) Margin Money deposils under lien against DSRA, Bank Guarantee and/or Stand By Letter of Credit (SBLC)* 405.56 156.74
“The Company has issued Bank Guarantees and Siand-fiy Letter of Credit{SBLC} to various Govi. agencies ond olher Suppliers
during normal course of business. Such Bank Guarantees and SBLC have been issued against Margin Money kept with bank in the
form of Fixed Deposits carrying maturity of between 3 months to 12 months. Further, as per the financing document, the Company
has olso created Debt Service Reserve Account as Fixed Deposit with the Bank.
997.05 414.28
10 |Cument financlal assets : Ofhets
Insurance Claim Recelvable 2.19 -
Interest Receivable 212 0.03
Deposit - Current 12.00 570
Dividend Receivable 9.35 -
Imprest amount with Employees 0.84 0.36
26.50 6.10
n Other current assels
Advance to Suppliers [Unsecured, Considered good) 16.24 10.41
Prepaid Expense 2793 12.59
44.17 23.40
12 Share capital
Avlhorised :
5,00.00.000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- Each 500.00 500.00
4,00,00,000 Preference Shares of Rs.10/- Each 400.00 400.00
. 900.00 900.00
Issued, Subscribed and Fully Pald-up Equily Shores:
Equity shares ’
2.93.49.677 [as at March 31, 2021: 2.89.99,471). Equity Shores of Rs.10/- each ) 293.70 289.99
Preference shares
10% Redeemable Preference Shares - -
3,49,99,432 [os at March 31, 202): 3,15.84,991] shares of Rs. 10/- each
293.70 289.99
A Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% of ovlstanding Shares is as under:
1) Equily Shares
Name of Shareholder No. of shares % of Holding
As at 31.03.2022
Cadila Pharmaceuticals Lid 1.49.78,535 51.00%
Dr. Raijiv 1. Modi (Trustee of IRM Trust} 55,80.238 19.00%
Enertech Distribution Management Pvt. Ltd. 86.70,126 29.52%!
As at 31.03.2021
Cadila Pharmaceuticals Ltd 1,48,91,004 51.35%
Dr. Rojiv 1. Modi (Truslee of IRM Trust} 55,47.628 19.13%
Enertech Distribution Management Pvl. Lid. 85.60.839 29.52%,
it} 10% Non Cumulalive Reedemable Prelerence Shares
Name of Shareholder No. of shares % of Holding
As at 31.03.2022
Cadilo Pharmaceuticals Lid 3,49.99.432 100.00%
As at 31.03.2021
Cadilo Phamaceuticals Lid 3,49.99,432 100.00%|
B Delails and Change in Promotars’ holding during the year
(i) Equity Shares
% change in
Name of Shareholder No. of shares Zholding holding during lhe

ear

As al 31.03.2022

Dr. Raijiv |. Modi {Trustee of IRM Trust)

Cadila Phormaceuticals Lid 1,49.78.535 51.00%: -0.35%

Dr. Raijiv |. Modi {Trustee of IRM Trust) 55,80,238 19.00% -0.13%

As af 31.03.2021

Cadita Phormaceuticals Ltd 1,48,91.004 51.35%| 0.35%)|
55,47.628 19.13% 0.13%|
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{Unless othervise slated. all amounts are in Milion Indian Rupees)

Note No. Padiculars

As at March 31, As at March 31,
2022 2021

(i|Redeemable Non- Cumulative Pref

Ierms and condlfions:

1)|Equlty Shares:
a|Votina rights:

b|Dividend:

e Shares (RPS):

a|Redemption terms:

The preference shares caries redemption period of 10 years from the date of issuance.
b|Dividend;

The company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 per share. Equity shareholders are entilled 1o one vote per share held.

The dividend provided, if any, by boord of directors is subject to approval of shareholders in Annual General Meeting, except, in cose of interim dividend. In the event of
liquidation of the company. the equity shareholders shall be entitled to properlionate share of their holding in the assels remaining ofter distribulion of all preferentiol amounts.

The dividend provided, it any, by board of directors is subject to approval of shareholders in Annual General Meeting. except, in case of interim dividend. In fhe event of
liquidation of lhe company. the equity shareholders shall be enlitied to proportionate share of their holding in the assels remaining after distribution ot all preferential amounts.

D Reconcillalion of shares oulslanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporling period
Equily Shares of Rs. 10 each
Patticulars Number of Shares
Shares outstanding as at 01.04.2020 2.71,25,000
Add: Shares issued during the period 2020-2} 18.74.471
Shares oulstanding as at 31.03.2621 2.89.99.471
Add: Shares issued during the period 2021-22 3,70.206
Shares oulstanding al 31.03.2022 2,93.69.677
Non Cumulalive Reedemable Pref. e Shares of Rs. 10 each
Particulars Number of Shares
Shares outstanding a! the beginning of the period 3.49.99.432
Add: Shares issued during Ihe period -
Shares ouislanding at the end of ihe period 3,49,99,432

' As at March 31, As at March 31,
Particulars 2022 2021

13 Reserves and suiplus
A. Stotement of prolil and loss

Opening balance 636.05 284.80

Add: Transter from statement ol profit and loss 1,135.60 351.26

Less: Corporate Dividend {35.00)

Less: ltems routed through SOCGIE - -
Closing balonce 1,736.65 636.06
8. Equity Component of Preference Shares
i) OCCPS (Opli Ity "C: lible C lative Pref e Shares}

Opening 0.23 0.23

Equity Componen! of OCCPS - -
Closing Balance 0.23 0.23
ii) Non Cumulative Reedemable Prelerence Shares

Opening 210.82 173.24

Equily Component of non-cumulalive redeemable preference shares - 37.58
Closing Bolance 210.82 210.82
Closing balance (i+ii) 211.05 211.05
C. Wems of OCI - R t of the net delined benefit liabllily/asset, net of tax effect

Opening (0.67) {0.49)

Remeasurement of he net defined benefit liabilily/asset. net of tax effect* 0.15 0.18;
Closing balance {0.52) (0.67)
Remeasurement of defined benelit plans represents acturial gain and losses and refumns on plan assets
{excluding intetes! income].

D. Securities Premium

Opening Balance 42.25 18.57

Addition during lhe year 12.04 24.81

Less: Stamp duly expense on shares - {1.13)
Closing Balance 54.29 42,25
Tolal Reserves 2,001.47 88B.69

14 Non- current fi jal liabilities : B ing
14A|Non-Cuirent
Secured (canied at amortfized cost)$

Fupee Term loans from banks 1,675.10 1,414.75

Vehicle Loan 8.72 -
Unsecured
Preference shares

liabifity component 10% Non cumulatfive Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each 183.78 167.07

1.867.60 1.581.82
148|Cunent
Secured (caried at amortized cost)$
Rupee Term loans from banks#

Current Malurities of Rupee Term Loon from Banks 106.97 51.69
wWorking Capital Loan from Banks 49.98 -
Vehicle Loan 1.37 -

158.32 51.69

Ambawadi
Anmadabad-15




IRM ENERGY LIMITED

Accompanyling notes to the Sep: F

{Unless olhensise slated, oll amounls are in Mllisn Incian Rup2es)

As at March 31, As at March 31,
Nofe No. Panticulars 2022 2021
{A) [ Detalls of Secured loans
From Banks
Particulars Terms of Repayment and Interest rale

Rupee Term loan: For project of City Gas Distribution of Banaskantha and Fatehgarh Sahib District {consortium of 40 quaterly installments started from July 2021 and Interest
banks: Union Bank of India and Bank of Baroda) rate ronges from 1 year MCLR +0.25% to | Year MCLR+1.45%

1st Tranche: 20 quaterly installments from April, 2023
Rupee Term loan: For projecl of City Gas Distribution of Diu and Gir Somnath Districl {consortium of banks: Bank of | 2nd Tranche: 20 quotery installments from April, 2027 and

Baroda, Union Bank of India and Punjab National Bank] Interest rate ranges from 1 year MCLR +0.25% to 1 Yeor
MCLR+1.80%
Repayable in 84 Equivalent Monthly Installments and interest
Vehicle Loans rale ranges from 7.30% to 7.40% linked o 3 month EBLR +
0.60%

The details of securly given for all loans are as under :
{i) The Rupee Term Loan is secured os below:
-First Charge on movable and immovable assels (both present and fulure) relating 1o lhe specific projects on pari passu basis.
-Exclusive charge on DSRA created for the specific project.
-First charge on the Trust and Retention Account of Ihe specific project on pari passu basis.
-First charge on current assets (incl. cash flows, receivables, elc), both present and future, of the specilic projects on pari possu basis.
{ii) The Working Capital is secured as below:
-Second Charge on movable and immovable assels [both present and future} relating to ihe specific projects on par passu basis.
-First charge on current assets fincl. cash flows, receivables. efc). both presenl and fulure, of the specific projects on pari passu basis
{ii} 'The Vehicle Loans are secured by Charge on Vehicle
liv} There is no defaull in repoyment of loan and interest thereon as on 31.03.2022
{v) The book value of lhe fixed assets as on 31.03.2022 charged in favour of the lenders is Rs. 3777.59 million {incl CWIP) {Previous year: Rs. 2768.91 million)
{vi) For more security details on bank financing, refer Note - 36

(C)|Reconciliation of quartedy retums or statements of current assets filed by the Company with banks or financiat institutions having material descrepancies only
Forthe period
Partculars For the peilod ended ended DeF::ember,
September, 2021
2021
Vdlue of Inventory
As per Books of accountis 15.07 15.08
As per details submitted o Banks| 15.07 14.92
Difterence* - 0.16
Trade Receivable
As per Books of accounts 162.33 219.65
As per details submitted to Banks 166.99 220.03
Difference*| {4.66) (0.38}
Trade Payable
As per Books of accounts 90.73 14198
As per delails submitted to Banks 76.19 126.7%
Difference* 14.55 15.28
* Subsequent to year end, Company has submitted the revised statement for alt quarters and all figures as per revised statement are in agreement with the books of accounts
15 Cuirent {inanclal liabllilies : Trade payables

Tolal outstanding dues of micro enterpri: and small ent: ises:-
Trade payables - Others : - -
Trade Payables : Micro ond Small enterprises 243 .21
Total oulslanding dues ol creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterpri -
Trade payables - Gos Purchase / Transmission 139687 - 48.44
Trade payables - Related parties 11.02 0.04
Jrade payables - Others 97.80 40.91

250.93 100.40

Tiade Payables Agelng Schedule as on 31.03.2022

Outstanding for following periods from due dale of paymen?

Pariculars Nol Due Jiess than 1 1-2years 2-3years More than 3 years Tola!
Year
(i) MSME 243 - - - - 2.43
{ii] Others 241.21 7.28 0.00 0.01 - 248.50
iy Disputed dues- MSME - - - - - .
{iv) Disputed dues- Olhers - - - - - -

Trade Payables Ageing Schedule as on 31.03.2021

Ovtstanding for following pertiods fiom due date of payment

Particulors Not Due Total
les:l}::n ! 1-2 years 2-3 yeais More than 3 years

(i} MSME 1n.21 - - - - .21
{ii) Others 8296 553 089 - - 89.39
[ifi] Disputed dues- MSME - - - - - .
(iv] Disputed dues- Others - - - - - -
Disclosure requlred under micro, small & di terpr fevelop t act, 2004 (the act) are as follows:

{i) Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier os al the end of the accounting year 2.43 11.21
{ii} Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of Ihe accounting year - .

{i5} The amount of interest paid by the company in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2006, along with fhe amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed Development Act, 2006, along with the - -
amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during the accounting year

{ivlthe amount of interest due & payable for the period of delay in making payment {which have been paid but beyond the
appointed day during the year) but withoul adding the interest specified under the Micro, Smoll & Medium Enterprises Development - .
Act, 2006
{v] The amount of interest accrued & remaining unpaid at the end of the accounling year . -
{vi} The amount of further interesl remaining due & payable evenin the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues
above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for Ihe purpose of disallowonce of a deduclible expenditure under seclion 23 of the - -
Micro, Small & Medium Enierprises Developmenl Act, 2006

Mote: Information as required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been determined Yo the extent such parties have
been idenlified on the kasis of information available with the Company.
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As at March 31,

As af March 31,

Nofe No. Particulars 2022 2021
16  |Other financial Kabllifies
Non-Current
Customer Security Deposit 195.24 143.08
Lease Liabilities [refer Note 42) 108.21 50.01
303.45 193.09
Curnrent
Credilors for Capital Goods 136.21 117.24
Lease Liobilities [refer Nole 42) 8.85 6.22
Others payable 82.94 2399
228.00 147.45
17 Provislons
17A| Non-Cumrent
Provision for Employee Benelils [refer Note - 31} 9.35 7.00
9.35 7.00
178| Current
Provision for Employee Benefits {refer Note - 31) 0.41 0.11
0.41 0.11
18  |Cumrent llabllitles : Olhers
Statutory dues payable 61.41 29.72
61.41 29.72
17 Delerred Tax Liabilitles (net)
Current Tax Liabilities 147.12 93.58
147.12 93.58
Particulars As at 01.04.2021 C"""g;e"u"”i"g the | s at 31.03.2022
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Depreciation 109.52 69.52 179.04
[a) 109.52 69.52 179.04
Deferred Tax Assels
Provision for Retirement Benefils 1.79 0.67 2.46
Lease Liabilily 14.15 . 1531 29.47
|b) 15.94 15.98 3192
Met Delerred Tax {Liabilities)/Assets {a-b) 23.58 53.54 14712
O e s e o
20 Revenue lrom Operalions
Sale of Goods
CNG Sales (Gross of Taxes) 2,967.35 1.636.11
PNG Sales 246471 460.92
Sale of Services
Connection Income 20.69 13.54
Other Operating Revenues 8.67 7.52
5,461.43 i 2,118.09
21 Other Non-operaling Income
Gain on remesurement of linancial Assets 1.08 0.31
Interest Income 29.42 7.02
3050 7.33
22 Purchases ot siock-In-frade of nalural gas
Natural Gas 2,492.27 770.86
2,492.27 770.86
23 Changes in Invenlories of Natural Gas
Changes In invenlotles of finished goods, stock In trade and waik In progress - Natural Gas
Inventory at the beginning of Ihe year 206 1.87
Less: Inventory at the end of the year 12.02 2.06
(9.98) (0.20)
24 Employee Benefils Expense
Salaries, wages and bonus 62.15 35.53
Company's coniribution to provident & other funds 238 1.89
Leave Encashment and Gratuity [Refer note 31} 3.02 3.02
Staff welfare expenses 4.03 0.67
71.58 41.11
25 Finance Cosis
Interest Cost
-OnTerm Loan 129.47 105.98
- On Working Capital 0.39 1.04
- On Preference Shares 16.71 15.59
- On Finance Lease Liability {refer Nole 42) 6.9 4.60
- Others 4.96 1.87
Other Borrowing Cost 1.69 .69
Bank and Other Finance Charges 60.56 27.78
220.77 158.55




IRM ENERGY LIMITED

Accompanying notes to the Separate Financial Statements

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in Million Indian Rupees)

For the year For the year
Note ending ending
No. |Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 .
26 Depreciation and Amortisation expense
Depreciation of tangible assets (refer note 3.1) 142.59 107.30
Amortisation of infongible assets (refer note 3.4) 7.78 12.70
150.37 120.00
27 Other Expenses
Advertisement and Marketing Expenses 10.09 4.33
Business Promotion Expenses 1.96 2.14
Corporate Social Responsibility Expense {refer Note - 37) 6.03 3.40
Consumption of Spares and Consumables 5.19 6.58
Director's Sitting Fees 2.78 1.80
Hire Charges
-Vehicles 237.20 139.97
Insurance Cost 9.46 4.98
Legal and Professional Charges 16.77 10.56
License Fees 63.00 -
Managerial Remuneration 20.79 7.47
Power and fuel 82.82 53.69
Rent (refer note 42) 4.58 1.79
Repairs and Maintenance
-Buildings 0.38 0.35
-Plant and Maochineries 140.12 77.99
-Others 1.81 0.91
Stamp Duty Expense 1.24 9.41
Security Expense 4.90 4.43
Tender Fees - 13.54 -
Travelling, Lodging and Boarding 9.15 2.88
Rates and Taxes 0.18 0.91
Miscellaneous expenses 21.28 18.19
653.27 351.79
Payments to auditor
For Statutory Audit (Incl GST) 1.42 1.27
For GST & Tax Audit {Incl GST)* 0.46 0.31
For Cerfification & other reimbursements {incl. GST)* 0.28 1019
28 Tax Expense ,
Corporate Tax- Current 334.50 88.10
Corporate Tax- Previous year - 1.79
Deferred Tax (refer Note - 19) 53.54 19.72
388.04 109.61
28A|Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Tax using the Company's domestic tax rate 25.17% 25.17%
Profit/(loss) before tax 1,523.64 460.87
Tax using Company's Domestic Tax rate 383.50 116.00
Tax effect of adjustments in calculating taxable Income
CSR Expense 1.52 0.86
Depreciation (51.75) {45.23)
Interest on Current Tax 8.30 -
Tax Expense of earlier years - 1.79
Other items (7.06) 16.48
Income Tax Expense reported into Profit and Loss Current Year 334.50 89.89
Corporate Tax - Current 21.95% 19.50%




29.

Financial risk management:

The Companies activities expose it to credit risk, liquidity risk & market risk. This note
explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to & how the entity manages the
risk & the related impact in the financial statements. The Companies risk management
is done in close co-ordination with the board of directors & focuses on actively securing
the Companies short, medium & long-term cash flows by minimizing the exposure fo
volatile financial markets. Long-term financial investments are managed to generate
lasting refurns. The Company does not actively engage in the trading of financial assets
for speculative purposes nor does it write options. The most significant financial risks to
which the Company is exposed are described below:

(i)

(i)

il

Credit risk:

Credit risk arises from the possibility that counter party may not be able to settle
their obligations as dagreed. The Company is exposed to credit risk from trade
receivables, bank deposits & other financial assets.

Bank deposits are placed with reputed banks / financial institutions, Hence, there
is no significant credit risk on such fixed deposits.

The Company periodically assesses the financial reliability of the counter party,
taking into account the financial condition, current economic trends, & analysis of
historical bad debts & ageing of accounts receivable. Individual limits are set
accordingly.

The Company trades with recognized & credit worthy third parties. It is the
Companies policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject
to credit verfication procedures. In addition, trade receivable balances are
monitored on an on-going basis with the result that the Companies exposure o
bad debts is not significant.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis
for major clients. In addition, a large number of minor receivables are grouped into
homogenous groups & assessed for impairment collectively. The calculation is
based on exchange losses historical data. Also, the Company does not enter into
sales transaction with customers having credit loss history.

There are no significant credit risks with related parties of the Company. Adequate
expected credit losses are recognized as per the assessments.

Liquidity risk:

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle ormeet
its obligations on time or at areasonable price. For the Company, liquidity risk arises
from obligations on account of financial liabilities — borrowings, trade payables &
other financial liabilities.

The Company's principle sources of liquidity are cash & cash equivalents & the
cash flow that is generated from operations. The Company believes that the
working capital is sufficient to meet its current requirements. Accordingly, no
liquidity risk is perceived. The Company closely monitors its liquidity position &
maintains adequate source of funding.

Maturities of financial liabilities:

The tables below analyse the Companies financia! liabilities into relevant maturity
groupings based on their contractual maturities for all non-derivative financial
liabilities. The amounts disclosed in the fable are the contractual undiscounted
cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the
impact of discounting is not significant.




(iv)

(v)

vi)

{All amounts are in Million Indian Rupees)
As at 31t March, 2022 Upto 1-2| 2-5yrs More
year 1 yedars than 5
rs
Borrowings (other than redeemable 158.31 17V.77 516.02 996.04
preference shares)
Redeemable preference shares - - 29.90 153.88
Trade payables 250.93 - - -
Other financial liabilities 423.24 20.12 28.57 59.52
TOTAL 832.48 191.89 574.49 1209.44
GRAND TOTAL 2808.30

All amounts are in Million Indian Rupees

As at 315t March, 2021 Upto 1-2| 2-5yrs More
year 1 years than 5
yrs
Borrowings (other than redeemable 51.69 68.93 397.39 948.44
preference shares)
Redeemable preference shares - - - 167.07
Trade payables 100.60 - - -
Ofther financial liabilities 290.53 1.89 6.83 41.28
TOTAL 442,82 70.82 404.22 1,156.79
GRAND TOTAL 2074.465
Market risk:

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices— such as foreign exchange:
rates, interest rates & equity prices — will affect the Companiesincome or the value
of its holdings of financial instruments. o

Foreign exchange risk:

The Company is not directly exposed fo foreign exchange risk as no direct foreign
currency tfransactions are entered into.

Interest Rate Risk:

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Companies exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily
to the Companies long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates.

The Companies investments in fixed deposits are at fixed interest rates.




30.

The exposure of the Companies borrowing to interest rate changes at the end of
the reporting period are as follows:

{All amounts are in Million Indian Rupees

As at 313t As at 31+
Particulars March, March, 2021
2022
Varidble rate instruments
Financial Assefs B )
Financial Liabilities 1.842.14 1,466.44
Fixed Rate instruments
Financial Assets 646.73 185.85
Financial Liabilities 300.84 223.30
Interest rate variation Change Impact Impact
scenario-1 (+) 0.50% 9.21 7.33
Scenatio-2 (-) 0.50% (9.21) (7.33)

Capital Management:

The company objectives when managing capital are to safeguard their ability to
confinue as a going concem so that they can continue to provide returns for
shareholders & benefits for other stakeholders, & maintain an optimal structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

Net Debt = Total term loan borrowings less cash & cash equivalents.including current
investments :

Total 'equity’ means share capital issued (Equity Shares & Preference Shares} &
accumulated reserves. ‘

{All amounts are in Million Indion Rupees
As at 31¢ As at 31

Pariculars March, 2022 | March, 2021
Total borrowings (including Liability component of 2,025.91 1,633.51
Redeemable Preference Shares)

Less: cash & cash equivalents & Balance with 1,266.10 45713
Banks

Net debt 759.82 1,176.38
Total equity 2,295.17 1,178.68
Net Debt to Equity Ratio 0.33 1.00

Loan Covenants;

Under the terms of the maijor borrowing facilities, the Company is required to comply
any 2 of the following financial covenants failing which penal interest as prescribed in
the facility agreement shall apply. The Financial Covenants shall be tested at the end
of each Fiscal Year based on the certification of the Auditor.




a) Gross DSCR-1.10
b) Interest Coverage ratio- 1.25
c) FACR = (Net Property, Plant and Equipment/ Loan Outstanding)- 1.25

The first testing of financial covenants will be done for the first full operational year post
the commencement of commercial operations of the Project, i.e. based on audited
financials for Fiscal Year ending March 31, 2023.

31. Employee Benefits:

(i)

(i)

-Short term employee benefits

Long term emplovee benefits

(a) Gratuity {Unfunded):

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service
are classified as short term employee benefits. Benefits such as Salaries, incentives
& allowances, short terms compensated absences, etc., & the expected cost of
bonus, ex-gratia are recognised in the year in which the employee renders the
related service.

The Company provides for gratuity for employees in india as per the Payment
of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous service for a period of
5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on
refirement /termination is the employees last drawn basic salary per month
computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years

of service. The gratuity plan is an unfunded plan.

(All amounts are in Million Indian Rupees)

Period

Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31+ ended 31+

March, 2022 March, 2021

Table Showing Change in the Present Valve of

| Projected Benefit Obligation:

Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the Beginning of 3.85 213

the Period

Interest Cost 0.27 0.15

Current Service Cost 1.28 0.91

Past Service Cost - -

Liability Transferred In/ Acquisitions - -

(Liability Transferred Out/ Divestiments) - -

[(Gains)/ Losses on Curtailment - -

(Liobilities Extinguished on Setttement) - -

(Benefit Paid Directly by the Employer) - -

(Benefit Paid From the Fund) - -

The Effect Of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates - -

Actuarial [Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to (0.14) -

Change in Demographic Assumptions

Actuarial (Gains}/Losses on Obligations - Due o (0.22) [0.06)

Change in Financial Assumptions _

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to 0.21 0.72

Experience

Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the End of the 5.25 3.85




Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31st ended 31st
March, 2022 | March, 2021
Table Showing Change in the FairValue of Plan Assets:
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the Beginning of the Period - -
Interest Income - -
Contributions by the Employer - -
Expected Contributions by the Employees - -
Assets Transferred In/Acquisitions - -
(Assets Transferred Out/ Divestments) - -
(Benefit Paid from the Fund) - -
(Assets Distributed on Setflements) - -
Effects of Asset Ceiling - -
The Effect of Changes In Foreign Exchange Rates - -
Retumn on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income - -
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the End of the Period - -
Amount Recognized in the Balance Sheet:
(Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the end of the (5.25) {3.85)
Period)
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the Period - -
Funded Status {Surplus/ (Deficit}) (5.25) (3.85)
Net (Liability)/Asset Recognized in the Balance Sheet {5.25) {3.85)
Expenses Recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss
for Current Period.
Current Service Cost 1.28 0.91
Net Interest Cost 0.27 0.15
Past Service Cost - -
{Expected Contributions by the Employees) - -
(Gains)/Losses on Curtaiiments & Setflements - -
Net Fffect of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates - -
Expenses Recoghized 1.55 1.06
Expenses Recognized in the Other Comprehensive
Income (OCI) for Current Period.
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligation For the Period (0.15) 0.67
Retumn on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income - -
Change in Asset Ceiling - -
Net {iIncome)/Expense For the Period Recognized in (0.15) 0.67
Sciclmce Sheet Reconciliation:
Opening Net Liability 3.85 2.13
Expenses Recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss 1.55 1.05
Expenses Recognized in OCI (0.15) 0.67

Net Liability/{Asset) Transfer In
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Tumover

Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31¢ ended 314
March, 2022 March, 2021
Net (Liability)/Asset Transfer Out - -
(Benefit Paid Directly by the Employer) - -
(Employer's Contribution) - -
Net Liability/ (Asset) Recognized in the Balance Sheet 5.25 3.85
Assumptions:
No of Active Members 116 94
Per Month Salary For Active Members 2.92 2.31
Weighted Average Duration of the Projected Benefit 15 20
Obligation
Average Expected Future Service 15 22
Projected Benefit Obligation (PBO) 5.25 3.85
Rate of Discounting 7.27% 6.95%
Rate of Sdlary Increase 7.00% 7.00%
Rate of Employee Turover 5.00% 2.00%
Mortality Rate During Employment Indian Indian
Assured Lives Assured Lives
Mortality Mortdlity
{2006-08) {2006-08)
Prescribed Contribution For Next Year (12 Months) - -
Maturity Analysis of the Benefit Payments: From the
Employer:
Projected Benefits Payable in Future Years From the
Date of Reporting
1st Following Year 0.17 0.04
2nd Following Year 0.21 0.06
3rd Following Year 0.26 0.07
4th Following Year 0.30 0.09
5th Following Year 0.32 0.10
Sum of Years 6 To 10 1.66 0.61
Sum of Years 11 & above 13.83 1524
Sensitivity Analysis:
Projected Benefit Obligation on Cumrent Assumptions 5.25 3.85
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Discounting {0.60) {0.62)
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Discouniing 0.73 0.79
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase 0.65 0.75
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase {0.58) {0.63)
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Employee (0.02) (0.05)
Tumover
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Employee 0.02 0.05

The sensitivity analysis have been determined based on reasonably possible
changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting

period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

The sensifivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the
actual change in the projected benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the
change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the

assumptions may be correlated.




(o)

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of
the projected benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected unit
credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same method
as applied in calculating the projected benefit obligation as recognised in the
balance sheet.

Leave Encashment (unfunded]):

The employees of the company are entitled to leave as per the leave policy
of the company. The fiability on aecount of accumulated leave as on last day
of the accounting year is recognised [net of the fair value of plan assets as at
the balance sheet date] at present value of the defined obligation at the
balance sheet date based on the actuarial valuation camied out by an

independent actuary using projected unit credit method.

(All amounts are in Million Indian Rupees)

Particulars

For the year
ended 31
March, 2022

For the year
ended 31¢
March, 2021

Table Showing Change in the Present Value of
Projected Benefit Obligation

Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the Beginning of
the Period

3.27

1.87

interest Cost

0.23

0.13

Current Service Cost

0.82

0.58

Past Service Cost - Non-Vested Benefit Incurred During
the Period

Past Service Cost - Vested Benefit Incurred During the
Period

Liability Transferred In/ Acquisitions

{Liability Transferred Out/ Divestments)

(Gains)/ Losses on Curtailment

(Liabilities Extinguished on Settlement)

(Beneﬁf Paid Directly by the Employer)

(Benefit Paid From the Fund)

The Effect Of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to
Change in Demographic Assumptions

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to
Change in Financial Assumptions

[0.05)

Actuarial [Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to
Experience

0.81

Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the End of the
Period ,

3.27

Change in the falr value of plan assets:

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the Beginning.of the Period

Interest Income

Contributions by the Employer

Expected Contributions by the Employees

Assets Transferred In/Acquisitions

[Assets Transferred Out/ Divestments)

{Benefit Paid from the Fund)




Particulars

For the year
ended 314
March, 2022

For the year
ended 31¢
March, 2021

(Assets Distributed on Settlements)

Effects of Asset Ceiling

The Effect Of Changes In Foreign Exchange Rates

Retum on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the End of the Period

Amount Recognized in the Balance Sheet

(Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the end of the
Period)

[4.51)

(3.27)

Eair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the Period

Funded Status (Surplus/ (Deficit))

(4.51)

(3.27)

Unrecognized Past Service Cost at the end of the
Period

Net Liability/(Asset) Recognized in the Balance Sheet

[4.51)

(3.27)

Expenses / [Incomes] recognised in the Statement of
Profit & Loss:

Current Service Cost

0.82

0.58

Net Interest Cost

0.23

0.13

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses

0.43

0.76

Past Service Cost - Non-Vested Benefit Recognized
During the Period

Past Service Cost - Vested Benefit Recognized During
the Period

{Expected Contributions by the Employees)

(Gains)/Losses on Curtailments & Settlements

Net Effect of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

Change in Asset Ceiling

Expenses Recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss

1.47

1.47

Balance Sheet Reconciliation:

Opening Net Liability

3.27

1.87

Expense Recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss

1.47

1.47

Net Liability/ (Asset) Transfer In

Net (Liability)/Asset Transfer Out

(0.22)

(0.07)

(Employer's Contribution)

Net Liability/ (Asset) Recognized in the Balance Sheet

4.5}

3.27

Principal actuarial assumptions as at Balance sheet
date:

Expected Return on Plan Assets

Rate of Discounting #

7.27%

6.95%

Rate of Salary Increase $

7.00%

7.00%

Rate of Employee Turover

5.00%

2.00%

1 No of Active Members

116

94

Per Month Salary For Active Members

292

231

Projected Benefit Obligation (PBO)

4.51

3.27

iescribed Contribution For Next Year (12 Months)

#The rate of discount is considered based on market yield on Government Bonds having currency
& terms in consistence with the currency & terms of the post-employment benefit obligations.




$ The estimates of future salary incredses are considered in actuariat valuation, taking into account
inflation, seniority, promofion & other relevant factors such as supply & demand in the employment
market. :

32. Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities pursuant to Para B14 of Ind AS 112:

Following is the disclosure relating fo Joint Control enftities:

(All amounts are in Million Indian Rupees

Farm Gas Venuka Cr‘:llli-:;:rs

Particulars Private Polymers Private

Limited Private Limited

Limited

Year 2021-22 2021-22 2021-22
Country of Incorporation . India India india
% of ownership interest 50% 50% 50%
Current Assets 377.22 114.55 79.45
Non Current Assets 37172 90.12 7.48
Current Liabilities 181.43 104.10 8.83
Non Current Liabilities 240.57 89.77 75.30
Income 623.36 136.57 38.33
Profit/(Loss) for the year 295.93 (8.00) 1.82
Other Comprehensive Income - - -
Total Comprehensive Income 295.93 (8.00) 1.82
Contingent Liabilities - - -
Capital Commitments 64.80 - -

(All amounts are in Million Indian Rupees

Farm Gas Venuka CNIIi-rI;lcci)grs

Particulars Private Polymers ;Y,ivate

Limited I'-"nv'aie Limited

Limited

Year 2020-21 2020-21 -
Country of Incorporation India india -
% of ownership interest 50% 50% -
Current Assets 56.69 48.31 -
Non Current Assets 60.26 85.33 -
Current Liabilities 3.43 26.27 -
Non Current Liabilities - - -
Income - - -
Profit/(Loss) for the year (1.81) (1.06) -
Other Comprehensive Income - - -
Total Comprehensive iIncome - - -
Contingent Liabilities - - -
Capital Commitments 80.80 1.48 -




33.

Related Party Disclosures:

(a) Name of the Related party & Nature of the Related Party Relationship:

Nature

Name of the Person/Entity

Sr. No.
i

Holding Company

(i} Cadila Pharmaceuticals Ltd

Joint Control entities

(i) Farm Gas Private Limited
(i} Venuka Polymers Private Limited
(iii) Ni-Hon Cylinders Private Limited

iif.

Associate Enterprise

(i) Enertech Distribution
Management Pvt Lid

Fellow Subsidiary Company

{ij Casil Health Products Limited

Enterprises Significantly Influenced
by Directors or their relatives or Key
Management Personnel

(i) IRM Pvt Lid

(i} Sanguine Management Services
Pvt Ltd

(i) IRM Trust

(iv) Mauktika Ventures LLP

(v)N M Sadguru Water
Development Foundation

(vi) Aspire Disruptive Skill Foundation

(vii) indrashil Kaka Ba & Kala Budh
Public Charitable Trust

(viii) Enertech Fuel Solutions Pvt Lid

and

vi.

Key Management Personnel

(i)  Mr. Maheswar Sahu (Chairman)

{iy Dr. Rdjiv I. Modi (Director)

(iii) Mr. Amitabha Banerjee
(Director)

{iv) Mr. Vinod Jain (Director)

(v] Mr. Badr Mahapatra {Director)

(vi) Mr. Karan Kaushal (CEO)

{vii) Mr. Harshal Anjaria (CFO)

(b) Transactions with related parties (Amt. in Rs.):

(vii) Ms. Shikha Jain (CS)

{All amounts are in Million Indian Rupees)

Sr. Nature of { Name of the Related | Forthe year | For the year
No. Transaction Party 2021-22 2020-21
Cadila
Pharmaceuticals Lid 13.29 1.30
IRM Trust 66.78 3.1
Venuka Polymers Pvt (0.04)
For Goods Lid (0.04) '
i Procured/Services | Enertech Fuel 1276
Availed/(Provided) | Solutions Pvt Ltd ) '
Casil Hedlth Products _ 011
Ltd '
Mauktia Ventures LLP 6.73 -
IRM Pvt Ltd 0.31 0.15
Cadila
. 3.72 24.64
Subscription of Pharmaceuticals Ltd
" Equity Shares (incl. | IRM Trust 1.39 9.18
" | securities Enertech Distribution
premium) Management Pvt Lid 4.64 9.74
Maheswar Sahu 5.98 -




sr. No Nature of | Name of the Related | Forthe year | Forthe year
7 | Transaction Party 2021-22 2020-21
Cadila
Pharmaceuticals Lid (0.66) (0.04)
Maheswar Sahu 0.22 0.01
\L/fjnuko Polymers Pvi (20.01) (3.63)
i Reimbursement -
. of Expenses Moukhkg Ventures LLP (0.21) (0.00)
Farm Gas Pvt Lid (97.14) (1.71)
Ni Hon Cylenders Pvt _
Ltd (0.02)
IRM Trust - (0.27)
Subscription of .
iv, Preference Cadila . - 34.14
Pharmaceuticals Lid
Shares
v Director Sitting Maheswar Sahu 0.88 0.68
’ Fees Badri Mahapatra 0.36 0.20
Vi, Moncgerlo! Maheswar Sahu 4.58 4.64
Remuneration
Shree Saraswati
Education Sansthan - 2.00
(Indrashil University)
N M Sadguru Water
Corporate Social | and Development 0.50 0.30
vii. | Responsibility Foundation
Expense Aspire Disruptive Skill
) 2.20 -
Foundation
Indrashil Kaka Ba &
Kala Budh Public 3.33 -
Charitable Trust -
viii. Donation Aspire Dllsruphve Skill 0_20 _
Foundation
ix. | Loan Given LNf'(jHo” Cylinders Pvt 7490 -
IRM Pvt Ltd 0.07 0.02
Casil Health Product
.| Outstanding Lo nedn Frodets - 0.03
Payables RM Trust .02 i
Mauktika Ventures LLP 0.42 -
Ni Hon Cylinders Pvt
Ltd 0.02 -
\L/tznuko Polymers Pvt 2571 13.70
i Outstanding -
" | Receivables Cadila ) 0.05
Pharmaceuticals Ltd o
Mauktika Ventures LLP - 0.04
Farm Gas Pvt Ltd 13.51 1.71




34.

35.

(i)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(v)

Earnings Per Share:

{All amounts are in Millioh Indian Rupees)

Sr. Particulars UOM | Forthe year For the year
No. 2021-22 2020-21
Basic EPS
a | Profit after tax attibutable to Rs. 1,135.75 351.08
Equity Shareholders
b | Basic & weighted average Nos. 29.18 28.16

number of Equity shares
outstanding during the year

c | Value of equity share Rs. 38.92 12.47
Diluted EPS

a | Profit after tax attributable to Rs. 1,135.75 351.08
Equity Shareholders

b | Basic & weighted average Nos. 29.18 28.16

number of Equity shares
outstanding during the year

c | Value of equity share Rs. 38.92 12.47

Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets (to the extent not provided for):

Commitments .
(Allamounts are in Million Indian

Rupees)
Sr. No. | Particulars Forthe year For the year
2021-22 2020-21
| Estimated amount of contiracts 1084.05 499.19

remaining fo be executed on
capital account & not provided for
(Net of advance)

n2 Income Tax Liability for A.Y 18-19- 0.05 -
Rectification filed pending
resolution

The Company has issued Corporate Guarantee for Loan taken by its Joint control
Entities as per below information-

a. Corporate Guarantee issued in favour of Banks towards Loan taken by Farm Gas
Private Limited amounting to Rs. 335.40 million.

b. Corporate Guarantee issued in favour of Bank towards Loan taken by Venuka
Polymers Private Limited amounting to Rs. 171.60 million.

The Company has executed mid term supply contracts for purchase of RLNG having
take or pay(ToP) obligations. The volume committed under such contract which s liable
to TOP is 6213 mmbtu/day. The Company is not foreseeing ToP liability under such
confract ’ :

pursuant to Grant of Authorisation issued by Petroleum & Natural Gas Regulatory Board
(PNGRB) for the geographical areas of Diu (UT of Diu & Daman) & Gir Somnath District
(Gujarat), the Company has submitted Performance Bank Guarantee of Rs. 25 crores
to PNGRB.

Pursuant to Grant of Authorisation issued by Petroleum & Natural Gas Regulatory Board
(PNGRB) for the geographical areas of Banaskantha District (Gujarat) and Fatehgarh
Sahib District (Punjab), the Company has submitted Performance Bank Guarantee of
Rs. 100.12 crores to PNGRB.
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(vi) Pursuant to Grant of Authorisation issued by Petroleum & Natural Gas Regulatory Board
(PNGRB) for the geographical areas of Namakkal and Tiruchirappalli District (Tamil
Nadu), the Company has submitted Performance Bank Guarantee of Rs. 33 crores to
PNGRB. '

36. The Company has taken limits for issuance of Performance Bank Guarantee (PBG) in
favor of PNGRB which is secured as under-

a. First Charge on movable and immovable assets (both present and future) relating
to the specific projects on pari passu basis.

b. First charge on current assets (incl. cash flows, receivables, etc), both present and
future, of the specific projects on pari passu basis.

37. Corporate Social Responsibility:

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
committee has been formed by the Company. The CSR activities of the Company are
generally been carried out by making payment contribution to eligible Trusts. The Trusts
carry out the CSR activities as specified in Schedule Vil to the Companies Act, 2013 on

behalf of the Company.
{Allamounts are in Million Indian Rupees
Sr. Particulars As at March | As at March
No 31, 2022 31, 2021
a Amount required to be spent during the year 6.00 3.09
b Amount of opening unspent CSR expenses - -
spent during the year
c Amount approved by the Board to be spent 6.03 - 3.40
during the year
d Amount spent during the year 6.03 3.40
i. Construction/Acquisition of any assets - -
ii.On purposes other than (i) above 6.03 3.40
Details related to spent/unspent obligations
a. Contribution to Public Trust - 2.00
b. Contribution to Charitable Trust 6.03 1.40
c. Unspent Amount - -

38. Segment Information

a. Description of segments and principal activities: The Company has a single operating
segment that is “Sale of Natural Gas". Accordingly, the segment revenue, segment
results, segment assets & segment liabilities are reflected in the financial statements
themselves as at & for the financial year ended March 31, 2022,

b. Entity wide disclosures

i, Information about products and services: The Company is in a single line of
business of “Sale of Natural Gas".

i,  Geographical information: The company operates presently in the business of city
gas distribution in India. Accordingly, revenue from customers earned and non-
current asset are located, in India.

iii. Information dbout major customers: In the current year, revenue from none of the
external customer individually accounted for more than ten percent of the
revenue.

&
S/ e,
A h
[ pahru Nagat




39.

40.

41.

42,

Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies (ROC)

The company has registered charge with ROC within statutory fime period. There has been no
satisfaction of charge filed with ROC.

Details of Benami Property held

The company does not hold any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition)
Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder, hence no proceedingsinitiated or pending
against the company under the said Act and Rules.

Loans and advances granted to specified petson

Except as stated in the notes to accounts and financial statement, there are no otherloans or
advances granted to specified persons namely promoters, directors, KMPs and related parties.

The Company has taken Land, Building and Plant & Machinery on Lease for the period of more
than 12 Months. The Company has taken other Buildings also on lease for the period of 12
months or less. For which the company applies the “Short-term leases” recognition
exemptions.

Disclosures as per Ind AS 116 - Leases are as follows:

(a) Changes in the carrying value of right of use assets

(All amounts are in Million Indian Rupees)

Patticulars Marcﬁs;l’t As O;IM%Z?
2022 !

1 Balance at the beginning of the year . 56.23 43.57
Additions 65.75 17.39
Deletions -1 -
Finance cost accrued during the year 699 4.60
Payment of lease liabilities 11.90 . 9.33
Balance at the end of the year 117.07 56.23

(b) Movement of Lease Liabilities

{(All amounts are in Million Indian Rupees)

Particulars As a;}lV\ g(r)c;g Marcﬁs;:f

! 2021

Balance at the beginning of the year 71.46 | 62.74
Additions 65.75 17.39
Deletions -
Amortisation 7.78 8.66
Balance at the end of the year 129.43 71.47




43

44,

45.

46,

(c) Contractual maturities of lease liabilities

(All amounts are in Million Indian Rupees)

Particulars As at March | As at March

31,2022 31,2021
Less than one year 8.85 6.22
One to five years 48.69 8.73
More than five years 59.53 41.28
Total 117.07 56.23

(d) Amount recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss account during the year

{All amounts are in Million Indian Rupees)

For the year | Forthe year

Particulars Marchsl, | March 1,
2022 2021

Amortisation expense of right of use assets 7.79 8.66
Interest Expense on Lease liabilities 6.99 4.60
Expense related to short ferm leases 4.58 1.79
Total 19.36 15.05

(e) Amount recognized in statement of Cash Flow

[Allamounts are in Milion Indian Rupees)

Forthe year | Forthe year

. ending on ending on
Particulars March 31, | March 31,
2022 2021

Total Cash flow for lease 11.90 92.33
Total 11.90 9.33

Utilisation of borrowed funds, share premium and other funds

The Company has not received any fund from any person or entity with the understanding
that the Company would directly or indirectly lend or invest in other person or entity identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding party (ultimate beneficiary) or
provided any guarantee or security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiary.

Compliance with number of layers of companies

The company has complied with the number of layers prescrioed under clause (87) of section
2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017

Details of Crypto Currency or Virtudl Currency

The company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the
financial year.

Undisclosed Income
There is no transaction, which has not been recorded in books of accounts, that has been

surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in tax assessments under the Income Tax
Act, 1961,
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47. Relationship with struck off companies

The company do not have any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of
the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956

48. Wilful Defaulter

The company is not declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other
lender.

49. Financial-Ratios

Ratio Numerator | Denominator 2021- 2020- Change | Reasons for %
22 2] in Ratio change
(%) (Required if
. change is >
25%)
Current Ratio Current Cunent 1.81 1.75 3% | -
Assets Liabilities
Debt-Equity *Total Debt | $Total Equity 093 1.43 -56% | Total equity of
Ratio the company
has increased
due to
improved
profitability.
Debt Service Earnings #* Debt Service 7.26 5.13 42% | -
Coverage Ratio | available
for debt
service
Return on Equity | Net Profit Average 63% 36% 74% | Due to increase
Ratio less Shareholder’s in sales, the
Dividend Equity profitability  has
. increased
Inventory Sales Average | 431.06 | 279.66 54% | The Company's
turnover ratio : Inventory operations  has
grown
significantly
leading to

higher revenues
and  inventory
levels

compared  to
preceding year

Trade Net Credit Average 3222 27.51 17% | -

Receivables Sales Accounts

tumover ratio Receivable

Trade payables Net Credit | Average Trade 14.18 8.93 59% { The Company's

turnover ratio Purchases Payables operations has
grown leading
fo higher
purchases and
creditor levels
compared  to
preceding year
as better
payment temmns
are negotiated
with the
vendors.

Net capital Net Sales Working 8.65 8.55 1% | -

tumover ratio Capital




Ratio Numerator | Denominator 2021- 2020- Change | Reasons for %
22 21 in Ratio change
(%) (Required if
changeis >
25%)

Net profit ratio Net Profit Sales 21% 17% 25% | Company has
earned  higher
margins on gas
frading and also
volume has
grown
compared to
last year.

Return on Earnings Capital 31.67% | 11.82% 168% | EBITDA has

Capital before Employed increased due

employed interest and to higher

taxes . margins and
increased sales
volume.

Returmn on Average Rate of Return 2.48% | 6.92% -64% | Change due MTM

investment movement linked

{Mutual Fund) to NAV of

respective mutual
fund.

*Total debt = Borowings from banks + Liability component of Preference Shares + Lease liabilities
$ Total equity = Equity Share Capital + Other Equity
# Debt Service = Interest and Finance charges + Lease Payments + Principal repayment of bank borrowings

Financial ratios are calculated considering the IND AS accounting freatment and the
formulas of the ratios are as per the guidance note of Institute of Chartered Accountants of
india, not as per the industry acceptable practices.

As per our report of even date

For Mukesh M. Shah & Associates For & on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 106625W
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W Ve Wl
Harsh Kejriwal . Sahvu Vinod Jain

Partner Chairman Director
Membership Number: 128670

Ahmedabad, Dated: 19t May, 2022 ) -
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Karan Kaushal Shikha Jain
CEO CFO CS

Ahmedabad, Dated: 19th May, 2022




MUKXESH M. SHAH & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of IRM Energy Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of IRM Energy Limited (hereinafter
referred to as the “Holding Company”) and its Joint Controlled entity (Joint Controlled Entity together
referred to as “the Group”), which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, and
the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including comprehensive income), the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in equity and the Consolidated Cash Flows Statement for the year then ended on
that date, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter
referred to as “the consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with Indian Accounting
standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard)
Rules, 2015, as amended (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the
consolidated state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, of Consolidated profit, Consolidated
changes in equity and its Consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing {SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under
the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities - ‘
in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Holding Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Holding Company’s Annual Report, but
does not include the financial statements and our auditors' report thereon. '

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the Consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
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If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in
section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation and presentation of these consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial
performance, consolidated total comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated
cash flows of the Group in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted
in India. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
the assets.of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company,
as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its are also responsible
for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or.error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level ofassurance, butis not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually ‘or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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a) ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

b) Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act,
2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company and its Joint
Controlled entity companies incorporated in India, has adequate internal financial controls system in
place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

¢) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

d) Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group and its associates to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group and its associates to cease to continue as a going concern.

e) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

f) Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group and its associates to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit
of the financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which
we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial
statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain respbnsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. 'We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
Consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the consolidated financial statements.
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We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements of one jointly controlled entity, whose financial statements
reflect total assets of Rs. 748.91 million as at March 31, 2022, total revenues of Rs. 623.36 million and net
cash flows amounting to Rs. 213.43 million for the year ended on that date, as considered in the
consolidated financial statements. The consolidated financial statements also include the Group’s share
of net profit of Rs. 295.92 million for the year ended March 31, 2022, as considered in the consolidated
financial statements, in respect of one Joint controlled entity, whose financial statements have not been
audited by us. These financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been
furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as
it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these jointly Controlled entity, and our
report in terms of sub-sections {(3) and (11) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid
jointly Controlled entity, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the
work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements certified by the
Management. '

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our and on the consideration of the reports of the other
auditors on the Consolidated financial statements and other financial information of the Joint Controlled.
entity, we report, to the extent applicable that: ‘

a) We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements. ‘

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Group so far as
it appears from our examination of those books and proper returns adequate for the purposes of
our audit have been received from the branch not visited by us.

c) The Consolidated Financial Statements dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements.

d} Inouropinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act;
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e)

f)

g)

+91-79-2647 2000 | contact@mmsco.in | www.mmsco.in

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company
as on March 31, 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its
Joint Controlled Entity incorporated in India and the reports of the statutory auditors of its Joint
Controlled entity companies incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group companies
is disqualified as on March 31, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164
(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Group
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors' Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us, and based on auditors report of joint
venture companies, the remuneration paid by the Company to its Directors during the year is in
accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has no.pending litigations on its financial position in its financial statements.

ii. The Company has made provision as required under the applicable law or accounting
standards, on material foreseeable losses, if any on long term derivative contract;

ii.  There are no amounts which are required to be transferred Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.  (a) The respective Managements of the Company and its subsidiaries which are
companies incorporated in India, whose financial statements have been audited under
the Act, have represented to us and to the other auditors of such joint venture
respectively, that, to the best of their knowledge and beliéf, other than as disclosed in the
notes to the accounts, no funds {which are material either‘,‘individually or in the aggregate)
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company or any of such joint venture to or
in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ('Intermediaries'), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company or any of such subsidiaries and joint venture
('Ultimate Beneficiaries') or provide any guarantee, secufity or the like on behalf of the
ultimate beneficiaries;

(b) The respective Managements of the Company and its joint ventures which are
companies incorporated in India, whose financial statements have been audited under thg
Act, have represented to us and to the other auditors of such joint venture respectjs
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that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to
accounts, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been
received by the Company or any of such joint venture from any person(s} or entity(ies),
including foreign entities {'Funding Parties'), with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the Company or any of such joint venture shall, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the funding party ('Ultimate Beneficiaries') or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on the audit procedures that has been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances performed by us and those performed by the auditors of the
subsidiaries which are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have
been audited under the Act, nothing has come to our or other auditor’s notice that has
caused us or the other auditors to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i)
and (ii) of Rule 11{e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material
misstatement.

V) The final dividend paid by the company during the year in respect of the same declared
for the previous year is in accordance with section 123 of the act to the extent it applies
to payment of dividend. '

i) With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi} and 4 of the Companies (Auditors’
Report) Order, 2020 (the 'Order') issued by the Central Government in terms of section 143(11)
of the Act, to be included in the Auditors' report, according to the information and
explanations given to us, and based on the CARO reports issued by the auditors of the joint
ventures included in the consolidated financial statements of the Company, to which reporting
under CARO is applicable, provided to us by the Management of the Company and based on
the identification of matters of qualifications or adverse remarks in their CARO reports by the
respective component auditors and provided to us, we report that the auditors of such
companies have not reported any qualifications or adverse remarks in their CARO report.

For Mukesh M. Shah & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 106625W

v

Harsh P. Kejriwal

Partner -

Membership No.: 128670
Place: Ahmedabad

Date : 19/05/2022

UDIN: 22128670AMOUOI4401
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“Annexure A” to the Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) :

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the IRM Energy Limited (“the
Holding Company”) and its Joint Controlled entity, (‘Joint Controlled entity’ together referred to as the “
Group”) as of and for the year ended March 31, 2022, we have audited the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of the Holding Company, Joint Controlled entity incorporated in India, as of the date.

Management Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and jointly Controlled entity companies, which
are companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
control based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the respective
companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India [ICAI]. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and Joint Controlled entity, which are companies incorporated in India, based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the
Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects. '

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence aont the adequacy of the internal
financial control system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s Judgement, including the assessment of the risk of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.™

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the Company and its
Joint Controlled entity, which are companies incorporated in India.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

1. Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
2. Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of

financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and

3. Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material on the financial statements.

Inherent limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections any evaluation of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us, the
Company and its Joint Controlled entity companies, which are companies incorporated in India, have, in
all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such
internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial.
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Mukesh M. Shah & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 106625W

Harsh P. Kejriwal

Partner

Membership No.: 128670
Place: Ahmedabad

Date : 19/05/2022

UDIN: 22128670AMOUOI4401
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IRM ENERGY LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2022

{Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in Million Indian Rupees)

Particulars Note No. AsatMarch 31, | ¢ ot March 31, 2021
2022
ASSETS
Non-current assets
a) Property, plant and equipment 3.1 2.848.19 2,307.99
b) Capital work-in-progress 3.2 522.84 197.02
c) Intangibles assets 33 26.54 26.48
d) Right to Use Assets 3.4 129.43 71.47
e) Intangibles under Development 3.5 1.93 1.93
{f} Financial assets
(i} Investments 4A 256.87 61.38
{ii) Loans 5A 77.42 -
{iii} Other financial assets 58 181.75 42.23
g) Other non-current assets 6 88.31 95.19
h) Current Tax Asset {(Net)
4,133.28 2,803.49
Current assets
a) Inventories 7 1716 8.05
b) Financial assets -
{i} Investments 4B 102.78 13.76
fii) Trade receivables 8 . 227.12 111.86
{ii} Cash and cash equivalents 9A 591.49 257.52
{iv) Bank balances other than (i) above 98 405.56 156.74
{v) toans - -
{vi) Other financial assets 10 26.50 6.10
c) Other current assets 11 44.17 23.40
1,414.78 577.43
Total Assets, 5,548.04 3,381.12
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
a} Equity share capital 12 293.70 289.99
b] Other equity 13 2,143.52 886.07
Total equity 2,437.22 1,176.06
Liabilities
Non-cumrent liabilities
a}- Financial Liabilities
{i} Borrowings 14A 1,867.60 1,581.82
(i) Trade payables - -
{ii} Other financial liabilities 16 303.45 193.09
b) Provisions 7A 9.35 7.00
c) Deferred tax liabilities {Net) 19 147.12 93.58
2,327.52 1,875.49
Current liabilities
a) Financial Liabilities
{i) Borrowings 148 158.32 51.69
(ii) Trade payables 15
- total ouistanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 2.43 11.21
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 248.50 89.39
and small enterprises
(i} Other financial liabilities 16 228.00 147.45
b} Provisions 178 0.41 0.1
c} Other curent liabilities i8 61.41 29.72
d} Current tax liabilifies (Net) 84.25 -
783.32 329.57
Total Equity and Liabilities 5,5648.06 3,381.12
See accompanying notes to the financial statements
As per our report of even date
For Mukesh M Shah & Co. For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 106625W «‘B,“ '
l __,-—l
Harsh Xejriwal I\QfSahu Vinod Jain
Partner Chairman Director
LA ;
D

Membership Number : 128670
Ahmedabad, Dated : 19th May, 2022
UDIN: 22128670AMNIV06532

Karan Kaushal

CEO

Ahmedabad, Dated : 19th May, 2022
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IRM ENERGY LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

{Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in Million Indian Rupees)

: For the year ending | Forthe year ending
Particulars Note No. March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
REVENUE :

Revenue from Operations 20 5,461.42 2,118.09
Other Non-operating Income 21 30.50 7.33
5,491.92 2,125.42
EXPENSES :
Purchases of stock-in-trade of natural gas 22 2,492.27 770.86
Changes in Inventories of Finished goods, Work-in-progress and 23 (9.95) {0.20})
Stock-in-Trade
Excise Duty on Sale of Compressed Natural Gas 389.98 222.44
Employee Benefits Expense 24 71.58 41,11
Finance Costs 25 220.77 158.55
Depreciation and Amortisation expense 26 150.37 120.00
Other Expenses 27 653.27 351.79
3,968.28 1,664.55
Profit before Tax 1,523.64 460.87
Tax Expense
- Corporate Tax 28 334.50 89.89
- Deferred Tax 28 53.54 19.72
Profit for the year before share of profit/(loss) from Joint Control 1,135.60 351.26
Entities
Share of profit/{loss) from Joint Control Entities 144.69 (2.37)
Profit for the year 1,280.29 348.89
Other Comprehensive income
i. tems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
a. Remeasurements of the defined benefit asset (0.15) 0.18
b. Income tax related to this items -
(0.15) 0.18
Total comprehensive income 1,280.44 348.71
Earnings Per Share (Face Value of Rs. 10 each) 34
Basic 43.88 12.38
Diluted 43.88 12.38

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

As per our report of even date

For Mukesh M Shah & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 106625W

l_./( (xh[\

mohu

Chairman

Karan Kaushal
CEO

Harsh Kejriwal

Partner

Membership Number : 128670
Ahmedabad, Dated : 19th May, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board

Ahmedabad, Dated : 19th May, 2022

Vinod Jain

Director

\

A
Harshal Anjaria
CFO
Shikha Jain
Company Secretory




IRM ENERGY LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT AS AT MARCH 31, 2022

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in Million Iindian Rupees)

For the period ending

Particulars
Mar- 2022 Mar- 2021
A. Cash flow from operating activilies _
Net profit before tax and extraordinary items 1,523.64 460.70
Adjustment for: '
Interest Income (29.29) (7.03)
Interest and Finance Charges 220.77 158.55
Provision for income (11.83) (1.83)
Depreciation and Amortisation expense 150.37 120.00
Operating profit before working capital changes 1,853.66 730.39
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Assets (413.78) (292.01)
{Increase)/Decrease in Inventories (9.01} (1.10)
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivable (115.26) (63.06)
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables 150.33 28.50
Increase/(Decrease) in Financial tiabilities 130.08 63.28
Increase/(Decrease} in Other Liabilities 2.61 124.25
Cash generated from operation 1,598.53 590.26
Direct taxes paid {incl TDS) (218.37) (91.47)
Cash flow before extraordinary items 1,380.16 498.79
Net cash from operating activities (a) 1,380.16 498.79
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Interest iIncome 28.75 6.46
Investment (139.84) (76.27)
Inter Company Loan {77.42) -
Purchase of Fixed Assets (incl. capital work in progress) (1,008.68) (464.39)
Net cash used in investing activilies (b) (1,197.18) (534.19)
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from equity shares issued 15.73 43.55
Proceeds from Banks Borrowings 375.69 172.10
Interest and Einance Cost (193.54) (136.67)
Lease cost (11.90) (9.33)
Stamp duty on issue of shares - (1.13)
Dividend (35.00) -
Proceeds from preference shares issued - 34.14
Net cash from financing activities (c) 150.99 102.67
Net increase / ([decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (at+b+c| 333.97 67.27
Cash and cash equivalents — opening balance 257.52 190.25
Cash and cash equivalents — closing balance 591.49 257.52
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents with the Balance sheet:
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year comprises
(a) Balance with banks
Balance in Current Accounts 59117 257.27
{b) Cash on hand 0.32 0.25
591.49 257.52

Notes:
(i) The cash Flow statement reflects the cash flows pertaining to continuing operations.

Changes

{ii} The cash Flow statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in IND AS - 7 Cash Flow Statement”
(ii) Disclosure of changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash
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As at March 31, 2022

) Change in fair

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 Cash Flows value/accrudls As at March 31, 2022
Non Cumrent Borrowings 1,581.82 285.78 - 1.867.60
Current maturity of Non-Current borrowings 51.69 56.64 - 108.34
Current Borrowings - 49.98 - 49.98
Total 1,633.51 392.40 - 2,025.91
As at March 31, 2021

. Change in fair

Particulars As at March 31, 2020 Cash Flows value/acerudls As at March 31, 2021
Non Cumrent Borrowings 1,449.25 132.57 - 1,581.82
Current maturity of Non-Current borrowings - 51.69 - 51.69
Cumrent Borrowings - - - -
Total 1,449.25 ' 184.26 - 1,633.51
See accompanying notes to the financial statements
As per our report of even date .
For Mukesh M Shah & Co. For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 106625W
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Harsh Kejriwal Ahmedabad-18 M. Sdhu Vinod Jain
Partner Chairman Director

Membership Number : 128670
Ahmedabad, Dated ; 19th May, 2022
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IRM ENERGY LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Company Information

IRM Energy Limited (formerly known as IRM Energy Private Limited) was incorporated on 01 st
December, 2015 with the object, inter alia of undertaking or carry out the business of
storage, supply, distribution & sale of natural gas & business relating fo or incidental to the
laying, operating, maintaining & expanding of the City Gas Distribution Networks. The
Company was converted into Public Company effective 23¢ March, 2022. The Company is
currently supplying natural gas in Banaskantha District in the State of Gujarat, Fatehgarh
Sahib District in the State of Punjab and at Diu and Gir Somnath Districts in the State of
Gujarat as per the authorisation granted by Petroleum & Natural Gas Regulatory Board
(PNGRB). '

The Company was awarded the authorisation for City Gas Distribution in the geographical
areas of Namakkal and Tiruchirappalli Districts in the State of Tamil Nadu in March, 2022,

The Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupee (INR} which is also
Functional Currency of the Company. The financial statements were authorised for issue by
the Board of Directors on 19t May, 2022.

2. Basis of Preparation & Measurement

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in
accordance with indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as
amended from time to time. The significant accounting policies that are used in the
preparation of these financial statements are summarised below:

2.1 Historical cost convention

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost
convention & on an accrual basis, except for certain items that are measured at fair
value as required by relevant Ind AS:

o Financial assets & financial liabilities measured initially at fair value (refer
accounting policy on financial Instruments);
o Defined benefit & other long-term employee benefits.

2.2 Current vs Non-Current Classification

The Company presents assets & liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-
curmrent classification.

An asset is freated as curent when it is:

« Expectedto berealised orintended to be sold or consumed in normal operating
cycle

o Held primarily for the purpose of irading

« Expected to be redlised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

o Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to
settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting petiod

All other assets are classified as-non-current
A liability is treated as current when:

it is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

it is held primarily for the purpose of trading

It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
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Deferred tax assets & liabilities are classified as non-current assets & liakilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing & their
realisation in cash & cash equivalents.

Principles of equity accounting for Consolidation

The Consolidated Financial Statement of IRM Energy Limited (‘the Company’) includes
financial statements of IRM Energy Limited, Farm Gas Private Limited ('the Joint Control
Entity"), Venuka Polymers Private Limited ('the Joint Control Entity”) and Ni-Hon
Cylinders Pvt Ltd {*the Joint Control Entity”), in all of which the Company owns 50% paid
up share capital, collectively referred to as 'the Group'.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the following basis:

Joint ventures

Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method, affer initially being
recognised at cost in the consolidated balance sheet. Accordingly, the share of profit/
loss of each of the associate companies, joint venture (the loss being restricted to the
cost of investment) has been added to / deducted from the cost of investments.

Equity accounting

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are initially recognised at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Company's share of the post-acquisition
profits or losses and other comprehensive income.

The carryin'g amount of equity accounted investments are fested for impairment in
accordance with the policy described in note 32 below.

Use of estimates

The preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements in conformity with Ind AS requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Company's accounting policies.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or area where
assumptions & estimates are significant to these Consolidated Financial Statements are
disclosed below.

The preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements in conformity with the
Accounting Standards generally accepted in India requires, the management to make
estimates & assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets & liabilities &
disclosure of contingent liabilities as the date of the Consolidated Financial Statements
& reported amounts of revenues & expenses for the year. Actual results could differ from
these estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in
current & future periods.

When preparing the Consolidated financial Statements, management undertakes a
number of judgments’, estimates & assumptions about the recognition & measurement
of assets, liabilities, income & expenses. In the process of applying the Company’s
accounting policies, the following judgments have been made apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial information. Judgements are based on the information
available at the date of balance sheet.

(i) Income Taxes: Significant judgments are involved in determining the
provision for income taxes, including amount expected to be
paid/recovered for uncertain tax positions.

(if) Property, plant & equipment: Property, plant & equipment represent a
significant proportion of the asset base of the Company. The charge in
respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate
of an asset's expected useful life & the expected residual value at the end
of its life. Management reviews the residual values, useful lives & methods
of depreciation of property, plant & equipment at each reporting period
end & any revision to these is recognised prospectively in current & future




(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

{vii)

(viii)

periods. The lives are based on historical experience with similar assets as
well as anticipation of future events, which may impact their life, such as
changes in technology.

Employee Benefits: Significant judgments are involved in making judgments
about the life expectancy, discounting rate, salary increase, etc. Which
significantly affect the working of the present value of future liabilities on
account of employee benefits by way of defined benefit plans.

impairment of assets & investments: Significant judgment is involved in
determining the estimated future cash flows from the investments, Property,
Plant & Equipment & Goodwill to determine its value in use to assess
whether there is any impairment in its carrying amount as reflected in the
financials.

Deferred Tax; Deferred tax asset is recognised for all the deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary difference can
be utilised. The management assumes that taxable profits will be available
while recognising deferred tax assets.

Recognition & measurement of unbilled gas sales revenues: In case of
customers where meter reading dates for billing is not matching with
reporting date, the gas sales between last meter reading date & reporting
date has been accrued by the company based on past average sales. The
actual sales revenue may vary compared to accrued unbilled revenue so
included in Sale of natural gas & classified under cumrent financial assets.

Recognition & measurement of other provisions: The recognition &
measurement of other provisions are based on the assessment of the
probability of an outflow of resources & on past experience &
circumstances known at the balance sheet date. The actual outflow of
resources at a future date may therefore vary from the figure so provided
& included as liability.

Leases: The Company evaluates if an arrangement godiifies to be a lease
as per the requirements of Ind AS 116. Identification of a lease requires
significant judgment. The Company uses significant judgement in assessing
the lease term (including anticipated renewals) and the applicable
discount rate.

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of
a lease, together with both periods covered by an option to extend the
lease if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and
periods covered by an option fo terminate the lease if the Company is
reasonably certain not to exercise that opftion.

In assessing whether the Company is reasonably certain fo exercise an
opfion to extend a lease, or not to exercise an opfion to terminate a lease,
it considers all relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic
incentive for the Company to exercise the option to extend the lease, or
not to exercise the option to terminate the lease.

The Company revises the lease term if there is a change in the non-
cancellable period of a lease. The discount rate is generally based on the
incremental borrowing rate.

2.5 Propenty, Plant & Equipment

(i)

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost of acquisition / construction
less accumulated depreciation.

The Company capitalises to project assets all the cost directly attributable &
ascertainable, to complefing the project {including pre-operative expenses).
These costs include expenditure of pipelines, plant & machinery, cost of laying
of pipeline, cost of survey, commissioning & testing charge, detailed
engineering & interest on borrowings attributable to acquisition of such assets.




(i)

(iii)

The gas distribution networks are treated as commissioned when supply of gas
commences to the customer(s).

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and Equipment
is added to its book value only if it increases the future economic benefits from
the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance. All
other expenses incumred towards normal repairs and maintenance of the
existing property, plant and Equipment {including cost of replacing parts) are
charged to profit and loss for the period during which such expenses are
incurred.

Interest on borrowings attributable to the acquisition / construction of Property,
Plant and Equipment for the period of construction is added to the cost of
Property, Plant and Equipment.

Assets installed at customer premises, including meters & regulators where
applicable, are recognised as property plant & equipment if they meet the
definition provided under Ind AS 16 subject to materiality as determined by
the management & followed consistently.

Capital Work in Progress includes expenditure incurred on assets, which are
yet to be commissioned & capital inventory, which comprises stock of capital
items/construction materials at respective city gas network.

All the directly identifiable & ascertainable expendiiure, incidental & related
fo construction incurred during the period of construction on a project, till it is
commissioned, is kept as Capital work in progress (CWIP) & after
commissioning the same is tfransferred / allocated to the respective "Property,
Plant and Equipment”, '

Further, advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant &
equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date are classified as capital
advances under other non- current assets.

Depreciation is provided as follow:

e Property, Plant and Equipmehf is depreciated over the permissible
useful life specified in Schedule Il pursuant to section 123(2) of the
Companies Act, 2013 as per 'Straight line method".

The estimated Useful life of Asset is bélow

Name of Asset Useful life

Building 25 Years
Computer and Laptops 3 Years
Plant onc_j Mochlnery— Pipelines and Last Mile 25 Years
Connectivity
Plant and Machinery- CNG Stations

. . 15Years
Equipments and Installations
Furniture and Fixtures 10 Years
Office Equipment 5Years
Vehicles 5 Years
Software 5Years

Useful life of the Right of Way (ROW) charges is considered as the
period for which such charges are paid. In cases where the tenor
of payment is not specified by the authorities, the useful life of such
ROW charges is considered as 10 years.

o The management believes that these useful lives are redlistic &
reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets
are likely to be used. The useful lives are reviewed by the
management at each financial year end & revised, if
appropriate. In case of arevision, the unamortised depreciable

Nehru Nagar,
Amnbawagl
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2.6

2.7

amount (remaining net value of assets) is charged over the
revised remaining useful life.

o Forthe purpose of calculating the depreciation, residual value
for Tangible assets has been considered as 5% of the value of
asset concerned.

o Depreciation on items of property, plant & equipment acquired /
disposed-off during the year is provided on pro-rata basis with
reference to the date of addition / disposal.

. Deprecid:ﬂon on additions to Property, Plant and Equipment made
during the period having cost of Rs. 5000 or less is provided @ 100% on
pro rata basis with reference to the date of addition.

e Gains & losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amount, These are included in the statement of profit &
loss under Other Expenses/Income.

(i) Intangible Assets:

Intangible Assets includes amount paid towards obtaining Right of Way (ROW)
permissions for laying the gas pipeline network & cost of developing software
forinternal use. The Company capitdlises software as Intangible Asset where it
is expected to provide future enduring economic benefits. Cost associated
with maintaining software programmes are recognised as expenses as & when
incurred.

Any item of intangible assets is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
arising on de-recognition of the intangible asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds & the carrying amount of the intangible
asset) is charged to revenue in the income statement when the intangible
asset is derecognised. :

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the éxchange rates prevailing at the
date of such transactions. Monetary assets & liabilities as at the Balance Sheet date are
translated af the rates of exchange prevailing at the date of the Balance Sheet.
Gain/Loss arising on account of differences in foreign exchange rates on
settlement/translation of monetary assets & liabilities are recognised in the Statement
of Profit & Loss, unless they are considered as an adjustment to borrowing costs, in which
case they are capitalised along with the borrowing cost.

Revenue recognition

(i) Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received orreceivable.
The Company recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured, it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the
Company & no significant uncertainty exists regarding the amount of
consideration that will be derived from the sale of goods /services & regarding
its collection. The Company bases its estimates on historical results, taking into
consideration the type of customer, the type of fransaction & the specifics of
edch arrangement.

Sale of Natural Gas is recognized on supply of gas to customers by
metered/assessed measurements as no  significant  uncertainty  exists
regarding the measurability or collectability of the sale consideration. Sales
are billed bi-monthly for domestic customers, monthly/fortnightly for
commercial & non-commercial customers & fortnightly for industrial customers
as the timing of the transfer of risks & rewards varies depending on the
individual terms of the sales agreement. Revenue on sale of Compressed
Natural Gas (CNG) is recognized on sale of gas to consumers from retail
outtets.

Nehru Nagar,
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2.8

2.9

2.10

2.1

The amount recognised as revenue is stated inclusive of excise duty &
exclusive of Sales Tax /Value Added Tax (VAT) & Goods & Service Tax & is net
of trade discounts or quantity discounts.

Unbilled revenue is recognised from the end of the last billing cycle to the
Balance Sheet date since the related supply of natural gas are performed

The amounts collected towards connection charges from cerfain domestic
customers are "Non-Refundable Charges”. Accordingly, the same are
recognized as revenue as an when the Company receives the amount from
such customers.

The amounts collected from certain domestic customers which includes
amount “refundable” in nature. Accordingly, the same are recognized as a
liability under the head "Deposit from Customers” in the balance sheet.

(if) Interest income is recognised on tfime proportionate method {on accrual
basis).

(iif) Revenue in respect of other income is recognised when no significant
uncertainty as to its determination or realisation exists.

Borrowing Costs

(i) The Company is capitalising borrowing costs that are directly attributable to

" the acquisition or construction of qualifying asset up to the date of

commissioning. Quadlifying assets are assets that necessarity take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.

(ii) Other borrowing costs are recogniéed as an expense in the year in which they
are incurred, if any.

Impairment of Property, Plant & Equipment & Intangible Assets

The Company, at each balance sheet date, assesses whether there is any indication of
impairment of any asset &/ or cash generating unit. If such indication exists, assets are
impaired by comparing carrying amount of each asset &/ or cash generating unit to
the recoverable amount being higher of the net selling price or value in use. Value in
use is determined from the present value of the estimated future cash flows from the
continuing use of the assets.

Inventories
Inventory of Gas (including gas inventory in pipeline & CNG cascades) is valued at
lower of cost & net redlizable value. Cost is determined on weighted average cost

method.

Stores, spares & consumables and other inventory items (viz. CNG Kits, etc) are valued

atlower of cost & netredlizable value. Costis determined on moving weighted average

basis.
Accounting for Income Taxes

Income tax expenses comprises current tax (i.e. amount of tax for the period
determined in accordance with the Income Tax Law) & deferred tax charge or credit
(reflecting the tax effects of timing differences between accounting income & taxable
income for the period). Income tax expenses are recognised in statement of profit or
loss except tax expenses related to items recognised directly in reserves (including
statement of other comprehensive income) which are recognised with the underlying
items.




(il

2.12 Lleases

The Income Tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current
period's taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate for each
jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets & liabilities attributable to
temporary differences & to unused tax losses.

The Current Income Tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted af the end of the reporting period i.e. as per
the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961, as amended from time to time.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. If
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to
be paid to the tax authorities.

Advance Taxes & provisions for current income taxes are presented in the
balance sheet after off-setting advance tax paid & income tax provision arising
in the same tax jurisdiction for relevant tax paying units & where the Company
is able fo & intends to settle the asset & liability on a net basis.

Deferred Tax is provided in full on temporary difference arising between the tax
bases of the assets & liabilities & their carrying amounts in Consolidated Financial
Statements at the reporting date. Deferred tax are recognised in respect of
deductible temporary differences being the difference between taxable
income & accounting income that originate in one period & are capable of
reversal in one or more subsequent periods., the carry forward of unused tax
losses & the carry forward of unused tax credits.

Deferred Income Tax is determined using tax rates (& laws) that have been
enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period & are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is redlised or the
deferred income tax liability is seftled.

Deferred Tax Assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences &
unused tax losses only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences & losses.

Deferred Tax Assets & Liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset cumrent tax assets & liabilities & when the deferred tax balances
relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets & tax liabilities are offset
where the Company has alegally enforceable right to offset & intends either to
setfle on a net basis, or to redlise the asset & settle the liability simultaneously.

Cunent & Deferred Tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.
In this case, the taxis also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, respectively.

Any tax credit available including Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) under the
provision of the Income Tax Act, 1961 isrecognised as deferred tax to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
unused tax credits can be ufilised. The said asset is created by way of credit to
the statement of profit & loss & shown under the head deferred tax asset.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date
& reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be ufilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date & are
recognised o the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits
will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

The Company as a lessee




The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and
buildings. The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at
inception of a initial application date i.e. 1 April 2019. A contract is, or contains,
alease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an idenfified asset
for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a confract
conveys the right to control the use of anidentified asset, the Company assesses
whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (i) the Company
has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the
period of the lease and (i) the Company has the right to direct the use of the
asseft,

At the date of inifial application of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-
of-use (ROU) asset and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements
in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of 12 months or less (short-
term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low-value leases,
the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on
actual payment basis as and when incurred.

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the
lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes
these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The ROU assets are initially recognized that is equal to lease liabilities on the initial
application date, that is arived based on incremental borrowing rate on the
initial application date. They are subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

ROU assets are depreciated from the initial application date on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset.
ROU assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. .
For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher
of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use} is determined on an
individual asset basis untess the asset does not generate cash flows that are
largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable
amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) fo which the asset
belongs. o

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of
the future lease payments on the date of initial application. The tease payments
are discounted using the incremental borrowing rate. Lease liabilities are
remedsured with a corresponding adjustment to the related ROU asset if the
Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise an extension or a
termination option. Lease liability and ROU assets have been separately
presenied in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as
financing cash flows.

The Company as a lessor

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating
lease. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer sulbstantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee, the confract is classified as a finance lease.
All other leases are classified as operafing leases. When the Company is an
infermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the
sublease separately. The sublease is classified as a finance or operating lease
by reference to the ROU asset arising from the head lease. For operating leases,
rental income is recognized on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

2.13 Employee Benefits

Liabilities for wages & salaries, including leave encashment that are expected to be
settled wholly within 12 months the end of the period in which the employees

Nehru Naga‘r,
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render the related service are recognised in respect of employees' services up to the
end of the reporting & are measured at the amounts expected o be paid when the
liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit
obligations in the balance sheet.

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Defined Contribution Plan:

Contribution towards provident fund for eligible employees4are accrued in
accordance with applicable statutes & deposited with the regulatory provident
fund authorities (Government administered provident fund scheme). The Group
does not carry any other obligation apart from the monthly confribution.

The Company's contribution is recognised as an expense in the Statement of
Profit & Loss during the period in which the employee renders the related
service.

Defined Benefii Plan:

Gratuity liabllity is a defined benefit obligation and is computed at the end of
each financial year on the basis of an actuarial valuation by an actuary
appointed for the purpose as per projected unit credit method. The present
value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the
estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the
reporting period on the government bonds.

The Liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined
benefit gratuity plan is the present value of the defined benefit plan obligation
at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of the plan assets. The
Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity Plan are determined by actuarial vatuation,
performed by an independent actuary, at each balance sheet date using the
projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit
obligation denominated in INR is determined by discounting the estimated
future cash outflows by reference to the market yields at the reporting period
on government bonds that have terms cpproximating fo the terms of the
related obligation. '

The net interest cost in calculated by applying the discounting rate to the net
balance of the defined benefit obligation & the fair value of plan assets. Such
costs are included in employee benefit expenses in the statement of Profit &
Loss. Re-measurements gains or losses arising from experience adjustments &
changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised immediately in the period in
which they occur directly in "other comprehensive income” & are included in
retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity & in the balance sheet.
Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit orloss in subsequent periods.

The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit
obligation as an expense in the statement of profit & loss:

e Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains
& losses on curtailments & non-routine settlements;
e Netinterest expense orincome.

Long Term Employee Benefits:

The liability in respect of accrued leave benefits which are expected fo be
availed or encashed beyond 12 months from the end of the year, is treated as
long term employee benefits.

The Company's liability is actuarially determined by qualified actuary at
balance sheet date by using the Projected Unit Credit method.

Actuarial losses/ gains are recognized in the Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income in the year in which they arise.




2.14

2,15

2.16

217

2.18

219

2.20

Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting
provided to the chief operating decision maker. The Company operates in a single
segment of natural gas business and relevant disclosure requirements as per Ind AS 108
“Operating Segments” have been disclosed by the Company under note no 38.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets

Provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past
events & it is probable that the outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation & in respect of which reliable estimates can be made. A disclosure for
contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation that may, but probably
will not require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a present
obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no
provision/ disclosure is made. Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial
statement,

Provisions & contingencies are reviewed at each balance sheet date & adjusted to
reflect the correct management estimates.

Statement of Cash Flows

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before taxis adjusted
for the effects of fransactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or
accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments & item of income or
expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from
operating, investing & financing activities of the Company are segregated.

Events occurring after the Reporting Date

Adjusting events (that provides evidence of condition that existed at the balance sheet
date) occuring after the balance sheet date are recognized in the Consolidated
Financial Statements. Material non adjusting events (that are inductive of conditions
that arose subsequent fo the balance sheet date)-occurning after the balance sheet
date that represents material change & commitment affecting the financial position
are disclosed’in the Directors' Report.

Exceptional items

Certain occasions, the size, type or incidence of an item of income or expense,
pertaining 1o the ordinary activities of the Company is such that its disclosure improves
the understanding of the performance of the Company, such income or expense is
classified as an exceptional item & accordingly, disclosed in the notes accompanying
to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Dividends

Final Dividend on shares is recorded as liability on the date of approval of the same by
Shareholders & interim dividend are recorded as liability on the date on declaration by

-Company's board of Directors.

Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss [excluding other
comprehensive income] for the year atfributable to equity shareholders by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for events
such as bonus issue, bonus element in a right issue, shares split & reserve share splits
[consolidation of shares] that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding,
without a corresponding change in resources. For the purpose of calculating diluted
earnings per share, the net profit or loss [excluding other comprehensive income] for
the year attributable to equity shareholders & the weighted average number of shares
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outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity

shares.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity
and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. Financial instruments also
include derivative contracts such as foreign exchange forward confracts, cross
currency interest rate swaps, interest rate swaps, currency options and embedded
derivatives in the host contract.

a. Financial Assets

Initial recognition and medsurement

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value (plus transaction costs
dttributable o the acquisition of the financial assets, in the case of financial
assefs are not recorded at fair value through profit or loss).

Classifications

The company classifies its financial assets as subsequently measured at either
amortized cost or fair value depending on the company's business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of
the financial assets.

Business model assessment

The company assesses the objective of a business model in which an asset is
held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is
managed, and information is provided to management.

Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal
and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the
financial asset on initial recognition. ‘Interest' is defined as consideration for the
time value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount
outstanding during a period, for other basic lending risks, costs (e.g. liquidity risk
and administrative costs), and profit margin. :

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal
and interest, the company considers the contractual terms of the instrument.
This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term
that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it
would not meet this condition.

Financial Assets at amonrtised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost only if both of the following
conditions are met;
- It is held within a business model whose objective is fo hold assets to
collect contractual cash flows.
- the contractual terms of the financial asset represents contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the EIR method. Amortised cost is calculated by
considering any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
on integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance income in
the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit
or loss.
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Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost only if both of the following
conditions are met:
- it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows.
- the contractual terms of the financial asset represent contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and inferest.

On initial recognition, the Company makes an irrevocable election on an
instrument-by-instrument basis to present the subsequent changes in fair value
in other comprehensive income pertaining to investments in equity instruments,
other than equity investment which are held for trading. Subsequently, they are
measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the ‘Reserve
for equity instruments through other comprehensive income'. The cumulative
gain or loss is not reclassified 1o profit or loss on disposal of the investments.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL)

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Company
irevocably elects on initial recognition to present subsequent changes in fair
value in other comprehensive income for investments in equity instruments
which are not held for frading.

Other financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is
measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive
income on initial recognition. The transaction costs directly atfributable.to the
acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
immediately recognised in statement of the profit and loss.

Investment in Subsidiaries, Jointly Controlled Entities and Associates

Investment in subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and associates are measured
at cost less impairment as per the Ind AS 27 -Separate Financial Statements.

Impdirment of investments

The Company reviews its carrying value of investments carried at cost or
amortised cost annually, or more frequently when there is indication for
impairment. If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is accounted for.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a
group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e. removed from the
company's balance sheet) when:

- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

- The company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the
asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in
full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass-through'
arrangement; and either (a) the company has fransferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the company
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has fransferred control of the asset.

When the company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset
or has entered info a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what
extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor
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transferred control of the asset, the company continues to recognize the
transferred asset to the extent of the company's continuing involvement. In that
case, the company also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset
and the associated liability are measured on a basis thaf reflects the rights and
obligations that the company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the fransferred
asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the company could be required to

repay.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying
amount of the asset (or the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset
derecognised} and the sum of (i) the considerationreceived (including any new
asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and (i) any cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in the OClis recognised in profit or loss. '

Impdirment of financial assets

The Company assesses the expected credit losses associated with its assefs
carried at amortised cost and FVOCI debt instruments on a forward-looking
basis. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk.

With regard to trade receivable, the Company applies the simplified approach
as permitted by the Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised from the initial recognition of the trade
receivables.

For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount
equal to the 12 month expected credit losses or at an amount equal to the life
time expected credit losses if the credit risk on The financial assets has increased
significantly since |n|hol recognition.

b. Financial Liabilities

i. Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified at initial recognition as financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss or amortised cost, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and in the case of
amortised cost, net of directly aftributable transaction costs.

ii. Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as
described below:

Financial Liabilities measured at dmorﬂsed cost

After the initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by considering any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The ER
amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

7, Herllage
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Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held
for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if
they are incumed for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit
or loss are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the
criteria in the Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value
gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI.
These gains/ losses are not subsequently transferred to the P&L. However, the
Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All the other
changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss. '

iii. Derecognition of financial liabilities

The company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations
are discharged or cancelled or expire.

c. Modifications of financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial assets

If the terms of a financial asset are modified, the company evaluates whether the
cash flows of the modified asset are substantially different. If the cash flows are
substantially different, then the contractual rights to cash flows from the original
financial asset are deemed to have expired. In this case, the original financial
asset is derecognised and a new financial asset is recognised at fair value.

If the cash flows of the modified asset caried at amortised cost are not
substantially different, then the modification does not result in derecognition of
the financial asset. In this case, the company recalculates the gross carrying
amount.of the financial asset and recognises the amount arising from adjusting
the gross carrying amount as a modification gain or loss in profit or loss. If such a
modification is canied out because of financial difficulties of the borrower, then
the gain orloss is presented together with impairment losses. In other cases, it is
presented as interest income. The gain / loss is recognised in other equity in case
of tfransaction with shareholders.

Financial liabilities

Borrowings and other financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value (net
of transaction costs incurred). Difference between the fair value and the
transaction proceeds on initial is recognised as an asset / liability based on the
underlying reason for the difference.

Subsequently all financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method. The company derecognises a financial liability
when its terms are modified, and the cash flows of the modified liability are
substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified
terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the camrying amount of
the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified
terms is recognised in profit or loss. The gain / loss is recognised in other equity in
case of transaction with shareholders.

The Company has computed the Equity component of the Preference Shares
considering the terms of the RPS to be non-cumulative and further modified the
estimates of future cash flows.




2.22 Fair Value Measurements

These Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared under the historical cost
convention, except certain financial assets & liabilities measured at fair value (refer
accounting policy on financial instruments) as per relevant applicable Ind AS.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The
fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the fransaction to sell the
asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for
the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible
to the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest. A fair value measurement of a non-
financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest & best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest & best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances &
for which sufficient data are avdilable to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs & minimising the use of unobservable inputs. All assets &
liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Consolidated Financial
Statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

¢ Llevel 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities

o Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

o Level 3— Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets & liabilities that are recognised in the Consolidated financial Statements on
a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between
Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level inpuf
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole] at the end of each |
reporting period. :

{All amounts are in Million Indian Rupees)

2A;2¢;t 31 March Financial |nsirume;ri:::};‘;a'regory (carrying Fair value hierarchy (fair value)

FVPL FVO | Amortised Total Level | Level Level 3 Total

Cl cost 1 2

financial assets
Investment 102.78 - 256.87 359.65 - - 359.65 359.65
Loans - - 77.42 77.42 - - 77 .42 77.42
Trade receivables - - 227.12 22712 - - 227.12 227.12
Cash & cash - - 591.49 591.49 - - 591.49 591.49
Other Bank Balances - - 405.56 405.56 - - 405.56 405.56
Other financial assets - - 208.25 208.25 - - 208.25 208.25
Total financial 102.78 | 17sem 1869.49 : : 1869.49 | 1869.49
assels
Financial liabilities
Borrowings - - 2,025.91 2,025.91 - - 2,025.91 2,025.91
Trade payables - - 250.93 250.93 - - 250.93 250.93
Other financial - - 531.46 531.46 - - 531.46 531.46
Total financial - -| 2.808.30 2,808.30 - - 2,808.30 2,808.30
liabilities




{Allamounts are in Million Indian Rupees)

As at 31 March

Financial instruments by category (carrying

Fair value hierarchy (fair value)

2021 amount)

FVPL FVO | Amortised Total Level | Level Level 3 Total

Cl cost 1 2

Financial assets
Investment 13.76 61.38 75.14 - - 75.14 75.14
Loans - - - - - - -
Trade receivables - 111.86 111.86 - - 111.86 111.86
Cash & cash - 257.52 257.52 - - 257.52 257.52
Other Bank Balances - 156.74 156.74 - - 156.74 156.74
Other financial assets - 48.33 48.33 - - 48.33 48.33
Total financial 13.76 435.83 £49.59 . . £49.59 449.59
assets
Financial liabilities
Borrowings - 1,633.51 1,633.51 - - 1,633.51 1,633.51
Trade payables - 100.60 100.60 - - 100.60 100.60
Other financial - 340.54 340.54 - - 340.54 340.54
Total financial . .| 2,074.65 2,074.45 - - 2,074.65 2,074.65
liabilities

2.23 The previous year numbers have been reclassified wherever necessary. Unless otherwise
stated, all amounts are in Million Indian Rupees. ltems reflecting as 0.00 denotes value

less than Rs. 50,000.
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IRM ENERGY LIMITED
Accompanying notes o the Consolldated Financial stat: f
{Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are In Milllon indian Rupees)
Note No. Partlculars As al March 31, 2022] As a! March 31, 2021
Invesiments
4AINon Current
fiJunquoted Investment in Equily Instruments of Joint Conirol Entity {measured at amortised cost]
- 17,21,344 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully poid of Farm Gas Piivate limited {31st March, 2021+ 10,49,600) 163.47 8.81
- 10,50,800 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid of Venuka Polymers Private limited (31st March, 2021: 10,50,800) 5.40 2.56
- 50,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid of Ni- Hon Cylinders Private limiled {31st March, 2021: Nil) 1.40 -
{ijfUnquoted Investment in Preference Shares of Joint Control Entity {(measured at amortised cost)
- 44,50,000, 10.50% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid of Farm Gas Private limited 44.50 15.90
[31st March, 2021: 15,90,000) b
- 42,10,200 10.50% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid of Yenuka Polymers Private Limited {315t 42,10 27.10
March, 2021: 27,10,200}
256.87 61.38
4B{Current
Investment in Units of Mutual Fund [measured at Market Value)
Baroda Business Cycle Fund 69.46 -
69.94,635 unils {(March 31, 2021: Nil)
Union Flex! Cap Fund 479 -
1,446,033 units {March 31, 2021: Nil)
Union Focused Fund 4.14 -
2,37,661 unils {March 31, 2021 : Nil)
Union Hybrid Equily Fund 15.49 9.18
12,49,937 unils {Morch 31, 2021: 8,65,647)
Union Large & Midcop Fund 4.12 -
2,57,001 units {March 31, 2021: Nil)
Union Medium Durafion Fund 478 4.58
4,48.477 units (March 31, 2021: 4,48,477}
102.78 13.76
Financiol asset- Non-current
5A[ loans
Loans fo Reloted Parties 7490 -
Employee Loan 2.52 -
77.42 -
58| Ofhertinancial assels
Security Deposit !
To Related Parties [Unsecured, considered good] 0.44 0.44
To Others [Unsecured, considered good] 15.05 12.69
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful - -
Bank Balances
Balonce in FDR Accounls* 166.26 29.11
*The Company has issued Bank Guarantees in favour of PNGRB during normal course of business. Such Bank Guaraniees are issued
by the Banks against Morgin Money kept with bank in the form of Fixed Deposits carrying maturity of mare than 12 months.
181.75 4223
Other non- current assets
Capital advances [Unsecured, considered good} 3207 3.58
Unamortised expenses - Borrowing Cost under EIR 17.01 1871
Advance poyment of income tax [net fo provision) - 31.84
Prepaid Expenses 39.23 41.06
8a.31 95.19
Inventories (measured al lower of cost or net realisabie value)
Natural Gas 12.02 206
Sparies and Consumables 5.14 591
CNG Kils - 008
17.1% a.05
Current tinanclal assets : Trade receivables
Secured, considered good {secured against security deposits)) 147.05 7493
Unsecured, considered good {Others) 80.07 3693
227.12 111.84
Trade Receivables Ageing Schedule as on 31.03.2022
Outsianding for following perlods Irom due dale of Payment
Particulars Unbllled Nol Due te:,'st::;‘: s ,;“;2':,5 . 12 Years 2.3 vears More then 3 years Total
‘C"o :s?;’:”:‘;'z‘zgfde recelvables - 1183 17895 3e.28 0.00 0.04 - 227.12
(i) 'Undisputed Trade Receivabtes — which ~ _ . _ _ : _ R
have significant increase in credit risk
(iii) ‘Undisputed Trade Receivables ~ credit _ _ _ R ~ _ _ .
impaired
fiv) 'Disputed Trade Receivables- considered _ _ N _ _ R _ .
good
{v) ‘Disputed Trade Receivables - which have _ B . . R . R B
significant increase in credit risk
{vi] 'Disputed Trode Receivables ~ credit B _ _ . . _ R .
'impaired
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IRM ENERGY LIMITED
Accompanylng notes lo the Cor d Financial sStaf s
{Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in Million Indian Rupees)
Note No. Particulars As at March 31, 2022| As ot March 31, 202}
Trade Recelvables Agelng Schedule as on 31.03.2021
Oulstanding tor following perlods from due dote of Payment
Particulars Unbllled Not Due If':‘so':;: N T;:':rs N 12 Years 2.3 Years More han 3 years Total
2’0 E:;g:s;’z‘:}:fde recelvables 6.65 8324 2161 0.23 013 - . 11.86
{ii) ‘Undisputed Trade Receivables — which _ B . _ _ ~ ~ B
have significant increase in credit risk
[iii) 'Undisputed Trade Receivables ~ credit . . _ R . R _ :
impaired
{iv) 'Disputed Trade Receivables- consldered R _ _ _ : B R R
good
{v] 'Disputed Trade Receivables — which have R _ R . . N . _
significant increase in credit risk
{vi) ‘Disputed Trade Receivables - credil . _ : N _ ~ B :
'impaired
9 Curren! financlal assets
9A| Cash and cash equivalents
{a) Balance wilh banks
Balance in Current Accounts 591.17 257.27
{b) Cash on hand 032 025
98| Bank bolances other than above
{a) Margin Money deposits under lien against DSRA, Bank Guarantee and/or Stand By Letter of Credit {seLc)* 405.56 156.74
*The Company has issued Bank Guarantees and Stand-By Letier of Credit{sBLC) fo various Govt. agencies and other Suppliers
during normal couise of business. Such Bank Guarantees and SBLC have been fssued ogainst Margin Money kept wilh bank in the
form of Fixed Deposits cairying maturity of between 3 months to 12 monihs. Further. os per the financing document, the Company]|
has also created Debt Service Reserve Account as Fixed Deposit with the Bank.
997.05 414.26
10 Current financial assels : Others
Insurance Claim Receivable 219 -
Inlerest Receivable 2.12 0.03
Deposif - Current 1200 570
Dividend Receivable 935 -
Imprest amount with Employees 084 0.36
2650 6.10
1 Other current assels
Advance to Suppliers {Unsecured, Considered good) 16.24 10.41
Prepaid Expense 2793 1299
4417 23.40
12 Share capltal
Aulhorised :
5,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- Each 500.00 500.00
4,00,00,000 Preference Shares of Rs.10/- Each 40000 40000
900.00 20C.00
Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid-up Equily Shares :
Equily shares
2,93,69,677 [as al March 31, 2021: 2,89,99,471), Equily Shares of Rs.10/- each 293.70 289 99 .
Prelerence shares
10% Redeemable Preference Shores - -
3.49.99,432 [as at March 31, 2021: 3,15,84,991] shares of Rs. 10/- each s
293.70 289.99
A Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of oulstanding Shares is as under:
1)|Equily Shares
Name ol Shareholder No. ol shares % af Holding
As at 31.03.2022
Cadila Pharmaceulicals Ltd 1.49.78,535 51.00%
Dr. Rajiv I. Modi {Trustee of IRM Trust} 55.80.238 19.00%
Enertech Distribution Management Pvi, Ltd. 86,70.126 29.52%)
As at 31.03.2021
Cadila Pharmacevticals Ltd 1,48,91,004 51.35%
Dr. Rajiv I. Modi {Trustee of IRM Tiust) 55,47.628 19.13%,
Enertech Distribution Management Pvt, Lid. 85,60,839 29 .52%)
1){10% Non Cumulallve Reedemable Preference Shares
Name of Shareholder No. ol shares % ol Holding
As al 31.03.2022
Cadila Pharmaceuticals Lid 3,49,99.432 100.00%)|
As al 31.03.2021
Cadila Phaimaceulicals Ltd 3,49,99.432 100.00%
B Oetalls and Change in Promotors’ holding during the year
{1)|Equity Shares
Name of Shareholder No. of shares Zholding % ::::gfh'z ::':"“9
As af 31.03.2022
Cadila Pharmaceuticals Lid 1,49.78,535 51.00% -0.35%
Dr. Rajiv I. Modi (Trustee of IRM Trust} 55,80,238 19.00% -0.13%|
As ot 31.03.2021
Cadila Pharmaceuticals Ltd 1,48,91,004 51.35% 0.35%
Dr. Rajiv I. Modi {Trustee of IRM Trust) 55,47,628 19.13% 0.13%|
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IRM ENERGY LIMITED

Accompanying notesto the C tidated Fl lal stat: ts

{Unless otherwise stated, alt amounts are in Million Indian Rupees)

Nofe No. Particulors

As at March 31, 2022

As at March 31, 2021

o4 Terns and condttions:

)| Equity Shares:
alVoting rights;

b|Dividend:

{i)|Red ble Non- Ci five P Shares (RPS):

a|Redemption terms:

The preference shares canies redemption period of 10 years from fhe dale of issuance.
b|Dividend:

D Reconcillation of shares oufslanding af Ihe beginning and ot the end of the reporling period

Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each

The company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 per share. Equity shareholders are entilled lo one vote per share held.

The dividend provided, if any, by board of directors is subject to approval of shareholders in Annual General Meeling. except. in case of interim dividend. In the event of
liquidalion of he company, the eqully shareholders shall be enfitled to proportionale share of their holding in the assets remaining after distibution of all preferential amounls.

The dividend provided, if any, by boord of directors is subject to approval of sharehalders in Annual General Meeting, except. in case of interim dividend. In the event of
liquidation of the company, the equity shareholders shall be entilled to proportionate share of their holding in the assets remaining after distribution of all preferential amounts.

Pariculars Number of Shares
Shares outstanding as af 01.04.2020 2.71,25.000
Add: Shares issued during the period 2020-21 18,74,471
Shares outstanding as at 31.03.2021 2,89.99,471
Add: Shares issued during the period 2021-22 3.70.206
Shares cutstanding at 31.03.2022 2,93,89.677
Non Cumulalive Reedemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each
Particulars Number of Shares
Shares oulslanding at the beginning of the period 3,49.99.432
Add: Shares issued during the period -
Shares oulslanding at the end of the period 3,49,99,432
Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
13 Reserves and surplus
A. Statement of profit and loss
Opening balance 633.42 284.53
Add: Reserve at the beginning of the period of Joint Venture Entity, acquired during the year (0.01)
Add: Transfer from statement of protit and loss 1,280.29 348.89
Less: Corporate Dividend {35.00)
Less: ltems routed through SOCIE - -
Closing balance 1.878.70 433.42
B. Equity Component of Preference Shares
1) OCCPs (Oplionally Converlible Cumulative Preference Shares)
Opening 0.23 0.23
Equity Component of OCCPS - -
Closing Balance 0.23 0.23
i) Non Cumulaiive Reedemable Prelerence Shares
Opening 210.82 173.24
Equity Component of non-cumulative redeemable preference shares - 37.58
Closing Balance 210.81 210.82
Closing balonce {I+i) 211.05 211.05
C. llems of OCI| - Remeasurement of ihe ne! defined benetit liability/asset, net of tax effect
Opening {0.67) [0.49)
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability/asset, net of tox eftect’ 0.15 (0.18)
Closing bolance {0.52)| (0.67)
*Remeasurement of defined benelit plans represents aclurial gain and losses and returns on plan assefs
{excluding intetest incomej.
D. Securiites Premlum
Opening Balance 42.25 18.57
Addition during the year 12.04 2481
Less: Stamp duly expense on shares - 1.3}
Closing Balance 54,29 42,25
Total Reserves 2,143.52 886.06
14 Non- current financial liabllities : Borrowings
14A| Non-Cuirent
Secured (caried al amorlized cost)$
Rupee Term loans frorn banks 1,675.10 1,41475
Vehicle Loon 872 -
Unsecured
Preference shares
liability compenent 10% Non cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each 183.78 167 .07
1.867.60 1,581.82
14BjCurrent
Secured {carled af amortized cosh)$
Rupee Term loans from banks#
Current Maturilies of Rupee Term Loan from Banks 10697 51.69
Working Capital Loan trom Banks 4998 -
Vehicle Loan 1.37 -
158.32 51.69
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IRM ENERGY LIMITED

Accompanying noles lo the Consolidaled Financlal Statemenis

{Unless otherwise stated, all amounis are in Milion Indian Rupees)

Note No. Particulars As at March 31, 2022| As al March 31, 202}
{A})|Details of Secured logns
From Banks
Parliculars Terms of Repayment and Interest rate

banks: Union Bank of India and Bank of Baroda)

Rupee Term loon: For project of Cily Gas Distribution of Banaskantha and Fatehgath Sahip District {consorfium of

40 quaterly installments started from July 2021 and Interest rale|
ranges from | year MCLR +0.25% 1o | Year MCLR+1.45%

Baroda , Union Bank of Indic and Punjab Nafional Bank)

Rupee Term loan: For project of City Gos Dislribution of Diu and Gir somnath Dislrict {consortium of banks: 8ank of

IstTranche: 20 quaterly installments from April, 2023
2nd Tranche: 20 quaterly instaliments from April, 2027 and
Interest rate ranges from | year MCLR +0.25% to 1 Year

MCLR+) 80%

Vehicle Loans

Repayable in 84 Equivalent Monthly installments and interest
rate ranges from 7.30% to 7.40% linked to 3 monih EBLR +0.60%

8)|The details of security given for all loans are as under :

{i) The Rupee Term Loan is secured as below:

-Exclusive charge on DSRA created for the specific project.

(i) The Working Capitalis secured as below:

{ii) ‘The Vehicle Loans are secured by Charge on Vehicle

[vi) For more security details on bonk financing, refer Note - 36

{iv] There is no default in repayment of lean and interest thereon as on 31.03.2022
{v) The book value of the fixed assets as on 31.03.2022 charged in favour of the lenders is Rs. 3777 .59 million {incl CWIP} (Previous year: Rs. 2768.91 million)

-Firsl charge on the Trust and Retention Account of the specitic project on pari passu basis.
-First charge on cumrent assels (incl. cash llows, receivables, etc). both preseni and future, of Ihe specilic projects on paii passu basis.

-First Charge on movable and immovable assets (oolh present and future] relating to the specific projects on paii possu basis.

-second Charge en movable and immovable assets {both preseni and fulure) relating to the speciic projects on pari passu bosis.
-First charge on current assets {incl. cash flows, receivables. eic). both present and future. of the specific projects on pari passu basis

Total outsionding dues ol micro enterprises and small P -

Trade payables - Others

{C}|Reconciliation of guarlerly returns or stalements of current assels filed by the Company with banks or financial instilutions hoving material descrepancies only
For the perlod ended|For the perod ended
Partculars tember, 2021 o} ber, 2021
Value of Inventory
As per Books of accounts 15.07 15.08|
As per details submitted to Banks 15.07 14.92]
Difference* - 0.16
Trade Receivable
As per Books of accounts 162.33 219.65]
As per details submitled to Banks 166.99 220.03]
Difterence” (4.66) [0.38}
Trade Pavable
As per Books of accounts 9073 141,98
As per details submilted lo Banks 7619 126.71
Difference* 14.55 15.28
» subsequent fo year end, Company has submitted the revised statement for all quarters and all figures as per revised statement are in agreement with the books of accounis
15 Current financlal Iiabiii'ies : Trade payables

Act, 2006

Micro, Small & Medium Enferprises Development Act, 2006

{i) Principol omount remaining unpaid o any supplier os at the end of the accounling year

i} Interes! due thereon remaining unpaid 1o any supplier as at the end of the accounling year

{v) The amount of interes! accrued & remaining unpaid at the end of the accounling yeor

i} The omount of interest paid by the compony in terms of section 16 of the Micro. Small & Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2006, along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed Development Act, 2006, aleng with Ihe
amouni of the payment made lo Ihe supplier beyond the oppoinled day during the accounting year
{iv)The amount of inferest due & payable for the period of delay in making paymeni [which have been paid bui beyond the

appointed doy during the year} but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises Development

{vi) The amount of turther interest remaining due & payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when ihe interest dues
above are aclually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under secfion 23 of the

Trade Payables : Micro and Small enterprises 243 11.21
Total outstonding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterpiises:-
Trade payables - Gas Purchase / Transmission 139.67 48.43
Trode payables - Related parties 11.02 0.04
Trade payables - Others 97.80 4021
250.93 100.60
Trade Payables Ageing Schedule as on 31.03.2022
Outstanding tor toltowing periods from due dale of payment
Pariculars Not Due iess than 1 1-2 years 2.3 years Mare than 3 years Total
Year
i) MSME 2.43 - - - - 2.43
(i) Others 241.21 7.28 0.00 001 - 248.50
(iii) Disputed dues- MSME - - - - - -
{iv) Disputed dues- Others - - - - - -
Trade Payables Ageing Schedule as on 31.03.2021
Outstanding lor following petlods from due date of payment
Parliculars Not Due Les;lhun ! 1-2 years 2-3years More than 3 years Tetal
ear
(il MSME 11.21 - - - - 11.21
{ii) Others 8296 553 089 - - 89.39
{iii] Disputed dues- MSME - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues- Others - - - - - -
Disclosure req\ilred under micro, small & medium enlerprises development act, 2004 (lhe act) are as tollows:
2.43 .21

idenlified on the basis of informaticn available with the Company

Nehtu Nagar,
Ambawadi
Ahmedabad-13

Note: Information as required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been determined to the extent such porties have been




IRM EN

[Accompanying notes to the C.

ERGY LIMITED

lidated Financial stat

{Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are In Million Indian Rupees)

Note No. Partlculars As af March 31, 2022f As at March 31, 2021
16  |Other financial liabilllles
Non-Current
Customer Security Deposit 19524 143.08
Lease Liabilities {refer Note 42) 108.21 50.01
303.45 193.09
Current
Creditors for Capital Goods 136.21 117.24
Lease Liabilities {refer Note 42} 8.85 622
Oflhers payable 8294 23.9%9
228.00 147.45
17 Provisions
17A| Non-Current
Provision for Employee Benefils {refer Note - 31) 9.35 7.00
9.35 7.00
178| Current
Provisian for Employee Benedits {refer Note - 31) 0.4) 0.11
0.41 o.n
18  [Current liabllittes : Others
Statutory dues payable 61.41 29.72
$1.41 29.72
19 Deferred Tax Liabllifies {nel)
Current Tax Liabilities 147.12 93.58
147.12 93.58
Parliculars As at 01.04.2021 Chung;:;""g e | asat 31.03.2022
Deferred Tox Llabililies
Depreciation 109.52 69.52 179.04
{a) 109.52 69.52 179.04
Delerred Tax Assets
Provision for Relirement Benefits 1.79 0.67 2.46
Lease Liability 14.18 15.31 29.47
{b) 15.94 1598 3192
Net Deferred Tax {Liabllities)/Assels {o-b) 93.58 53.54 14712
ot o rrcotrs o5 o | e e ez e
20 Revenue from Operalions
Sale of Goods
CNG Sales {Gross of Taxes) 2,967.35 1,636.11
PNG Sales 2,464.71 460.92
Sale of Services
Connection Income 20.69 13.54
Other Operating Revenues 8.67 7.52
5,441.43 2,118.09
21 Other Non-operaling Income
Gain on remesurement of financial Assets 108 031
Interest Income 29.42 7.02
30.50 7.33
22 Purchases of stock-in-lrade of nalural gas
Natural Gos 2.49227 77086
2,492.27 770.86
23 Changes in invenlorles of Nalural Gas
Changes in Inventorles of finished goods, stock in frade and work in progress - Natural Gas
Inventory at the beginning of the year 206 187
Less: Inventory at the end of the year 12.02 2.06
(9.96) (0.20)
24 Employee Benelils Expense
Solaries, wages and bonus 6215 35.53
Company's contribution fo provident & other funds 2.38 1.89
Leave Encashment and Gratuity {Refer nole 31) 3.02 302
Staff welfare expenses 403 0.67
71.58 41.11
25 Finance Costs
Interest Cast
- OnTerm loan 129.47 105.98
- On Working Capital 0.39 1.04
- On Preference Shares 1671 15.59
- On Finance Lease Liability (refer Note 42) 699 4.60
- Others 496 187
Other Borrowing Cost 1.69 1.69
Bank and Other Finonce Charges 60.56 2778
22077 158.55




IRM ENERGY LIMITED

Accompanying notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

{Unless otherwise stated, alt amounts are in Million Indian Rupees)

Note

No. Particulars

For the year
ending
March 31, 2022

For the year
ending
March 31, 2021

24 Depreciation and Amortisation expense

Depreciation of tangible assets {refer note 3.1) 142.59 107.30
Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 3.4) 7.78 12.70
150.37 120.00
27 Other Expenses
Adveritisement and Marketing Expenses 10.02 4.33
Business Promotion Expenses 1.96 2.14
Corporate Social Responsibility Expense {refer Note - 37) 6.03 3.40
Consumption of Spares and Consumables 5.19 6.58
Director's Sitting Fees 2.78 1.80
Hire Charges
-Vehicles 237.20 132.97
Insurance Cost 9.46 4.98
Legal and Professional Charges 16.77 10.56
License Fees 63.00 -
Managerial Remuneration 20.79 7.47
Power and fuel 82.82 53.69
Rent (refer note 42) 4.58 1.79
Repairs and Mdintenance
-Buildings 0.38 0.35
-Plant and Machineries 140.12 77.99
-Others 1.81 0.91
Stamp Duty Expense 1.24 9.41
Security Expense 4.90 4.43
Tender Fees 13.54 -
Travelling, Lodging and Boarding 9.15 2.88
Rates and Taxes 0.18 091
Miscellaneous expenses 21.28 18.19
653.27 351.79
Payments to auditor
For Statutory Audit {Incl GST) 1.42 1.27
For GST & Tax Audit (Incl GST) 0.46 0.31
For Certification & other reimbursements (incl. GST) 0.28 0.19
28 Tax Expense
Corporate Tax- Current 334.50 88.10
Corporate Tax- Previous year - 1.79
Deferred Tax (refer Note - 19) 53.54 19.72
388.04 109.61
28A|Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Tax using the Company's domestic tax rate 25.17% 2517%
Profit/(loss) before tax 1,523.64 460.87
Tax using Company's Domestic Tax rate 383.50 116.00
Tax effect of adjustments in calculating taxable Income
CSR Expense 1.52 0.86
Depreciation (51.75} (45.23)
Interest on Current Tax 8.30 -
Tax Expense of earlier years - 1.79
Other items {7.06) 16.48
Income Tax Expense reported into Profit and Loss Cumrent Year 334.50 89.89
Corporate Tax - Current 21.95% 19.50%

.$
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29.

Financial risk management:

The Companies activities expose it to credit risk, liquidity risk & market risk. This note
explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to & how the entity manages the
risk & the related impact in the Consolidated Financial Statements. The Companies risk
management is done in close co-ordination with the board of directors & focuses on
actively securing the Companies short, medium & long-term cash flows by minimizing
the exposure to volafile financial markets. Long-term financial investments are
managed to generate lasting retums. The Company does not actively engage in the
trading of financial assets for speculative purposes nor does it write options. The most
significant financial risks to which the Company is exposed are described below:

(i)

(it

(i)

Credit risk:

Credit risk arises from the possibility that counter party may not be able fo settle
their obligations as agreed. The Company is exposed to credit risk from trade
receivables, bank deposits & other financial assets.

Bank deposits are placed with reputed banks / financial institutions. Hence, there
is no significant credit risk on such fixed deposits.

The Company periodically assesses the financial reliability of the counter party,
taking into account the financial condition, current economic frends, & analysis of
historical bad debts & ageing of accounts receivable. Individual limits are set
accordingly.

The Company trades with recognized '& credit worthy third pariies. If is the
Companies policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject
to credit verification procedures. In addition, trade receivable balances are
monitored on an on-going basis with the result that the Companies exposure to
bad debts is not significant.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis
for major clients. In addition, a large number of minor receivables are grouped info
homogenous groups & assessed for impairment collectively. The calculation is
based on exchange losses historical data. Also, the Company does not enter into
sales transaction with customers having credit loss history.

There are no significant credit risks with related parties of the Company. Adequate
expected credit losses are recognized as per the assessments.

Liquidity risk:

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet
its obligations on time or at areasonable price. For the Company, liquidity risk arises
from obligations on account of financial liabilities — borrowings, frade payables &
other financial liabilities.

The Company's principle sources of liquidity are cash & cash equivalents & the
cash flow that is generated from operations. The Company believes that the
working capital is sufficient to meet its current requirements. Accordingly, no
liquidity risk is perceived. The Company closely monitors its liquidity position &
maintains adequate source of funding.

Maturities of financial liabilities:

The tables below analyse the Companies financiat liabilities info relevant maturity
groupings based on their contractual maturities for all non-derivative financial
liabilities. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted
cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the
impact of discounting is not significant.




(iv)

(v)

(vi)

All amounts are in Million Indian Rupees})

As at 31¢t March, 2022 Upto 1-21 2-5yrs More
year 1 years than 5
_ yrs
Borrowings (other than 158.31 171.77 516.02 996.04
redeemable preference shares)
Redeemable preference shares - - 29.90 153.88
Trade payables 250.93 - - -
Other financial liabilities 423.24 20.12 28.57 59.52
TOTAL 832.48 191.89 574.49 1209.44
GRAND TOTAL 2808.30

[All amounts are in Million Indian Rupees)

As at 31st March, 2021 Upto 1-2| 2-5yrs More
year 1 years than 5
yrs
Borrowings {other than 51.69 68.93 397.39 948.44
_redeemoble preference shares)
Redeemable preference shares - - - 167.07
Trade payables 100.60 - - -
Other financial liabilities 290.53 1.89 6.83 41.28
TOTAL 442.82 70.82 404.22 | 1,156.79
GRAND TOTAL 2074.65
Market risk:

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices— such as foreign exchange
rates, interest rates & equity prices— will affect the Companiesincome or the value
of its holdings of financial instruments.

Foreign exchange risk:

The Company is not directly exposed to foreign exchange risk as no direct foreign
currency transactions are entered into.

Interest Rate Risk:

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Companies exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily
to the Companies long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates.

The Companies investments in fixed deposits are at fixed interest rates.

The exposure of the Companies borrowing to interest rate changes at the end of
the reporting period are as follows:

7, Herlta

C'hambergs'.
Nehru Nagsr,
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(Al amounts are in Million Indian Rupees)

‘ As at 31st As at 313t
Pariculars March, March, 2021
2022
Variable rate instruments
Financial Assets - -
Financial Liabilities 1,842.14 1,466.44
Fixed Rate instruments
Financial Assets 646.73 185.85
Financial Liabilities 300.84 223.30
Interest rate variation Change Impact Impact
Scenario-1 (+) 0.50% 9.21 7.33
Scenario-2 (-) 0.50% (9.21) (7.33)

Capital Management:

The company objectives when managing capital are to safeguard their ability to
confinue as a going concern so that they can continue to provide returns for
shareholders & benefits for other stakeholders, & maintain an optimal structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

Net Debt = Totdl term loan bomrowings less cash & cash equivalents including curent
investments

Total 'equity’ means share capital issued (Equity Shares & Preference Shares}) &
accumulated reserves.

{All amounts are in Million Indian Rupees

As at 314 As at 31st

Particulars March, 2022 |-March, 2021
Total borrowings (including Liability component of 2,025.91 1,633.51
Redeemable Preference Shares)

Less: cash & cash equivalents & Balance with 1,266.10 45713
Banks

Net debt 759.82 1,176.38
Total equity 2,295.17 1,178.68
Net Debt to Equity Ratio 0.33 1.00

Loan Covenants:

Under the terms of the major borrowing facilities, the Company is required to comply
any 2 of the following financial covenants failing which penal interest as prescribed in
the facility agreement shall apply. The Financial Covenants shall be tested at the end
of each Fiscal Year based on the certification of the Auditor.

a} Gross DSCR-1.10
b) Interest Coverage ratio- 1.25
c) FACR = (Net Property, Plant and Equipment/ Loan Outstanding)- 1.25




The first testing of financial covenants will be done for the first full operational year post
the commencement of commercial operations of the Project, i.e. based on audited
financials for Fiscal Year ending March 31, 2023,

31. Employee Benefits:

(i)

(i)

Short term employee benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service
are classified as short term employee benefits. Benefits such-as Salaries, incentives
& allowances, short terms compensated absences, efc., & the expected cost of
bonus, ex-gratia are recognised in the year in which the employee renders the
related service.

Long term employee benefits

(a) Gratuity (Unfundedj:

The Company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment
of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous service for a period of
5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on
retirement/termination is the employees last drawn basic salary per month
computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years
of service. The gratuity plan is an unfunded plan.

{All amounts are in Million Indion Rupees)

Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31¢ ended 31+
March, 2022 March, 2021
Table Showing Change in the Present Value of
Projected Benefit Obligation:
Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the Beginning of 3.85 213
the Period :
Interest Cost . 0.27 015(| -
Current Service Cost 1.28 0.91
Past Service Cost - -
Liability Transferred In/ Acquisitions S - -
(Liability Transferred Out/ Divestments) - -
(Gains)/ Losses on Curtailment - -
(Liabilities Extinguished on Settlement) - -
(Benefit Paid Directly by the Employer) - -
(Benefit Paid From the Fund) - -
The Effect Of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates - -
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to (0.14) -
Change in Demographic Assumptions
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to (0.22) (0.06)
Change in Financial Assumptions
Actuarial {Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to 0.21 0.72
Experience
Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the End of the 5.25 3.85
Period




Particulars

For the year
ended 31+t
March, 2022

For the year
ended 31¢
March, 2021

Table Showing Change in the Fair Value of Plan Assets:

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the Beginning of the Period

Interest Income

Contributions by the Employer

Expected Contributions by the Employees

Assets Transferred In/Acquisitions

[Assets Transferred Out/ Divestments)

(Benefit Paid from the Fund)

[Assets Distributed on Settlements)

Effects of Asset Ceiling

The Effect of Changes In Foreign Exchange Rates

Retum on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the End of the Period

Amount Recognized in the Balance Sheet:

(Present Value of Benefit Obligation atf the end of the
Period)

(5.25)

(3.85)

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the P_eriod

Funded Status (Surplus/ (Deficit))

(5.25)

(3.85)

Net (Liability)/Asset Recognized in the Balance Sheet

(5.25)

(3.85)

Expenses Recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss
for Current Period:

Current Service Cost

1.28

0.91

Net Interest Cost

0.27

0.15

" Past Service Cost

(Expected Contributions by the Employees)

(Goins)/Losses on Curtailments & Setflements

Net Effect of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

Expenses Recognized

1.55

1.05

Expenses Recognized in the Other Comprehensive
Income (OCI) for Current Period:

Actuarial [Gains)/Losses on Obligation For the Period

(0.15)

0.67

Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income

Change in Asset Ceiling

Net (Income)/Expense For the Period Recognized in
OcCt

(0.15)

0.67

Balance Sheet Reconciliation:

Opening Net Liability

3.85

2.13

Expenses Recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss

1.55

1.05

Expenses Recognized in OCI

(0.15)

0.67

Net Liability/(Asset) Transfer In

Net (Liability}/Asset Transfer Out

(Benefit Paid Directly by the Employer)

(Employer's Contribution)

Net Ligbility/(Asset) Recognized in the Balance Sheet

525

3.85




Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31¢ ended 31+
March, 2022 March, 2021
Assumptions:
No of Active Members 116 94
Per Month Salary For Active Members 292 2.31
Weighted Average Duration of the Projected Benefit 15 20
Obligation
Average Expected Future Service 15 22
Projected Benefit Obligation (PBO) 5.25 3.85
Rate of Discounting 7.27% 6.95%
Rate of Salary Increase 7.00% 7.00%
Rate of Employee Turnover 5.00% 2.00%
Mortdlity Rate During Employment Indian Indian
Assured Lives | Assured Lives
Mortality Mortality
(2006-08) (2006-08)
Prescribed Contribution For Next Year (12 Months) - -
Maturity Analysis of the Benefit Payments: From the
Employer:
Projected Benefils Payable in Future Years From the
Date of Reporting
1st Following Year 0.17 0.04
2nd Following Year 0.21 0.06
3rd Following Year 0.26 0.07
4th Following Year 0.30 0.09
5th Following Year 0.32 0.10
Sum of Years 6 To 10 1.66 0.61
Sum of Years 11 & above 13.83 1594
Sensitivity Analysis:
Projected Benefit Obligation on Current Assumptions 5.25 3.85
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Discounting (0.60) {0.62)
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Discounting 0.73 0.79
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase 0.65 0.75
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase {0.58) (0.63)
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Employee (0.02) (0.05)
Tumover
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Employee 0.02 0.05
Tumover

The sensitivity analysis have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the
respective ‘assumpfions occuring at the end of the reporting period, while holding alt other
assumptions constant.

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the
projected benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occurin isolation
of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the projected benefit
obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting
period, which is the same method as applied in calculating the projected benefit obligation as
recognised in the balance sheet.

Ambawadi
Ahmedabad-15



(b) Leave Encashment (unfunded):

The employees of the company are entitled to leave as per the leave policy
of the company. The liability on account of accumulated leave as on last day
of the accounting year is recognised [net of the fair value of plan assets as at
the balance sheet date] at present value of the defined obligation at the
balance sheet date based on the actuarial valuation caried out by an
independent actuary using projected unit credit method.

(All amounts are in Million Indian Rupees)

Particulars

For the year
ended 314
March, 2022

For the year
ended 31¢
March, 2021

Table Showing Change in the Present Valve of
Projected Benefit Obligation

Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the Beginning of
the Period

3.27

1.87

Interest Cost

0.23

0.13

Current Service Cost

0.82

0.58

Past Service Cost - Non-Vested Benefit Incurred During
the Period

Past Service Cost - Vested Benefit Incurred During the
Period

Liability Transferred In/ Acquisitions

(Liability Transferred Out/ Divestments)

(Gains)/ Losses on Curtailment

(Liabilities Extinguished on Settlement]

(Benefit Paid Directly by the Employer)

(Benefit Paid From the Fund)

The Effect Of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to
Change in Demographic Assumptions

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to
Change in Financial Assumptions

(0.05)

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to
Experience

0.8}

Present Vdlue of Benefit Obligation of the End of the
Period

3.27

Change in the fair value of plan assets:

Fair Value of Plan Assets af the Beginning of the Period

Interest income

Contributions by the Employer

Expected Coniributions by the Employees

Assets Transferred In/Acquisitions

{Assets Transferred Out/ Divestments)

(Benefit Paid from the Fund)

{Assets Distributed on Settlements)

Effects of Asset Ceiling

The Effect Of Changes In Foreign Exchange Rates

Retum on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the End of the Period




Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31+ ended 31¢
March, 2022 March, 2021

Amount Recognized in the Balance Sheet

(Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the end of the (4.51) (3.27)
Period)

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the Period - -
Funded Status (Surplus/ (Deficit)) {4.51) (3.27)
Unrecognized Past Service Cost af the end of the . - -
Period '

Net Liability/ (Asset) Recognized in the Balance Sheet {4.51) (3.27)

Expenses / [Incomes] recognised in the Statement of
Profit & Loss:

Current Service Cost 0.82 0.58

Net Interest Cost 0.23 0.13

Actuarial {Gains)/Losses 0.43 0.76

Past Service Cost - Non-Vested Benefit Recognized -
During the Period

Past Service Cost - Vested Benefit Recognized During -
the Period

(Expected Contributions by the Employees) -

{Gains)/Losses on Curtailments & Settlements - -

Net Effect of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates -

Change in Asset Ceiling -

Expenses Recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss | - 1.47 1.47

Balance Sheet Reconciliation:

Opening Net Liability 3.27 1.87
Expense Recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss 1.47 : 1.47
Net Liability/(Asset) Transfer In ' _ - -
Net (Liability)/Asset Transfer Out - (0.22) (0.07) |
(Employer's Contribution) o - -
Net Liability/ (Asset) Recognized in the Balance Sheet : 4.51 3.27
Principal actuarial assumptions as at Balance sheet

date:

Expected Return on Plan Assets ' - -
Rate of Discounting # 7.27% 6.95%
Rate of Salary Increase $ 7.00% 7.00%
Rate of Employee Turover 5.00% 2.00%
No of Active Members 116 94
Per Month Salary For Active Memibers 2.92 2.31
Projected Benefit Obligation {PBO) 4.51 3.27

Prescribed Contribution For Next Year (12 Months) - -

#The rate of discount is considered based on market yield on Government Bonds having curency
& terms in consistence with the currency & terms of the post-employment benefit obligations.

$The estimates of future salary increases are considered in actuarial valuation, taking into account
inflation, seniority, promotion & other retevant factors such as supply & demand in the employment
market.




32,

Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities pursuant to Para B14 of Ind AS 112:

The following table summarises the financial information of Join Confirol Entities as
included in its own separate financial statements, adjusted for fair value adjustments at
acquisifion and differences in accounting policies, if any.

The table also reconciles the summarised financial information to the carrying amount of
the Company's interest in the entities-

{All amounts are in Milion indian Rupees)

Ni-Hon
Farm Gas Venuka 'Cylim?er.s
Parliculars Private Limited .Polym'er_s Private Limited
Private Limited
Year 2021-22 2021-22 2021-22
Country of Incorporation India india india
% of ownership inferest ‘ 50% 50% 50%
Current Assets 377.22 114.55 79.45
Non Current Assets 371.72 90.12 7.48
Current Liabilities 181.43 104.10 8.83
Non Current Liabilities 240.57 89.77 75.30
Net assets (100%) 326.94 10.80 2.80
Company's share of net assets . 163.47 5.40 1.40
Carrying amount of interest in joint venture 163.47 5.40 1.40
Revenues ' 62123 136.06 38.33
Expenses 215.87 127.24 3397
Depreciation and Amortization 0. - 10.21 -
Inferest Income : (2.13) 050y -
Inferest Expense 435 | 12.24 187
Income Tax Expense . 107.10 (5.12) 0.67
Profit/(loss) from continuing operations 295.93 (8.00) 1.82
Other Comprehensive Income - - -
Total Comprehensive Income 295.93 (8.00) 1.82
Company's share of profit/ (loss) from 147.96 (4.00) 0.91
continuing operations
Company'’s share of other comprehensive - -
income
'Company’s share of total comprehensive 147.96 (4.00) 0.91
income
Dividends received by the Company -

Nehry Nagar,
Ambnwad
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{All amounts are in Million Indian Rupees

Venuka Ni-Hon

Particulars _Farm .Gu.s Polymers _Cylmcger.s

Private Limited Private Limited Private Limited
Year 2020-21 2020-21 2020-21
Country of Incorporation india India India
% of ownership interest 50% 50% -
Current Assets 56.69 4831 -
Non Cument Assets 60.26 85.33 -
Current Liabilities 3.43 26.27 -
Non Current Liabilities 95.90 88.24 -
Net assets (100%) 17.62 19.13 -
Company's share of net assets 8.81 9.56 -
Carrying amount of interest in joint venture 8.81 9.56 -
Revenues -0.01 - -
Expenses 1.08 0.25 -
Depreciation and Amortization - 0.03 -
Interest Income - -0.11 -
interest Expense 0.90 0.96 -
Income Tax Expense -0.17 -0.07 -
Froﬁf/(lross) from continuing operations -1.81 -1.06 -
Other Comprehensive Income - - -
Total Comprehensive Income -1.81 -1.06 -
Company’s share of profit/ (loss) from -0.90 -0.53 -
continuing operations
Company's share of other comprehensive - - -
income : '
Company's share of total comprehensive -0.90 -0.53 -
income :
Dividends received by the Company - - -

33. Related Party Disclosures:

(a) Name of the Related party & Nature of the Related Party Relationship:

Sr. No. | Nature Name of the Person/Entity
i Holding Company (i) Cadila Pharmaceuticals Ltd
ii. Joint Control entities (i} Farm Gas Private Limited
(i) Venuka Polymers Private Limited
(i) Ni-Hon Cylinders Private Limited
iii. Associate Enferprise (i) Enertech Distribution Management
Pvt Lid
iv. Fellow Subsidiary Company {i) Casil Hedlth Products Limited
V. Enterprises Significantly Influenced by | (i) IRM PvtLtd

Directors or their relatives or Key | (i) Sanguine Management Services Pvt
Management Personnel Ltd

(iii) IRM Trust

(iv) Mauktika Ventures LLP

(v) N M Sadguru  Wgater and

Development Foundation
(vi) Aspire Disruptive Skill Foundation
(vil) Indrashil Kaka Ba & Kala Budh Public
Charitable Trust
Enertech Fuel Solutions Pvt Ltd

{viii)

Nehry Nagar,

’ Ambawadi
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vi.

Key Management Personnel

(i)
(il
(i)
(iv)
(v)
(vi)

Mr. Maheswar Sahu (Chairmany
Dr. Rdjiv I. Modi (Director)

Mr. Amitabha Banerjee (Director)
Mr. Vinod Jain (Director)

Mr. Badri Mahapatra (Director)
Mr. Karan Kaushal {CEO)

Mr
Ms

(vii)
(viii)

. Harshal Anjaria [CFO)

. Shikha Jain [CS)

(b) Transactions with related parties {Amt. in Rs.):

{Allamounts are in Million Indian Rupees)

Nature of For the year For the year
Sr. No. Transaction Name of the Related Party 2021-22 2020-21
Cadila Pharmaceuticals 13.29 130
Lid
IRM Trust 66.78 3.11
For Goods Venuka Polymers Pvt Lid (0.04) (0.04)
i Procured/Services | Enertech Fuel Solutions Pvt
Availed/(Provided) | |tq B 42.76
Casil Health Products Lid - 0.11
Mauktia Ventures LLP 6.73 -
IRM Pvt Ltd 0.31 0.15
Sgdllo Pharmaceuticals 372 04 64
Subscription of
i Equ’[y Shares (inc]_ IRM Trust 1.39 9.18
) securities st
. Enertech Distribution
premium} Management Pvt Lid 4.64 9.74
Maheswar Sahu 5.98 -
Cadila Pharmaceuticals (0.66) (0.04)
Ltd
Maheswar Sahu 0.22 0.01
. Reimbursement of Venuka Polymers Pvt Ltd (20.01} {3.63})
' Expenses Mauktika Ventures LLP (0.21) (0.00)
Farm Gas Pvt Ltd (97.14) (1.71)
Ni Hon Cylenders Pvt Ltd (0.02) -
IRM Trust - (0.27)
v Subscription of Cadila Pharmaceuticals _ 34.14
) Preference Shares | Lid ’
Director Sitting Maheswar Sahu 0.88 0.68
V.
Fees Badri Mahapatra 0.36 0.20
vi. | Managerd Maheswar Sahu 458 4.64
Remuneration
Shree Saraswati Education
Sansthan (indrashil - 2.00
University)
] N M Sadguru Water and
Corporate Social | Development Foundation 0.50 0.30
vii. Responsibility . - -
Expense Aspire Disrupfive Skill 290 _
Foundation ’
Indrashil Kaka Ba & Kala
Budh Public Charitable 3.33 -
Trust




Sr. No. ::lr gLUsr:cﬁon of Name of the Related Party Fo;(i)gi);;ar Fo;(i)gg-;e]eor
vii. | Donation Aspire Dirupfive Skl 0.20 -
iX. Loan Given Ni Hon Cylinders Pvt Ltd 74.90 -

IRM Pvt Ltd 0.07 0.02

Outstanding Casil Health Products Ltd - 0.03

% | Payables IRM Trust 11.02 -
Mauktika Ventures LLP 0.42 -

Ni Hon Cylinders Pvt Ltd 0.02 -

Venuka Polymers Pvt Lid 25.71 13.70

i, (R):ésgsr(;gg% ggdila Pharmaceuticals ) 0.05
Mauktika Ventures LLP - 0.04

Farm Gas Pvt Lid 13.51 1.71

34. Earnings Per Share:
[All amounts are in Million Indian Rupees)
Sr. Particulars UOM | Forthe year Forthe year
No. 2021-22 2020-21
Basic EPS
a | Profit after tax attribuiable to Rs. 1280.29 348.89
Equity Shareholders
b | Basic & weighted average Nos. 29.18 28.16
number of Equity shares
outstanding during the year -
c | Value of equity share Rs. 43.88 12.38
Diluted EPS
a | Profit after tax attributable to Rs. 1280.29 348.89
Equity Shareholders : |-
b | Basic & weighted average Nos. 29.18 28.16
number of Equity shares ‘
outstanding during the year
c | Value of equity share Rs. 43.88 12.38
35. Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets (to the extent not provided for):

Commitments

(i)

[All amounts are in Million Indian Rupees

Sr. No. | Particulars For the year For the year
2021-22 2020-21

[ Estimated amount of confracts 1084.05 499.19
remaining to be executed on '
capital account & not provided for
(Net of advance)

2 Income Tax Liability for AY 18-19- 0.05 -
Rectification filed pending
resolution

(i) The Company has issued Corporate Guarantee for Loan taken by its Joint control
Entifies as per below information-

a. Corporate Guarantee issued in favour of Banks fowards Loan taken by Farm Gas
Private Limited amounting to Rs. 335.40 million.




36.

37.

(if)

b. Corporate Guarantee issued in favour of Bank towards Loan taken by Venuka
Polymers Private Limited amounting fo Rs. 171.60 million.

The Company has executed mid term supply contracts for purchase of RLNG having
take or pay(ToP) obligations. The volume committed under such contract which s liable
to TOP is 6213 mmbtu/day. The Company is not foreseeing ToP liability under such
confract

(iv) Pursuant to Grant of Authorisation issued by Petroleum & Natural Gas Regulatory Board

(v)

(vi)

(PNGRB) for the geographical areas of Diu (UT of Diu & Daman) & Gir Somnath District
(Gujarat), the Company-has submitted Performance Bank Guarantee of Rs. 25 crores
to PNGRB.

Pursuant to Grant of Authorisation issued by Petroleum & Natural Gas Regulatory Board
(PNGRB) for the geographical areas of Banaskantha District {Gujarat) and Fatehgarh
Sahib District (Punjab), the Company has submitted Performance Bank Guarantee of
Rs. 100.12 crores to PNGRS.

Pursuant to Grant of Authorisation issued by Petroleum & Natural Gas Regulatory Board
[PNGRB) for the geographical areas of Namakkal and Tiruchirappalli District {Tamil
Nadu), the Company has submitted Performance Bank Guarantee of Rs. 33 crores to
PNGRB.

The Company has taken limits for issuance of Performance Bank Guarantee (PBG) in
favor of PNGRB which is.secured as under-

a. First Charge on movable and immovable assets (both present and future) relating
to the specific projects on pari passu basis.

b. First charge on current assets (incl. cash flows, receivables, etc), both present and
future, of the specific projects on pari passu basis.

Corporate Social Responsibility:

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
committee has been formed by the Company. The CSR activities of the Company are
generally been canied out by making payment contribution 1o eligible Trusts. The Trusts
carry out the CSR activities as specified in Schedule Vil to the Companies Act, 2013 on
behalf of the Company.

(Allamounts are in Million Indian Rupees

Sr. Particulars As at March | As at March
No 31, 2022 31,2021
a Amount required to be spent during the year 6.00 3.09

b Amount of opening unspent CSR expenses - -
spent during the year

C Amount approved by the Board to be spent 6.03 3.40
during the year

d Amount spent during the year 6.03 3.40
i. Construction/Acquisition of any assets - -
ii.0On purposes other than (i) above 6.03 3.40

Details related to spent/unspent obligations
a. Contribution to Public Trust - 2.00

b. Contribution to Charitable Trust 6.03 1.40
c. Unspent Amount - -




39.

40.

41.

42.

38. Segment Information

a. Description of segments and principal activities: The Company has a single operating
segment that is "Sale of Natural Gas". Accordingly, the segment revenue, segment
results, segment assets & segment liabilities are reflected in the Consolidated Financial
Statements themselves as at & for the financial year ended March 31, 2022,

b. Entity wide disclosures

i.  Information about products and services: The Company is in a single line of
business of "Sale of Natural Gas".

i. Geographical Information: The company operates presently in the business of city
gas distribution in India. Accordingly, revenue from customers earned and non-
current asset are located, in India. '

ii.  Information about mgajor customers: In the current year, revenue from none of the
external customer individually accounted for more than ten percent of the
revenue.

Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies (ROC)

The company has registered charge with ROC within statutory time period. There has been no
satisfaction of charge filed with ROC.

Details of Benami Propenrty held
The company does not hold any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition)

Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder, hence no proceedings initiated or pending
against the company under the said Act and Rules.

Loans and advances grqnted to specified person

Except as stated in‘the notes to accounts and financial statement, there are no other loans or
advances granted fo specified persons namely promoters, directors, KMPs and related parties.

The Company has taken Land, Building and Plant & Machinery on Lease for the period of more
than 12 Months. The Company has taken other Buildings also on lease for the period of 12
months or less. For which the company applies the “Shori-term leases” recognition
exemptions.

Disclosures as per Ind AS 116 - Leases are as follows:
(a) Changesin the canmying value of right of use assets

{All amounts are in Million Indian Rupees)

Particulars Mdrcﬁs;]lf As a?t’]l\l\g(r);}l\
2022 ’

Balance at the beginning of the year 56.23 43.57
Additions 65.75 17.39
Deletions - -
Finance cost accrued during the year 6.99 4.60
Payment of lease liabilities 11.90 9.33
Balance at the end of the year 117.07 56.23




(b) Movement of Lease Liabilities

(Al amounts are in Milion Indian Rupees)

Particulars As 0;1Mg£2 Murcﬁs;t

! 2021

Balance at the beginning of the year 71.46 62.74
Additions 65.75 17.39
Deletions -
Amortisation 7.78 8.66
Balance at the end of the year 129.43 71.47

(c) Contractual maturities of lease liabilities

{All amounts are in Million Indian Rupees)

Particulars As at March | As at March

31, 2022 31, 2021
Less than one year 8.85 6.22
One to five years 48.69 8.73
More than five years 59.53 4].28
Total 117.07 56.23

(d) Amount recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss account during the year

{All amounts are in Million Indian Rupees)

For the year

For the year

Particulars arch 3t | Marchat,

2022 2021
Amortisation expense of right of use assets 7.79 -8.66
Interest Expense on Lease liabilifies 6.99 4.60
Expense related to short term leases 4.58 1.79
Total 19.36 15.05

(e) Amount recognized in statement of Cash How

[Allamounts are in Million indian Rupees)

For the year

For the year

. ending on ending on
Particulars March 31, March 31,
2022 2021

Total Cash flow for lease 11.90 9.33
Total 11.90 9.33

43. Utilisation of borrowed funds, share premium and other funds

The Company has not received any fund from any person or entity with the understanding
that the Company would directly or indirectly lend or invest in other person or entity identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding party (ultimate beneficiary) or
provided any guarantee or security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiary.
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45,

44,

47.

48,

49.

Compliance with number of layers of companies

The company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section
2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017

Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency

The company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the
financial year.

Undisclosed Income

There is no transaction, which has not been recorded in books of accounts, that has been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in tax assessments under the Income Tax
Act, 1961.

Relationship with struck off companies

The company do not have any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of
the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956

Wilful Defaulter

The company is not declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other
lender. '

Financial Ratios

Ratio Numerator | Denominator 2021- 2020- Change | Reasons for %
22 21 in Ratio change
(%) (Required if
changeis >
, 25%)
Current Ratio Current Cunment _ 1.81 1.75 3% .| -
Assets Liabilities .
Debt-Equity *Total Debt | $Total Equity 0.93 1.43 -56% | Total equity of
Ratio - the company
has increased
due fo
improved
profitability.
Debt Service Earnings # Debt Service 7.26 5.13 42% | -
Coverage Ratio | available
for debt
service
Return on Equity | Net Profit Average 63% 36% 74% | Due to increase
Ratio less Shareholder’s in sales, the
Dividend Equity profitability  has
increased
Inventory Sales Average 431.06 | 279.66 54% | The Company's
tumover ratio Inventory operations  has
grown
significantly
leading fo
higher revenues
and  inventory
levels
compared  fo
preceding year
Trade Net Credit | Average 32.22 27.51 17% | -
Receivables Sales Accounts
turnover ratio Receivable




Ratio Numerator | Denominator 2021- 2020- Change | Reasons for %
22 21 in Ratio change
(%) (Required if
change is >
25%)
Trade payables Net Credit | Average Trade 14,18 8.93 59% | The Company's
turnover ratio Purchases Payables operations  has
grown leading
to higher
purchases and
creditor  levels
compared to
preceding year
as better
payment temns
are negotiated
with the
vendors.
Net capital Net Sales Working 8.65 8.55 1% | -
turnover ratio Capital
Net profit ratio Net Profit Sales 21% 17% 25% | Company has
earned higher
margins on gas
trading and also
volume has
grown
compared  to
: last year.
Return on Earnings Capital 31.67% | 11.82% . 168% | EBITDA has
Capital before Employed increased due
employed interest and fo higher
taxes margins and
increased sales
: volume.
Retumn on Average Rate of Return 2.48% | 6.92% -64% | Change due MTM
investment movement linked
(Mutual Fund) to NAV of
respective mutual
fund.

$ Total equity = Equity Share Capital + Other Equity

* Total debt = Borrowings from banks + Liability component of Preference Shares + Lease liabilities

# Debt Service = Interest and Finance charges + Lease Payments + Principal repayment of bank borrowings

Financial ratios are calculated considering the IND AS accounting treatment and the
formulas of the ratios are as per the guidance note of Institute of Chartered Accountants of

India, not as per the industry acceptable practices.

As per our report of even date

For Mukesh M. Shah & Associates For & on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
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